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Letter to our Stockholders

Advance Autlt) Parts serves many
customers wh[a work on their vehicles
out of economic necessity, and given
the challenges those customers face,
it is imperative that we step up our

| game, to serve our customers better

than ever.

2006_ was a challenging vear that tested the mettle of lower income
consumers and the retai}érs that serve them. Rising interest rates, a
third consecutive year ol'lgasoifne price increases, higher insurance
premitms, and a sofrenihjg housing market - among other factors —

took their toll on consumers’ wallets.

Many companies devole :é:pace in pages like these to addressing “exe-
cution,” often saying sofyethr’ng clichg, like “execution is key to our
success.” The real key, though, is determining where execution can be
improved, and then improving it. As macrogconomic chailenges
mounted, we spent muc!ﬁ of 2006 doing exactly that. We refined our
expectations of what cans:titutes superior execution, and then focused
on achieving it — in every store, with every customer, every day.
Specifically, we fmp!emer;ted a numﬁer of customer service initiatives
that more pro-actively aléfdress the unmet needs of the auror}:otive

aftermarket consumer, including:

* A Guaranteed Greeﬁf:g program, whereby our Team Members
commit to greet every customer who enters our stores, We know
that customers who a[ﬁe greeted and receive expert advice from our
kpowledgeable Teamn leave our stores more satisfied — and are more

fikely to return for their future automotive parts needs.

* Legendary phone service, which ensures that we treat customers
. who call our stores ||!w'm the same level of enthusiasm and profes-
sionalism as customers who shop our stores, We know a large
,bercentage of aur custorners calf our stores before they come in,
‘and we want to make it easier than ever for them to do business
with us. Superior sLLvr‘ce will turn more phone inquiries into walk-
in customers, and we are using a mystery-shop program to ensure

our stares are executing this pragram effectively.

= A program called \{Carry Out the Grocerigs,” where our Team
Members assist customers in carrying their merchandise to their

vehicle, without the customer even having to ask.

« Unique promotions, which reinforce our value proposition. We want
to astablish top-of-mind awareness with our customers that
Advance is the desr|iinatfan for free installation senxfées on products
such as autamotiv;e batteries and wiper blades. We alsor are using
new promotional concepts, such as a 10-for-§10 sale, to

drive additional footsteps to our stores.

Advance has always been knowﬁ for Legendary Customer Service;
it’s not a new concept. But with consume-rs facfng difficult financial
circumstances, it's even more essential that we deliver above and
beyond their expectations. We fike to think of this as “Enthusiastic
Customer Service ... and then some,” and | am pleased to say that our

Team Members have embraced these new programs overwhelmingly.

Just as importantly, our customers have noticed — and they are taking the
time to share their positive experiences with us. We've selected a num-

ber of these customer compliments to highlight in this annual report,

We visit our stores \weekly to ensure high standards, but nothing
matters more lo us|than customer feedback. So the next time you

—Continued on next paga
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—Continued from page 1 |
visit an Advance store, | hope you'll share your experience wi'th us at

The fact that more customers than ever are laking time to thank us for

LegendaryService@advanceautoparts.com,

exceeding their expectations is profound. After all, most of thq things
a retailer does can be copied by competitors. Many companie.:s could
sell the merchandise we offer, or repiicate our pricing. But w‘hen we
give customers consistently superior service, we establish their
lovalty for life — giving customers na reasan to shop anywhere glse

for their auto parts and accessorigs. That's the Advance Way.

2006 marked a year of significant milestones for Adlw:'ncs,
including:

= The opening of our 3,000th store

« Commercial sales that exceeded §1 billion

* Qur fifth year as a public company
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Mike Coppola and the Advance Team joins NYSE President Catherine Kinney to
ring the closing bell. I

We're proud of those accomplishments, but 2006 was also a y:ear of
chaflenges. As | mentioned sarfier, customers faced difficult ecai‘nomic
circumstances. That translated into a tough operating enw'rorj:menr,
one in which our financial results did not live up to our expecr?tions.
To produce better expense leverage, we implemented a number of

new programs and initiatives to lower our cost of doing x‘mrsfness1 while

enhancing our efficiency, including:

« Streamfining our store eng-of-aay process, which saves labor,

paper and supplies;
* Implementing a more efficient store-delivery process; and
* [Installing energy-management systems that help reduce

energy consumption in our stores;

While our rate of profit growth didn’t meet our target in 2006, we still
grew our earnings per share in a fough year — a sign of true
resilience. We rapidly accelerated Autopart International’s growth,
an exciting business we acquired in 2005 that supplies automative
parts to commercial customers. This past year, we also repurchased
3.7 milfion shares of stock and initiated a guarterly cash dividend,
signaling confidence in our future and an ability to self-fund growth

while also returning capital to our stockholders.

Challenging business conditions tested the resolve of many businesses
in 2006. We took the opportunily to reassess many aspects of our.
business, to ensure we're investing where we can achieve the best
returns. We will continue to grow the Advance Way in 2007, albeit
somewhat more selectively, which will help us lower our expense rate
and improve returns. In 2007, we plan to open fewsr new stores,
remodels and relocations than we did in 2006. And we befieve we can
remodel stores at a significantly lower cost in the fufure — without affect-

ing the strong customer response ol remodel program has generated.

The Advance Way applies to everything we do. In 2006, we set in place
plans to reconfigure our field management struclure for 2007, The
new structure gives our Regional Vice Presidents a tighter cluster of
Division Managers to supervise, which we believe will result in
improved stare execution, We alse launched an incentive compensa-
tion program which rewards our Team Members for selling premium

products. This program gives our Team Members the opportunily to
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garn more pay, while afso'fnrraducing customers to the features and

benefits of premium parts. Sales go up, Team Member paychecks go

up, and customers walk'away with a superior product - a real win--

win-win proposition.

We think about the constituents we serve as forming a triangle. Qur
Team Members form the :!;558 of the triangle, with our customers and
financial results forming the other two sides. And each side of the
triangle refies on the onel that comes before it. We can only serve our
customers well if we have great Team Members. And we can only

produce solid financial results if we take care of our customers.

indeed, the Advance Way is synonymous with going above and
beyond the call of duly,l| by providing customers with a shopping
experience that is memorable and extraordinary. Offering to install
windshield wipers, batteries and other products free for our customers
provides confidence thatl lme job will be done correctly and éfﬁcienw
importantly, ;‘r means otr customers will think of Advance first, the
next time they have an automotive need; and it means convenience,

because our customers don't have to roll up their sleeves and get dirty.

The Advance Way also applies to our internal customers. It’s visible
i

every day, in tangible tways that make a huge difference to our

stores, and ultimately I:ro their customers. A distribution center

rushes to fulfill a store’s inventory needs; a facilities maintenance

I i ﬂ e

Team Member hustles to get a broken air conditioning unit fixed:
infarmation technology Team Members understand the importance
li

of having systems up-and-running, and solve ingvitable system

glitches with a sense of urgency. That's the Advance Way.

in short, what we're; describing is an infectious "can-do” spirit
throughout the organization. After all, Arthur Taubman founded
Advance in 1932 on the premise that we treat Team Members like family.
It tum, motivated, engaged Tearn Members provide legendary service fo
our custormers. And as you il see from our customers’ leiters, Advance is
fortunate to have manjlf Team Members who exemplify that spirit. I am
immensely proud of tlhem, and want to personally thank each and
svery Team Member who represents the Advance brand so admirably.
Your outstanding sgrvice is what truly defines Advance Auto Parts to

Our customers.

As we celebrate our {5#1 year of business in 2007, we know that this
commitment to pmw’nlfr'ng Legendary Cusfomer Service will be just as
important for the next 75 years ... and then some.

Sincerely,

Michael N. Coppola.
Chairman of the Boa‘rg, Fresident, Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Customer Representative

Your Executive Team:

left to right; Elwyn Murray,
Roger Putkin, Dave Mueller,
Keith Qreson, Jim Hade.
Michael Moore, Paul Klasing,
Mike Coppola

A Annual Report 2006
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Five-year Financials
|

Financially, 2006 was a challengingl year. Nonetheless, Advance continued to grow its
store count, comparable-store saleé and earnings per share — a real testament to our
resilience and determination. We continue to focus on our four key financial metrics:
sales per store, operating margin, free cash flow and return on invested capital. In 2006,
we became the industry leader in sales per store, and we enter 2007 as a leaner, more

. I
lenacious company. |
|
I
I
&
$4.617 |
|
$4,265 |‘ $1551 81,552
$3494 2 51455
83204 $1379
$1303
B| |8\ B 0ZARN0SAR 020 RE05)
Sales Average Sales per Store
{in miflions) 1 (in thousands}
|
3,082 l $2.13 $2.16
2652 2872 §1.66
2539 [ $1.39
2435
$0.87
024 R0 RECZARI05] 024 RNG3ARN02ARN05

Number of Slores

Comparable Earnings per Shara from
Conlinuing Operations (in doflars)
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4 I 5-Year FiscAL Year™
Compounded
Growth 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Statement of Operatmns Data:
{in thousands, except per Share data)

NEtSAIES(2) ..ocoreessmersensesrssesessessrissorrnenenn . 9.6%  $4,616,603 | §4,264,971 $3770297 83430680  $3.204,140
Gross profit {3) L 1.3% 2201164 | 2014478 1753371 1575756 1434407
Comparable operarmg income (4} ... 14.8% 403,350 408,492 328,758 268441 231,883
Comparable income from continuing operatmns {5 vererrerennnnnn28.2% 231,318 234,725 168,027 155,091 94267

Comparabie income from continuing opemtmns
per diluted share (5).... $2.16 $2.13 $1.66 $1.39 $0.87

Weighted average diluted shares ourstandmg 107,124 109,987 113222 112115 108,564

Selected Store Data:

Comparab!esroresales'grawrh..,....,,.................................... 2.1% 8.7% 6.1% 31% 5.5%

Number of stores, end of period...........ccovvvvrevivenn s, 3,082 2872 2,652 2539 2435

Total store square footage, end
of period (in thousands) (67) .............................................. 22,235 20,899 18,734 18,875 18,108

Average net sales per store (7). §1.552 $1,551 $1,453 $1378 $1.303

Average net sales per square foot (8) .. $209 $208 §195 $186 8174

Balance Sheet Data: . ‘

Inventmz et oo omeneenemeeners 1,463,340 | 81,367,099 $1,201,450  $1,113.781  $1,048,803

Net working caprtal e e e et e e e 498,553 406,476 416,302 372,509 462 896

Tofal assets..........c.cuoue.. P PO O USSR 2,682,681 2542149 2201962 1,983,071 1,965,225

Total net debt {9) ...... e ettt et r e 500318 448,187 433,863 464,598 722 506

\Totalsrackholders‘ BQURY ..ot 1,030,854 919,771 722,315 631,244 468,356

é -

/ 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Comparable operating income ........ .. $403350 | 8408492  $328758 3289441 $231,883
Merger related restructuring (10) ... - - - - {597)
Merger and integration (10} ........... - - - (10417} (34,935)
Operations effect on 53rd week ... - - - 8210 -

\Operating FICOME 1vvve s escreeseereereessessseseassenessesmisesesennennes $403,380 | $408492  $328758  $288234 196,351

L .

/ _ 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Comparable income from continging ODErANONS.....vwviveer $231,318 | 8234725 $188027  $155,091 $94,267
Add back items from footnote (4) ..cooeevervrvveereenes - - - {1,207) (35,532)
Interest expense in 53rd week......... - - - (368) .
Loss on extinguishment of debt.. - - - {46,867) (16,822)
Tax impact of above flems............. e - - - 18,658 20,235
fncome from continuing operar.'ons ................................ v 231318 | 8234725  $188027  $125267 $62,148
Income from continuing operations per difuted Share ..................... $2.16 $2.13 _ $1.66 3112 $0.57

\_ ;

(1) Our fiscal year oons:srs of 52 or 53 weeks ending on the Saturday nearest to December 31. The Company excluded the operaan results of the 53rd week in fiscal 2003 as reconciled in the
footnates below; rherefare all fiscal years presented consist of 52 weeks. Fiscal years 2002 and 2003 include non-GAAP measures. The Company used these non-GAAP measures as an
indication of its eam.'ngs from its core operations and believes it is important to our stockholders due to the nature and srgnrﬁcanca of the excluded expenses. Please see our reconcifiation of
comparable aperating income and comparable income from continuing operations included in the table above.

(2) Net sales for fiscal yea;' 2003 excluda the effect of the 53rd week in the amount of $63,016.

{3) Gross profit for fiscal yéar 2003 excludes the effect of the 53rd week in the amount of 828,762,

{4) Comparable operating :incama exciudes certain charges as included in the above reconciliation of this measurement to our operating incomne presented unoer generally accepted
accounting poficies in our financial statements containgd in the Form 10-K of this annual report.

{5) Comparable income Irom cortinuing operations excludes the dems in footnole {4} above and the earty extinguishment of debr. The above is a reconciliation of comparable incomeg from
continting operations ra income from continuing operations presented under generally accepted accounting policies in our fi nama! statements contained in the Form 10-K of this annual report.

{6) Total store square morage exchides the squara footage of the stores in the Al segment. Tha Al segment is further defined in me Form 10-K of this annual report.

(7) Average net sales per srara is calcutated as net sales divided by the average of beginning and ending number of stores for me respective period. The fiscal 2006 and 2005 calculations
exclude the net sales and stores from the Al segment. The fiscal 2003 net sales exclude the effect of the 53rd week in the amounr of $63,016.

(8} Average net safes per square foot is calcutated as net sales divided by the average of the beginning and ending total store square footage for the respective period. The fiscal 2006 and
2605 calcuiations exclude the net sales and square footage from the Al segment. The fiscal 2003 net sales exciude the effecr ofma 53rd week in the amount of $63.016.

(9) Net debt includes total debt and bank averdrafts, less cash and cash equivalents as presented in the Form 10-K of this annuaI report.

(10) For more information on these charges refer to the footnotes to the table setting forth our “Selected Consolidated ﬁnanctal Data” on page 19 in the Form 10-K of this annual report.

l
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Differentiation the Advance Way

I
1

Since Arthur Taubman founded Advance
Auto Parts in 1932, we ‘have ope!rated
with the belief that customers deserve a
great shopping experience; we ow.“f it to
them. In order to make that a realiq/, we

must employ a top-caliber Team. |
|

Our people separate an extraordinary shopping experience, from an
. |
- ordinary one. Qur people make the difference. Our people represent the

|
image of Advance in our customers' eyes. Together, we are Advance.

As a result, we have always focused on hiring qualified Team llm'mbers

at all fevels of the organization. We believe seven qualities, in particular,

are the basis of the ideal Advance Team Member: ‘
1. Friendly |
. !

. Product Knowledgeable |

. Customer Oriented

2

3

4. Team Player
5. Detail Oriented
6. Change Oriented
7

. Dependable

We use these criteria in our hiring decisions, annual performance
evaluations, and promotion decisions, fo ensure Advance !has the
right people serving our customers. Product Knowledgeable refers to
the auvtomotive and parts knowledge our store Team Me}nbe.‘rs need
{o serve our customers. But it aiso may refer to being bf-ﬁn_f:;ua.f, or
being able to speak sign language, in order to communicate efflective!y

with customers.

As we mentioned in last year's annual report, we use the term
“customer” broadly. Just as it’s essential that we have experienced
professionals behind the counter at our stores, it's also essential
that we have the same quality of people at our Distribution Centers
and Store Support Center. There, our behind-the-scenes subject-
matter experts serve their “customers™ by analyzing lease
renewals, negoriatfhg with vendors, and ensuring we have an
ample supply of merchandise on-hand. This allows our store
teams to focus on their most important job: serving our retail and

commercial customers.

The customer compliment on the facing page about Paul in Naugatuck,
Connecticuf, is a testament to the type of can-do attitude our Team
Members have. They do more than expected, because that's how
they'd want to be treated if they were in the customer’s shoes. They act
as business owners, because they are. And they serve as role models
to their felfow Team Members, who emulate their exemplary behavior,

creating a culture of customer service.

We work hard to convey a sirong impression 0 our customers
through impactful advertising, sharp pricing, and immaculate store
conditions. But when Paul learned sign language to communicate better
with his customer, that had a profoundly positive impact. And not just to
that one customer Paul served, but to all of the customer’s friends and

family members that heard the story, too. The Advance Way is about

securing customers for life.
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Customers can shop many places for their
‘ \

automotive needs. To drive customers into
’ |

our stores, we must give them a special

reason to shop Advance.

¥ while also giving our Team greater opportunity to inferact with customers

in 2006, we worked diligently to rolf out more programs that enabled our
Team Members to live out the “7" ... and then soms, by providing them
with additional tools to serve their customers better than anyone. For
example, we stepped up our efforts fo tout our famous fast, free services,
including free wiper blade installation, glectrical system testing, oil
recycling and battery instaflation and recycling. These services differentiata
Advance from many other retailers, and are key to our value proposition.
Our message is simple: Why go somewhere else for a battery, when

Advance will offer you a great price and install it for free?

This past vear, we also introduced a Guaranteed Greeting program, in

* which our Team Members commit to consistently greet every customer

who enters our stores. This shows our customers that we're Friendly,
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to ensure we're meeting ail or their automotive needs. S0 when a customer
comes in for a hottle of wina:'shr'e!d washer solvent, we're asking the exira

question: “Can I install a fre?h pair of wiper blades for you?"

We are Carrying Qut the Groceries, an initiative whereby our store Team

Members automatically assist customers with heavy, bulky, or large

|
“orders, and bring the merchandise to customers’ vehicles — befare they

[ .
even ask, Now thats Customer Oriented! We've also become more

Dependable, with additional Advance stores that are open until midnight,

, i , . .
or in some cases 24 hours Ia day, for our customers’ convenience. And in
2006, we launched new mafketing and promotional programs, including a

10-for-$10 sale, which we "I;’E brought back by popular demand for 2007.

Serving customers better than anyone - whether it’s through supgrior

!
products, superior service, or anything eise that’s unigue to Advance -
I

is what turns customers into advocates. Advacates tout our company 10
their friends and family, and wouwldn't think of shopping anywhere efse,

because they're so impressed with our ability to meet their needs.

Take Gayle in Bom‘t_a Springs, Florida, for example. Not only did we have
the battery she needed, our Team Member, Guillermo, took a half hour
to properly handle a complicated insiailation. Gayle left with a new
battery ... and a whole(lot more. She left our parking lot knowing
Advance has the products she needs, at the right price, with helpful

people who are experts'in their figld.

She says she's "one happy Advance customer who is spreading
the word.” Her word-of-mouth is the best advertising we could

ever ask for.
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Serving, Customers the Advance Way

Tobea succes'sful relailer, it’s essential
that we pravidl? a great in-store experi-
ence. That st[arts with great people,
but if we don't have the products our
customers want, then our great people
are like salesmen trying to sell ice
scrapers fo culstamers in Puerto Rico.

So, in addition to the high quality of our Team, Advance has long been
cammitted to what we consider the Five Basics of Sales qnd Customer
Satisfaction:
1. Quality and Quality Control
. Good Hnu.-cekeephlwlg

2
3. Pmpef Stock Levels/Variely
4. Proper Pricing

5

. and, of course, our Legendary Customer Service

'
o

New, bright, well-kept stores offer a clear point of difference to customers,
giving them many reasons to prefer Advance to all other auto parts stores.

We use custom mix and micromarketing to match each store’s inventory

" to local demand. Unique,-f high-guality merchandise and everyday low

pricing provide customers with a compeliing value proposition. And
Legendary Customer Se.rgice is the proverbial cherry on top of a great

shopping experience.

We continually look foriways to serve our customers’ negds better.
Sometimes customers don't even know they have a particuiar need until
we launch a unique product - a product that addresses an unserved

need in the marketpiace.|In some cases, that might take the form of an

Advance Auto Parts branded item where we showcase our value against

a Ieadf.fig national brand. In other cases, it might be a premium item that
we brand under our Professional’s Favorite® label Professional’s
Favorite items are available exclusively at Advance Auto Parts, which
translates into a lot of repeat business, because once we wow customers
with a Professional’s Favorite ftem, we can count on them to refurn to our
sto}es for these items in the future. Take our Professional’s Favorite
No More Dust Wheet Cleaner, for example, which we launched in 2008.

Customer response to this product has been overwhelming because

there is no comparable item in the markeiplace. filling that need takes.

Quality and Variety to a Mm!e new leval!

Systematically meeting|customers’ needs is great, but as we're fond
of saying, we grow our, business one customer at a time, one trans-
action at a time. In 2006, Advance completed more than 230 milfion
customer transactions — which works out to mbre than seven every
second. With all that au:rr'vity, it's easy to see how a customer can
occasionally leave a wallet behind, or forget merchandise on the
counter, That's exactly, what happened at our store in Marietta,

Georgia, which prompted the attached customer compliment.

it would be easy to telfithe forgetful customer that the merchandise
they mistakenly left on the counter is stifl there, that our store is open
until 9 p.m., and that we'll keep the merchandise at the counter for
them. But it takes son"JLone special ... someone who embraces the
Five Basics of Customer Satisfaction (and then some) ... like Harold,
who offered to personally deliver the item to the customer. This
showed the customer that Harold (and by extension Advance} is caring,
committed to Legendary Customer Service and values the cusromé(’s

patronage.

“It is people that make‘ the difference,” the customer said in his letter

to us. We couldn't say'it better ourselves.
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|
In 2006, we took the “5" Basics of Sales
and Customer Satisfaction to new léve‘ls.

i

|
Perhaps most notably, we launched our Special Order Center, an in-store
kiosk that provides customers with access to more than 1 ms’!}ion incre-
mental items we never carried previously. These items include éverything
from accessorigs to salvage body parts. Importantly, the Special Order
Center establishes Advance as the “go-to” destination when c:usmmers

are looking for auto parts - no matter what part they possibly want. If it

exists, we can get it |

With all the years, makes, and models of vehicles on the road foday,
there are a dizzying number of parts custorners may need. That’s a
challenge in terms of inventory management. Yet it’s also a significant
competitive advantage since few companies have the ability to stock
alt that merchandise. Of course, we've always had parts for cars and
trucks. What about SUVs? No problem. Motorcycles? Definitely.
Snowmabiles, lawn mowers, and ATVS? You bet. We've got it all. This
high level of availability allows us to say “yes” to customers more
frequently than ever befare. Yes, we have that item. Yes, we can get

it for you. Yes, it’s the perfect fit for your vehicle.

in 2006, we also set a new record for store in-stock percentage. That

.. means customers who come to our stores can expect to find what

’ they're looking for. And in many cases, we also offer a choige among
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a value choice for econamy;—minded customers, a mid-grade option with
" : |
additional features, and a premium item with extra bells and whistles.
. o -
Superior parts availability and high in-stock levels further cement Advance’s

image as a go-to destination, no matter what proguct a customer needs.

In fact, impressive parts avaiiability is what prompted rﬁe complimentary

letter on the facing page. William at our store in Bolingbrook, iffinois,

perfectly me! the needs of 4 customer who needed help with his vehicle.

.Admer'/: ;
AutaFPartsle i

Using diagnostic equipment available at alf of our stores, William pin-
pointed the cusfomer’s issue, secured the right parts, and showed the
customer how to complete the job. That’s great service, even if the
customer was driving a run-of-the-mill car; conér’dermg the cdsromer

was driving a 34-foot motorhiomne, it was nothing short of legendary.

That experience led the|customer to consider whether we “have the
best customer service on earth.” That's one heck of a compliment,

and one we work hard to earn.

Meanwfulfe, we're always striving to take things to the next level. In 2007, you
can count on Agvance to expand parts availabilty further. We're adding more
vendors and products to our Special Order Cenler; we plan to grow our
store brands business through the mtroductfon of additional new products;

and we're identifying opportunities o expand our direct-import mix — provid-

ing customers with lower prices and higher quality. And we won't stop there.
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Growing the AdV&l\nce Way

With the right Team, and a commitment
fo customer satisfaction, it’'s predictable
that success will follow. When we get
the first two parts of the equation r:ight,
we see the results show up thrbugh
increased'sales and profits.

There’s no question 2006 didn't live up to our expectario?s from a

financial perspective, which brought even sharper focus to 'our Three
Basics of Profitability:
1. Proper Merchandising

[
|
|
2. Cost Control ‘
3. Shrink Control l

Given the tough environment we faced, it would have been easy to cut
|

back indiscriminately. Instead, we undertook a disciplined analysis, 10

Oetermine where we should continue investing for the future and where

b
we had opportunities to improve our cost structure. Our ovemclirng focus

was to ensure that any cost-control measures we r’mp.’ementeid didn't e,

impact our customers or our ability to continue growing. ‘

We installed time-delay safes in all of our stores, making rhem? safer
for our Team Members and customers, while also making
them less desirable to robbers; and we were pleased to
see that aln’}osr instantly upon rof-out, robberfes'
and césn fosses declined. We installed £\
energy-management Ssystems in more :

stores, which help reduce our consumption of

electricity and natural gas. We optimized our store-delivery process

and streamiined our store end-of-day process, both of which make our

“company more efficient, while saving labor and other resources. We

also refinanced our debt, which saves Advance more than $2.5 million
annually. These, and many other inftiatives, have helped Advance enter
2007 as a leaner company. This leaner cost struciure will enable us to

better weather ups and downs in the marketplace.

Meanwhile, our strang cash flow enables us 1o continue investing for the
future, a luxury that smaller, less well-financed competitors don't enjoy.
In 2008, we opened a record number of new stores, remodeled a record
number of existing stores, and continued adding commercial-delivery
programs. in September, pur growth reached new heights, when we
celebrated the opening of our 3,000th store in Salina, Kansas, a momen-
tous occasion in our company’s history. In November, we celebrated our
fifth year as a public company. During that five-year interval, Advancga
nearly doubled its store count, and emerged as a real leader in the auto
aftermarket. Along the way, we've grown our commercial sales to be a
31 billion business, begun paying a cash dividend to our stockhoiders,

and been named a member of the Fortune 500°.

it’s especially gratifying when stockholders, like the one who
sent us the attached letter, recognize that those accolades
and accompiishments don't just magically appear. Instead,
they're an outcome of our focus on having great
people and delivering Legendary Customer Service.

it's a focus we've had for 75 years, and it's a fecus

we'll always have. it's our roadmap to success.

it’s the Advance Way.
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Your 2006 Leadership Team ‘

The True Advance !Auto Parts Triangle

Our fogus on Team Members, customers and profitability pervades everything we do.
That focus is driven by our leaders, '\ who ensure Advance grows business by balancing
the “7,” the “5” and the “3”. That’sithe Advance Way.

.

f;‘w

: ﬁn; v,
T
Ll

. d\a{{ "

Executive Committes: Mike Coppola, Chairman, President and CEG; Jim Wade, EVP; Paul Klasing, EVP; Michael Moore, EVP, Dave Muelier, EVF; Elwyn Murray, EVP, Keith
Oreson, SVP Senlor Vica Presidents: Brandon Aches, Raiph Castanza, Rick Coro, Mike Fogarty, Jill Livesay, Don Lockard, Eric Margolin, Roy Martin, Geoff McCarty, Kurt
Schumacher, Ken Wirth, Randy Young Vice Presidents: Tom Belt, Adam Bergman, Mike Colean, Ken Dill, Scott Felts, Tammy Finigy, Jim Germann, Mark Hickman, Donna
Justiss, Thermon Knighten, Rich Moore, Jim Nerth, Mike Ofney, John Pere}rs, Geraldine Ryan, Lisa Saunders, John Seal, Vic Stewart, Gray Turner Regional Vice Presidents:
Lary Balte, Larry Boykin, Mike Cox, Anila Enfinger, Evander Gerald, Joe anzarez. John Gower, Lorne Hupp, Cliff Irby, Bob Lingsch, Tim MacKrell, Mike Mariani, Tom Merk,
Lynn Middletan, George Paugh, Justin Phillips, Joe Sterbank, Anthony Weatherly, Ed Woliski

|
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Management’s Respon31b111ty for

F 1nan01ia1 Statements

= Q7

Wk A It * i

The consolidated fmanma! statements and refated financial information presented in rhfs Annual Report have been prepared with integrity,

consistency and objectivily and are the responsibility of the management of Advance Auto Parts, Inc.t {the Company). The consolidated financial

. : 1
Statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generaily accepted in the United States of America and, as such, include

amounts based on management's best estimates and judgments. :

L - |
The Company’s qonsoﬁdated financial statements have been audited by the independent registered public accounting firm, Deloitte & Touche LLP
who conducted their audit' in accordance with the standards of the Public Compar'ry Accounting Oversight Board (United States). The independent
registered public accoanr;ng firm’s responsibility is 1o express an opinion as to whether such consoﬁéiared financial staterments present fairly, in
all material respects, the 'Campany's financial position, results of aperations and cash flows in accorbance with accounting principles generaﬂy
accepted in the United Stajtes of America.

I |

The Audit Committee of. the Board of Directors, consr"sﬁng solely of outside directors, meels ﬁerfodicaﬂy with members of Company
|

management, the Company's internal audit department and the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm to discuss

accounting, auditing, control and other financial reporting matters. The committee is responsibie for the oversight of the Company's inter-

nal audit department and independent registered public accounting firm.

|
i
The certifications of the Companys Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer required by Secnon 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
are filed as exhibits 31.1 and 31.2, respectively, in its Form 10-K filed on February 28, 2007 with the Securrtres and Exchange Commission. In
1)
addition, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer has certified to the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) mat he is not aware of any viglation by the
' 1

Company of the NYSE corporate governance listing standards.

|

b

i |

Michael N. Coppola ) " Michael 0. Moore i
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer Executive Vice President, Chief H’nanciaf Officer
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS .
|
Certain statements in this report are "forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the" Securities Exchange Act of 1934, which are usually identified by the
use of words such as "will," "anticipates,” "believes," "estimates,” "expects,” "projects,” "forecasts,” "plans,"
"intends,” "should" or similar expressions. We intend those forward-locking statements to be covered by thé safe
harbor provisions for forward-looking statements contained in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995

and are included in this statement for purposes of complying with these safe harbor provisions.

These forward-looking statements reﬂect:current views about our plans, strategies and prospects, which are
based on the information currently available a;nd on current assumptions.

Although we believe that our plans, inteh'tions and expectations as reflected inor suggested by those forward-
looking statements are reasonable, we can give no assurance that the plans, intentions or expectations will be
achieved. Listed below and discussed elsewhere in this report are some important risks, uncertainties and
contingencies which could cause our actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different from the
forward-looking statements made in this report. These risks, uncértainties and contingencies include, but are not
limited to, the following: !

. . - . l
¢ ‘the implementation of our business 'st;rategies and goals;

*  our ability to expand our business; |

e competitive pricing and other competitive pressures;

. . adecrease in demand for our products

e the occurrence of natural disasters and/or extended periods of unfavorable weather

e  our ability to obtain affordable msuraince against the financial impacts of natural disasters;
e the availability of suitable real estate locations;

¢ our overall credit rating; ’ Jl '

» deterioration in general economic conditions;

e  our ability to attract and retain qualified team members;
e integration of acquisitions; .

* our relationship with our vendors; t

e  ouf involvement as a defendant in litigation or incurrence of judgments, fines or legal costs;
e adherence to the restrictions and covénants imposed under our revolving credit facility;

e acts of terrorism; and ! L

e other statements that are not of historical fact made throughout this report, including in the sections entitled
“Business,” “Managemem s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operanons
and "Risk Factors." i
We assume no obligations to update publicly any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise. In evaluating forward-looking statements, you should consider these risks and
uncertainties, together with the other risks described from time to time in our other reports and decuments filed with

the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, and you should not place undue reliance on those statements,
| .
b * T
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Item l Business.; e . I

LIS n“ S 6

Unless the context otherwise requires, “Advance,” “we, our,” and similar tfl:rms referito Advance Auto Parts,
Inc,, its predecessor, its subsidiaries and their respective operations. Our fiscal year cons:sts of 52 or 53 weeks ending on
the Saturday closest to December 31 of each year. F:scal 2003 included 53 weeks of operattons All other fiscat years
presented mcluded 52 weeks.of operations. © - 0 e oLt Sy L . .ﬁ e Tt . -
. RV LAV R I ' P R I T S . ,

Overwew 1t S ¢ .

_ e We prtmartly operate within the Umted States automotive aﬂermarket mdustry,.whtch mcludes replacement
parts (excludmg ttres) accessories, maintenance items, batteries and automotive chemtcals for cars and light trucks
{pickup trucks, vans minivans and sport utility vehicles). We currently are the second largest specialty retailer of |,
automotive parts, accessories and maintenance items to "do-it- yourself,” or DIY, and “do-it-for-me”, or DIFM,
customers in the United States, based on store count and sales. . I
We were formed in 1929 as Advance Stores Company, lncorporated and operated as a retailer of general

merchandise until the 1980s. During the 19803 we sharpened our focus to target sales of automotive parts and

accessories to DIY customers. From the 19805 {o the present, we have grown mgmﬁcantly as a result of strong
comparable store sales growth new store openings and strategtc acqutsmons Since 1996 we have aggressively
expanded our sales to DIFM customers through our commercial deltvery program. The. Company was incorporated
in 2001 in conjunction with the acquisition of Discount Auto Parts, Inc., or DISCOI.II‘I[] More recently in 2005, we

acquired Autopart Intemattonal lnc orAL .. . . : : } -
o R TR . ' | L -

Our lnternet address 15 www AdvanceAutoParts.com. We make available free of charge through our Intemet
website our annual rep(;ﬂs on Form 10-K, quartérly reports on Fonn 10-0), current repons on Form 8-K and
amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to the Secunttes Exchange Act of 1934 as soon as
reasonably practlcable aﬂer we electromcally file such matena] with, or furmsh itto; the SEC.

Operating Segments o

vy PR A O AR TS B B M P | .} U erw e iy

We conduct our operat:ons in two reportab]e segments Advance‘Auto Parts, or AAP and Al The AAP
segment is compnsed of our store operatlons within the United States, Puerto Rico and the Vlrgm Islands which
operate under the trade names “Advancé Alito Parts,” “Advance Discount Auto Parts and “Westem Auto.” The Al
segment consists solely of the operations of Autopart International, which continues to opérate asan mdependent
whol]y owned subs:dlaly ) .I .

U | I e T e e et ST
it
Financial mformat:on onr‘our segments is mcluded in Item 7. Managemenr s Discussion’ and Analym of
Finandial Condition and Réstlts of Opérations, of this "Anrival Report on Form 10- KJf In addition.’ selected ﬁnanctal
data for our segments is available in Note 20, Segment and Related Information, of the Notes to Consolidated " '™
Financial Statements, mcluded in ltem 15. Exhrbrts Fmancm! Smtemem Schedtrt'es of thls Annual Report on

Form 10-K. t " ' .

AAP Segment o ' "‘ Ao
c.Fo 2 Lo o "'ﬁ-

At December 30, 2006, we operated 2,995 stores within the United States, Pueno Rico and the Virgin islands.”
We operated 2,958 stores throughout 40 states in the Northedstern, Southeastern and ‘Mtdwestern regions of the '~ °
United States. These stores operated under thes“Advance Auto Parts” trade name except for certain stores in the ! °
state of Florida, which operated under the *Advance Discount Auto Parts” trade namé These stores offer a broad
selection of brand name and proprietary aiitomotive replacement parts, accessories and maintenance itéms for
domestic and imported cars and light trucks, with no sngmﬁcant concentration in any specd' ic product area, In
addition, we operated 37 stores under the “Western Auto and “Advance Auto Parts” trade names; located prrmanly'r%
in Puerto Rico and'the Virgin Islands. The Western Auto stofés offet automotive tirés and service in addition to
automotive parts, accessories and maintenance items. |

|
i
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We also provide our customers online shopping and access to over one million stock keeping units, or SKUs.
Our online site allows our customers to pick up merchandise at a conveniently located store or have their purchase
shipped directly to their home or business.

AAP Store Operations :

Qur stores generally are located in freestandmg bulldmgs in areas with high vehicle traffic counts, good visibility
and easy access to major roadways. Our stores typically range in size from 5,000 to 10,000 square feet. The size of our
new stores is generally 7.000 square feet. All stores have a base SKU offering while certain stores may have a more
expansive SKU offering as follows:

Type of Store i Description SKU Offering
. A . .
Base - . lncludFs base SKU offering 16,000
Hub / Underear ¢ Provides customized assortment of merchandise in a
central:zed market location specifically identified based 16,600 — 18,000

on the demand within an individual market
e Benefits all our DIY and DIFM customers within the
market

1
Local Area Warehouse e LAW concept utilizes existing space in selected stores to

(LAW) ensure the availability of a customized assortment in 24,600 - 28,000

addition to hub and undercar assortments to other stores
served by LAW
¢ Product is available on a same day basis to stores served

by LAW

To ensure our stores have the right product at the right time, we also utilize a network of Parts Delivered Quickly, or
PDQ®, facilities and one Master PDQ facility. Our PDQ® and Master PDQ® network of facilities provide our
customers an additional assortment of over 80,000 harder-to-find parts and accessories on a same-day or overnight basis.
In addition, we launched our Special Order C,enter in 2006, an in-store kiosk providing customers with access to more
than one million incremental SKUs. | ‘

Store team members utilize our proprietary point-of-sale system, including a fully integrated electronic parts catalog
to identify and suggest the appropriate quality and price options for the SKUs that we carry, as well as the related
products, tools or additional information that is required by our customers to complete their autometive repair projects
properly and safely.

. i +
Replacement parts sold at our stores include an extensive number of applications of those parts including:
|

Automotive filters Starters _ CV shafts Suspension parts
Radiators Alternators Spark splugs Engines

Brake pads . Batteries : Transmission parts Transmissions
Fan belts Shock absorbers " Clutches

Radiator hoses Struts i . Electronic ignition components.

In addition to'parts and accessories, we also provide a variety of services free of charge to our customers including:

A | ' :
Battery installation . “How-To” Project Kiosks Electrical system testing
Wiper installation “How-To™ Video Clinics Oil and battery recycling
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Qur retail stores are 100% company operated and are divided into geographic areas. A senior vice president, who is
supported by five to six regional vice presidents, manages each area of retail slores“ Division managers report to the
regional vice presidents and have direct respons:blllty for store operanons ina spec1ﬁc division, which typically consists
of 10 10 14 stores.. Depending on store size and sales volumie, each store is staffed by 10 to 20 team members under the
leadership of a store manager. Our stores generalty are open from 7:30 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. six days a week and 9:00 a.m. to
9:00 p.m. on Sundays and most holidays to meet the needs of our DIY and DIFM customers. We continue to increase
the number of our stores which remain open until midnight or in some cases 24 hou}s per day.

Commercial Sales . ‘ .o . L I

In addition to the in-store customer service provided to our D1Y customers, we also mamtam a commermal sales
team dedicated to the development of our commercial business and the support of our DIFM customers. Since 1996, we
have aggressively expanded our sales to DIFM customers through our commercial ldellvery program. Sales to DIFM
customers represented approximately 23% of our AAP sales in 2006 and consisted of sales to both walk-in commercial
customers and sales delivered to our commercial customers’ place of business, mciudmg independent garages, service
stations and auto dealers. At December 30, 2006, we had 2,439 AAP stores with commerc1al delivery programs, or 81%
of total AAP stores. i

A vice president has the responsibility of the strategic growth of the commercial. program through the development
of commercial programs and commercial marketing and merchandising initiatives with the continued focus on getting
our DIFM customers to use us as their “first call” supplier. Additionally, each of our four area senior vice presidents has
a director of commercna! sales that concentrates solely on strategic and tactical commercnal sales growth opportunities.
Each director leads four to five area commercial sales managers. Division commercial sales managers report directly to
our area commercial sales managers and, similar to our retail divigion managers,!they are directly responsible for
commercial sales and operations in éach division. We also target DIEM customers through our commercial markeung
efforts in all our retail stores, including those that do not offer a delivery service. "f

Total AAP Stores’™ o ) o ) { -

Qur 2,995 AAP stores wel""e']pcated in the following states and territories at ‘Decen:'nlbér_ 30, 2006:
' It

Number of Number of A Number of

Location Stores Location Stores 'I Location Stores
Alabama e ' i14 - Maryland . - 72 Ok]ahoma ' ' 18
Arkansas ' © 35 -Massachusetts ' "46 Pennsylvama 153
California ‘ 1 Michigan o 71 Puei}m Rico - ' 34
Colorado o 33 Minnesota ' 16 Rhode Island 6
Connecticut = °* 30 _Missis;sippi _ 54  South Carolina 119
Delaware ? "5 Missouri ' 39 South Dakota T
Florida . 441  Nebraska I8 Tedhessee 142
Georgia ' 213 New Hampshire 9 Texhs 125
lilinois 73 New Mexico 1 Ver{‘nont ‘ . 7
Iowa . : .26 Newlersey 44 Vlrgm Islands ! 2
Indiana | 90 New York 111 Virginia . S 163
Kansas .. - . ~ 26  North Carolina 213 West Virginia - . 64
Kentucky - . 86  North Dakota S 4 Wiéiconsin 1 43
Louisiana . 58 © Ohio. : 170 Wyoming - -2
Maine 11 S I ' '

[}

The following table sets forth information concerning increases in the total number of our AAP stores during
the past five years: . )
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e 2006 2005 2004 - 2003 - . . 2002
‘Beginning Stores *" ‘ 2810 2,652 7 2,539 2435 C 2484
New Stores S0 . 169, % s i@
Stores Closed ) (1) A2)- « « @21 . (159)

Ending Stores : 2995 | - 2810 @ 2652 ' 2539 - 2435

) Does not include stores that opened as relobations of previously existing stores within the same gene'ral market area
or substantial renovations of stores. :
@ Jncludes2 and 7 stores not operating at December 30,2006 and December 31,2005, respectrvely, prlmanly due to
hurricane damage. ~ ' - -
@ Includes 57 stores acqutred during the thitd and fourth quarters of fiscal 2002 as a result of our Trak Auto Parts
acquisition. f
s Includes 133 stores closed as a result of orltr integration of the Discount operatrons

+ . t- Hot iy

Store Systems [ IR
i

Our store based information systems, Wthh are designed to improve the ‘efficiency of our operatlons and
enhance’customer service, are comprised of propnetary point-of-sale, or POS, electronic parts catalog, or EPC
store-level mventory management and standard operatmg procedure, or SOP, systems. Additionally, we support our
store- Ievel operattons with a proprietary ]abor schedulmg system known as management plannmg and trammg, or
MPT: These systems are tightly integrated and together provrde real-time, comprehensrve information to store and
merchandtsmg personnel, resulting in 1mproved customer service, levels team member productrvrty and in- stock

availability. | . .

| . . ' Cat e

Point-of-Sale. Our POS system, or APAL, is in all of our stores operating under the “Advance Auto Parts”,
"Advance Discount Auto Parts” and “Western lAuto” trade names. Information maintained by APAL is used to
formulate pricing, marketmg and merchandlsmg strategies and to replenish inventory accurately and rapidly. APAL
is designed to improve ciistomer checkout timé and decrease the time required to train newly hired team members,
In addition, APAL provides additional custombr purchase history, which may be used for customer demographic
analysts : [

R i . - e e -

. Electronic Parts Camlog Our enhanced EPC system which is fully mtegrated with APAL, is a software system
that enables our store team members to 1dentrfy millions of application uses for automotive parts and accessories.
The EPC system enables store team members to assist our customers in their parts selection and ordering based on .
year, make, model and engine type of their vehicles, Our centrally based EPC data management system enab]es us to
reduce the time needed to exchange data with our vendors and ultlmately catalog and deliver updated, accurate
product information. If a hard-to-find part or accessory is not available at one of our stores, the EPC system can
determine whether the part is carried and in-stock through our PDQ® system Available parts and accessories are
then ordered electronically from another store, |LAW PDQ® or Master PDQ® wrth immediate confirmation of pnce

avarlabﬂaty and estimated delrvery time. l

¥

+

Qur EPC system also contains enhanced sbarch engines and user-friendly navigation tools that enhance our
team members” ability to look up any needed parts as weil as additional products the customer needs to compléte’ *
their automotive repair project. While we believe this generally leads to an increase in average sales per transaction,
we believe these components will enhance our'customers’ shopping experience with us and help them accurately -
complete the repair job the first time, saving them time and money. Additionally, information about a customer's
automobile can be entered into a permanent customer database that can be accessed immediately whenever the 4,
customer visits or telephones one of our stores,

Store-Level Inventory Management SystenL. Our store-level inventory management system provides real:time
inventory tracking at the store level. With the store-level system, store team members can check the quantity of on- -
hand inventory for any SKU, adjust stock levels for select items for store specific events, automatically process
returns and defective merchandise, designate SKUs for cycle counts and track merchandise transfers. Our stores use

;
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radio frequency hand-held devices to help ensure the accuracy of our inventory. | l

Standard Operating Procedures. Our SOP system is a web-based, electronic d:i1ta management system that
allows our team members instant and quick access to any of our standard operating procedures through a
comprehensive on-line search function. ‘ .

Store Support Center I

i

Merchandising ! : - : li : . . .

Virtually all of our merchandise is selected and purchased for our stores by team members at our ccmrahzed .
store support center in Roanoke, Virginia. In 2006, we purchased merchandise from over 400 vendors, with no
single vendor accounting for more than 6% of purchases. Our purchasing strategy 1n|volves‘ncgouatmg multi-year -
agreements with certain vendors, which allows us to achieve more favorable terms plnd pricing: ' .

Our merchandising team is currently led by a group of seven senior professionals, who have an average of 22
years of automotive purchasing experience and 27 years in retail. The merchandising team is skilled in sourcing high
quality products globally and maintaining consistent inventory levels, The merchanfhsmg team has developed strong
vendor relationships in the industry and, in a collaborative effort with our vendor partners utilizes a highly effective
category management process. We believe this process, which develops a customer, focused business plan for each
merchandise category, improves comparable store salcs gross margin and inventory turns, - ' ¢

Our merchandlsmg strategy is to.carry a broad selection of hlgh quallty brand name automotive parts and
accessories such as Bosch®, Castrol®, STP®, Prestone®, Monroe®, Bendix® Purolator . Dayco® and Trico®, which
generates DIY customer traffic and also appeals to commercnal customers. ln addmon to these branded products we
stock a wide selection of high quality proprietary products that appeal to value consc:ous customers. These lines of
merchandise include everything from chemical and wash-and-wax 1p}:‘oducts to tools! battencs parts and mtenor
automotive accessories under the names of Professional’s Favorite' ™, Joe’s Garage!}”, Mechanic’s Choice™, Auto
Xprcssm, AutocraﬁT".', Endurance™ and Wearever™. 1

Sales of replacement parts account for a majority of our net sales and typicaily generate higher gross margins
than maintenance items or general accessories. We customize our replacement part m1x based on a merchandising
program designed to optimize 1nventory mix at each individual store. The custom aSsortment is based on that store’s
historical and projected sales mix coupled with regionally specific customer needs. j' '

Supply Chain ' - : !'

Our supply chain consists of centralized 1nventoxy management and transportatlon functlons which support a
logistics network of distribution centers, PDQ® warehouses and stores. Our i mventory management team utilizes a
replenishment system, or E-3, to monitor the distribution center, PDQ® warehouse and store inventory levels and
order additional product when appropriate while streamlining costs associated wilhithc handling of that product. E-3
utilizes the most up-to-date information from our point-of-sale system as well as inventory movement forecasting
based upon history, sales trends by SKU, seasonality and demographic shifis in dcm'and E-3 combines these factors
with service level goals, vendor lead times and cost of inventory assumptions to detenmne the timing and size of
purchase orders. A significant portion of our purchase orders are sent via electronic data: mterchange with the
remainder being sent by computer generated e- mall or facmmlle : r| ! :

Our transportation team utilizes a transportation management system for efficiently managing incoming
shipments to the distribution centers and stores. Benefits from this system include reduced vendor to distribution
center freight costs, visibility of purchase orders and shipments for the entire supplyl chain, a reduction in
distribution center inventory, or safety stock; due to consistent transit times, decreased third party freight and billing
service costs, decreased distribution center to store freight costs and higher store in- stock position.

We currently operate eight distribution centers. All of these distribution centerslare equipped with our
distribution management system, or DCMS. Qur DCMS provides real-time mvento'ry tracking through the
processes of receiving, picking, shipping and replenishing at our distribution ccnters The DCMS, integrated with
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technologically advanced material handling equipment, significantly reduces warehouse arid distribiition costs, while
improving efficiency. This equipment includes carousels, “pick-to light” systems, robotic picking, radio frequency
technology, voice technology and automated sorting systems. Through the continued implémentation of our supply
chain initiatives. we expect to further.increase the efficient utilization of our distribution capacity. We believe our .
current capacity will allow us to support in excess of 3,400 stores. Subsequent.to December 30, 2006, the Company
announced its plan to build a new distributionicenter in Indiana scheduled to open in mid-2008.

! v ‘ ‘\""‘-«.

We currently offer over 58,000 SKUs to substantially support all of our retail stores via our 13 stand-atone

PDQ® warehouses and/or our eight distribution centers (all of which stock PDQY items). Stores have visibility to !
inventory in their respective facilities and canfplace orders to these facilities, or as an alternative, through an online
ordering system (o virtually any of the other facilities, :Ordered parts are delivered to’ substanuaily all stores on a
same day of next day basis through our dedicated PDQ® trucking fleet and third party carriers. Store inventories are
replenished from our eight distribution centers. In addition, we operate a PDQ® warchouse' that stocks over 50,000 .
incremental SK Us of harder-to-find automotive parts and accessories. This facility is known as the “Master PDQ®“
warehouse and utilizes existing PDQ® distribution infrastructure and/or third party arrangements to provrde next day

serv1ce to substantially al} of our stores. » oo EENTRNTE o R e
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We have an extensive advemsmg program desrgned to communicate our merchandise offermgs product 1
assortment, competitive prices, free services' a'nd commitment to customer service. The program is focused on.-
establishing Advance Auto Parts as the solution for a customer's automotive needs. We utilize a mix of media that
reinforces our brand image; including television, radio, print, promottonal s:gnage and outdoor med1a plus our
proprletary in-store television network and internet site.o. ", + ¢ - e T I B
v "l 'F' t ) . " LI o 1 * ) | l" . . i fa T
OurI advemsmg plan is a brand- butldmg program built around television and radio advertising. The plan is '
supported by print'and in-store signage. Our television advertising is a combination of national and regional media
in both sports and entertainment programming. Radio advertising, which is used as a supplementary medium, ¢
generally airs during peak drive times. We also sponsor sporting events, racing teams.and other events at all levels in
a grass-roots effort to positively impact individual communities, including Hispanic and other ethnic commumtles
to create awareness and'drive traffic for. our stbres .o O T S T P T A S
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. Since early 2(}03 we supported our new advertlsmg campaign, “We’re ready in Advance” throughout all of our,
medla We believe this advertising campaign dlfferenttates Advance Auto Parts in the customer’s mind by &+ -+ - ¢
positioning us as both a source for brand name auto parts and accessories at low prices and as a resource for expert
advice and useful tips to help customers keep their vehicles running smoothly. The campaign includes creative and -
compelling television and radio commercials designed to drive sales and bUIld an enduring, posmve image of
Advance Auto Parts as a special placetoshopr -~ . . . o oL e e ‘ .
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‘Since 2004, we have built upon the campargn through an mtegrated consumer education program. This program
is intended to build our image as not only the source for product, but also the best resource for vehicle maintenance:
information: Our free brochure kiosk dlsplaymg "We're ready with answers" and our free monthly video clinic .
broadcasts on Advance. TV; our exclusive in- _store how-to nétwork, are just two elements of this growing program.
We believeiwe will differentiate our stores.from our competitors' by providing our customers valuable information
regarding "why-to" and “how-to" perform’ regular maintenance on their vehicles, in order.to enhance their vehicles'
performance, reliability, safety and appearance Our goal with this.initiative is to continue our long-term-brand.+. -
building success, increase customer loyalty and expand our customer base.

L R A L L

f ‘ . .
L e ' R A N

L] 4 " * "I“‘

AISeg'ment J P R . A L B Ty

S Hew ., . ' , e

.. We' acqutred AI in September 2005. The acquisition; which mcluded 61 stores throughout New England and '
New York, a distribution center and Al’s wholesale distribution business, complements.our'growing presence in the
DIFM market in the Northeast. |

[T [T ! " 1 Jali
AY’s business primarily serves the: commercral market from its store locatrons In addmon its North American .
Sales Division services warehouse distributors and jobbers throughout North-America, We believe Al providesa .
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high level of service to its commercial customers by providing quality parts, unsurpa

ssed customer service and

efficient parts delivery. As a result of its extensive sourcing network, Al is able to serve its customers in search of
replacement parts for both domestic and imported cars and light trucks with a greater focus on imported parts. T he
vast majonty of Al’s product is sold under its proprietary brand. The Al stores offer} an average of 9, 500 SKUs wtth

access Lo an addmonal 14 000 unlque SKUs through its* |0ngthS network

P

At Decettiber 30 20006, we operated 87 stores under the “Autopart Internatlonal’
states throughout the Northeast ' '
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’ trade natie in the followmg

Ty

R h Number of ) oo l\lumber of o L Number of
Location ' Stores . Location . Stores 1| Location Stores
' L RIS AT ", AR, ; ' .
Connecticut 17 New Hampshire 8 Rhode Island 4
Maine . 5 New York 19  Vermont 4 w1yl
Massachusetts 33 l '
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The following table sets forth information concerning increases in the total num
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o by Sr o ..

2005

s 2006
_Begmmng Stores ) e 620 .o L
- New Stores . DRYAR 25. apr 620, 0 .
‘Stores Closed L Co el
E_ndi_ng“.Store's;‘;' ' - 87 ;' 62 5 |

1

Of the 62 new stores in 2005 61 stores were acqulred in September 2005 as
- A *!,, !
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Seasonality' ’
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Our busmess is somewhat ‘seasonal in nafuré, with the htghest sales occlrring in

T Y v r
ber of our Al stores:
L [ 3 4

l
-
j
l
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a result of our Al acqutsmon

L
r

the spring and summer months.

i b
In addition, our biisine$s can be affected by weatlier conditions. While unusually” heavy precipitation tends fo soften
sales as elective mamtenance is deferred dunng such penods extremely hot or cold weather tends to enhance sales

by caiising automotlve parts to fail at an accelerated rate ¢
e G

Team Members

T

Lt T

At February 26,2007, we employed 25,489 full-timé team méimbers and 18,283
workforce consisted of 87% of our team members employed in store-level operatlon‘

O T i
part-time team membeérs. Our
9% employed in dtstrlbutlon

and 4% employed in our corporate offices. We have never experienced any labor dtsruptron and are not party to’ any

collective bargaining agreements. We believe that our team member relattons are good

1

.
i

We allocate substantlal resources to the recruiting, training and retention of tean

r
-4

S
members. Our performance

management process allows-us to al:gn eich team member’s goals with our corporate strategtc goals. we believe

this program provtdes us with a well-trained, productlve workforce that is commltted
service and assures a quahﬁed team to support future growth R '
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Trade Names, Servrce Marks and Trademarks

¥ NI . K

We own'a number of trade namés and own and have fe’derally‘ registered several
including “Advance ‘Auto Parts,” “Western Auto,” “Parts Ameérica,” “Autopart Intern

S

l-;

to hlgh levels of eustomer :

P 1) o J N
sérvice marks and trademarks,
ational” and “PDQ” for use in

j
connection with the automotive parts retailing business. In addition; we own and havle régistéred a number of
trademarks for our proprietary products. We believe that these trade names, service marks and trademarks are

important to our merchandising strategy. We do not know of any mfnnglng uses thatl

of these trade names and marks, and we actwely defend and enforce them : l
BRI T . . ¢ .

L LN [T

P .
. o
o,

would materlally affect’ the use




Competition

Our primary competitors are both national and regional retail chains of automotive parts stores, including
AutoZone, Inc., O'Reilly Automotive, Inc., CSK Auto Corporatlon and The Pep Boys—Manny, Moe & Jack,
discount stores and mass merchandisers that carry automotive products, wholesalers or jobber stores, including those
associated with national parts distributors or assomatlons such as NAPA and Carquest, independent operators and
automobile dealers that supply parts. We believe that chains of automotive parts stores that, like us, have multiple
focations in one or more markets, have competmve advantages in customer service, marketing, inventory selection,
purchasing and distribution as compared to 1qdependent retailers and jobbers that are not part of a chain or
associated with other retailers or Jobbers The principal competitive factors that affect our business include store
location, availability, customer service and product offerings, quality and price.

!
Environmental Matters i

We are subject to various federal, state and local laws and governmental regulations relating to the operation of
our business, including those governing recycling of batteries and used lubricants, and regarding ownership and
operation of real property. We handle hazardous materials as part of our operations, and our customers may also use
hazardous materials on our properties or bring hazardous materials or used oil onto our properties. We currently
provide collection and recycling programs for used automotive batteries and used lubricants at all of our stores as a
service to our customers. Pursuant to agreements with third party vendors, used batteries and lubricants are collected
by our team members, deposited into vendor supplied containers or pallets and stored by us until collected by the
third party vendors for recycling or proper drsposal Persons who arrange for the disposal, treatment or other
handling of hazardous or toxic substances may be liable for the costs of removal or remediation at any affected
disposal, treatment or other site affected by such substances. ‘

\ .

We own and lease real property. Under var1ous environmental laws and regulations, a current or prev1ous owner
or operator of real property may be liable for ‘the cost of removal or remediation of hazardous or toxic substances on,
under or in such property. These laws often impose joint and several liability and may be imposed without regard to
whether the owner or operator knew of, or was responsible for, the release of such hazardous or toxic substances.
Other environmental laws and common law prmcrples also could be used to impose liability for releases of
hazardous materials into the environment or work place, and third parties may seek recovery from owners or
operators of real properties for personal i mjury or property damage associated with exposure to released hazardous
substances. From time to time, we receive notlces from the Environmental Protection Agency and state
environmental authorities indicating that there may be contamination on properties we own, lease or operate or may
have owned, leased or operated in the past or,on adjacent properties for which we may be responsible. Compliance
with these laws and regulations has not had a material impact on our operations to date.

J

Growth Strategy ' o ,
[

Our growth strategies consist of the following:l

Increase Our Average Sales per Store. lrﬁ 2006, our average sales per AAP store reached an industry leading
level of $1.55 million per store. We plan to contmue mcreasmg our average sales per store by, among other things:
(1) improving store execution with a focus on customer service; (2) execution of our category management program;
(3) continued maturation of our sales mmatwes for our DIY customers including local purchase ordering, factory
direct ordering, salvage body parts and our custom mix (store specific merchandise assortment); (4) the
implementation of our 2010 store remodeling program, with now more than 65% of our chain remodeled and
targeting a total of 150 AAP stores to be remodeled annually; () consistent growth and execution of our
commercial program, including optimization of delivery vehicles; (6) enhanced merchandising and marketmg
programs and {7) focus on making our supply chain more responsive.

FExpand Our Operating Margin. ln addmon to dnvmg operating margin expansion through increased average
sales per store and continued comparable store sales growth, we will continue to focus on increasing margins by:
{1) improving our purchasing efficiencies with vendors; (2) utilizing our supply chain infrastructure and existing
distribution network to optimize our inventory mix and maximize distribution capacity; (3) controlling our operating




!
expenses, including an examination of both corporate and store-level and (4) contlnumg to lmplement our category

management and custom mix initiatives and increase direct importing, including the expansmn of our private label
and proprietary brands in our AAP stores

' .
L

Increase Free Cash Flow. We have generated free cash flow over the last five years Our strategy is to invest
back into our business to drive further progress towards our four financial goals. We look to deploy additional cash
in the most optimal way to increase sharehoider value, which has included stock repurchases and selective
acquisitions and more recently cash dividends. |

Increase Return on Invested Capital. We believe we can increase our return oniinvested capital by increasing
our average sales per store and our margins. We believe we can also increase our return on invested capital by
leveraging our supply chain initiatives to increase sales faster than inventory growth) implementing a lower cost
store remodel program and selectively expanding our storé base primarily in existing markets. Based on our
experience, such in-market openings provide higher returns on our invested capital by enabling us to leverage our. ’
distribution infrastructure, marketing expenditures and local management resources. We intend to open 200 to 210
AAP and Al stores primarily in existing markets in 2007. ‘ Cy '

Industry - : :

The United States automotive aftermarket industry is generally grouped into two major categories: DIY and
DIFM. According to the Automotive Aftermarket Industry Association, or AAIA, the DIY category represents an
approximate $35 billion market with sales to consumers who maintain and repair vehrc]es themselves. 'Per the
AAIA, the DIFM category represents an approximate $75 billion market with sales|to professional installers, such as
independent garages, service stations and auto dealers. DIFM parts and services are typlcally offered to vehicle
owners who are less inclined to repair their vehicles themselves. The DIFM category includes an approximate $36
billion market which includes dealer purchases directly from the original equipment manufacturers.

[
0 ¥

We believe the United States automotive aftermarket industry will benefit from several favorable trends,
including the: i

*-  increasing number and age of vehicles in the United States, increasing number of miles driven annually,
and increasing number of cars coming off of warranty, particularly prevmusly leased vehicles;

s  higher cost of replacement parts as a result of technological changes n recent models of vehicles and
increasing number of light trucks and sport utility vehicles that require more expensive parts, resulting in
higher average sales per customer, |

]

* moveto hlgher priced premium parts, which offer enhanced features, beneﬁts and/or Warrantles and

s continued consolidation of automotive aftermarket retaliers

s market share growth opportunities for specialty retailers relative to other channels selling similar .
merchandise.

Item 1A. Risk Factors. : . -
i - H
Risks Relating to Our Business I
We may not be ahle to successfully implement our business strategy, including increasing comparable store
sales, enhancing our margins and increasing our return on invested capltal whlch could adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of operations. . r

1
1

We have implemented numerous initiatives to increase comparable store sales; Ienhance our margins and
increase our return on invested capital in order to increase our earnings and cash flow. If these initiatives are
unsuccessful, or if we are unable to implement the initiatives efficiently and effectively, our business, financial
condition and results of operations could be adversely affected. "

o .

Successful implementation of our business strategy also depends on factors specific to the retail automotive

parts industry and numerous other factors that may be beyond our control. Adverselichanges in the following factors

10
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could undermine our business strategy:
a WD te . Tt 7

general ‘economic conditions and'dbi:iditibns" in our'local markets, which could'reduee our sales;

the competitive environment in the automotive aftermarket parts and accessories retail sector that may

, force us to reduce prices beyond our, normal control or increase promotional spending; .

. changes n the automotive af’termarket parts‘ manufacturmg mdustry, such as consolidation Wl‘llCh may
disrupt or, sever one or more of our vendor relanonships .

our ab:lity to anticipate and meet changes in consumer preferences for automotive produets accessories
and services in a timely manner; and

e . our continued ability to hire and retam qualifi ed personnel, which depends in part on the types of recruiting,
,,traimng, compensation and beneﬁt programs we adopt or mamtam S e,

’

We will not be able to expand our. busmess |f our growth strategy is not successful which could neganvely
impact our ﬁnancml results. a {

.- v T . - .
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We have mcreased our store count SIgmfieantly from 1, 567r stores at the end of l998 o3, 082 stores at .-
December 30, 2006. We intend to continue to:expand our base of stores as part of our growth strategy, primarily by
opening new stores. There can be no assurance that the implementation of this strategy will be successful. The actual
number of new stores to be opened and their success will depend on a number of factors, including, among other
things:, . . ] L . -

L. ! Ly ,<'l Y., T 1, [ ks o

s ., our ability to manage the expansion and hire, tram and retaln qualn" ed sales assoc1ates

.o . the availability of potential store locations in highly visible, well-trafficked areas; and S

o - the negotiation of acceptable lease op purchase terms for new locations. - v _= - S

R . ’ - - b . . f - \ . ' RO

There can be no assurance that we will be able to open and operate new-stores on a timely or sufficiently
profitable basis or that opening new stores in rfnarkets we already serve will not harm existing store profitability or
comparable store sales. The newly opened,and existing stores’ profitability will depend on our ability.to properly
merchandise, market and price the products required in their respective markets. e

Furthermore, we may acquire stores or busmesses from, make investments in, or.enter into strategic alliances
with, companies: that have stores or dlstnbuuon networks in.our current markets or in areas into which we intend to
expand our presence. Any future acquisitions, nnvestments strategic alliances or related efforts will be accompanied
by risks, includlng ) . i o . .

L X v

the difficulty of identifying appropriate strategic partners or acqmsttlon cand:dates
the difficulty of assimilating and mtegratmg the operations of the respective’ entitiés;’
"ithe potential disruption to our ongomg business and diversion of our management's attention;
the inability to maintain uniform standards, controls, procedures and'policies; and . '
the impairment of relationships with team members and customers as a result of changes in management.

|

We cannot assure you that we will be successful in overcoming these risks or any other problems encountered

with these acquisitions, investments, strategic alliances or related efforts.
l ! ’ STy v
If overall demand for products sold by our stores slows, our business, ﬁnancial condition and results of
operatwns will suffer.. s b o a. el twblel L e
FEN PO b P . o l . T R S Tl ] v [EERAY
Overall demand for products sold by our stores depends on many factors and may slow for any'numberof ¢ -,
reasons, including: ' )
i , T . a . ot Y
e the weather, as vehicle maintenance may be deferred during.periods of unfavorable wealher e ot
" the economy, as during periods of good economic conditions, more of our DIY customers may pay others °
to repair and maintain their cars |nstead of working on their 6wn cars. In periods of declining economic: 't
conditions, both DIY and DIFM custorners may defer vehicle maintenance or repair; and

e the declme of the avérage age of velnc]es miles driven ¢ or number of cars on the'road may result ina’
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reduction in the demand for our product offerings.

il
|
[

If any of these factors cause overall demand for the products we sell to decline, Qour busmess ﬁnanma] condmon‘
and results of operattons w1l| suffer

TeAr ' _;. "

: " " . iHore o N -
We depend on the services of many qualified team members and may not be able to attract and retain such
qualified team members. ‘

. . B
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Our success depends to a s:gmﬁcant extent on the contmued serwces and e\(perlence of our many team
members. At February 26, 2007, we employed 43,772 team members. We cannot assure you that we will be'able to
retain our current qualified team members as well as attract and retain additional quaillﬁed teamn members that may
be needed in the future. Our ability to maintain an adequate number of qualified-12am members is highly dependent
on an attractwe and competmve compensation and benef ts package If we fail to maintain ‘such a package, our.
customer service and execution levels could suffer by reason of a declmmg quality ofour workforce Wthh Could
adversely affect our ﬁnanc:lal condition and results of operations.

if we are unable to compete successfully against other compames |n the autnmotwe aftermarket mdustry we
could lose eustomers and our revenues may deelme. . "! O 11 o

The sale of automotive parts, accessories and maintenance items is highly competmve in many ways, including
location, price, name recognition and customer service. We compete in both the DIY and DIFM categories of the
automotive aftermarket industry, and primarily with national and regional retail automotive parts chains, discount
stores and mass merchandisers that carry automotive products, wholesalers'or Jobberlstores, independent operators
and automobile dealers that supply parts. These competitors and the level of competition vary by market. Some of
our competitors may possess advantages over us in certain markets we share, mcludmg a greater amount of
marketing activities, a larger number of stores, longer operating histories, greater name recognition or larger and
more established customer bases. Qur response to these competitive disadvantages may require us to reduce our .
prices beyond our normal control or increase our promotional spending, which would lower revenue and '
profitability. Competltlve disadvantages may also prevent us from |mr0ducmg new p‘roduct lines or require us to' 1.
discontinue current product offerings or change some of our current operatmg slrategles If we do not have the’
resources or expettise‘or.otherwise fail to develop successful strategies to address these compeutwe dlsadvantages
we could lose customers and out revenues may decline. . ‘

' 1

Disruptions in our relationships with vendors or in our vendors' operations could increase our cost of goods
sold. | R TIPE ;

’
Our business depends on developing and maintaining close relationships with odr vendors and upon the
vendors' ability or willingness to sell quality products to us at favorable prices and tei'ms. Many factors cutside of
our control may harm these relationships and the ability or willingness of these venders to sell us products on
favorable tefms. For example, financial or operational difficulties that some of our vlendors may face may increase
the cost of the products we purchase from them or the ability for us to source produclt from them. In addition, the
trend towards consolidation among automotive parts suppliers may disrupt or end our relationship with some

vendors, and could lead to less competition and, consequently, higher prices. |

Because we are involved in litigation from time to time, and are subject to numerous laws and governmental
regulations, we could incur substantial judgments, fines, legal fees and other costs.

We are sometimes the subject of complaints or litigation from customers, empldyees or other third parties for
various actions. From time to time, we are involved in litigation involving claims related to, among other things,
breach of contract, tortious conduct, employment discrimination, asbestos exposure,};real estate matters and product
defects. The damages sought against us in some of these litigation proceedings are su|bstamial Although we
mamtam liability insurance for some litigation claims, if one or more of the claims gl;eatly exceeds our coverage
" limits or our insurance policies do not cover a claim, it could have a material adverse affect on our business and
operating results.
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Additionally, we are subject to numerous federal, state and local laws and governmental regulations relating to
employment matters, environmental protectioh and building and zoning requirements. If we fail to comply with
existing or future laws or reguiations, we may be subject to governmental or judicial fines or sanctions. In addition,
our capital expenses could increase due to remedlatton measures that may be required if we are found to be
noncompliant with any emstmg or future lawsI or regulations.

Risks Relating to Our Financial Condition
The covenants governing our revdlving credit facility impose restrictions on us.

The terms of our revolving credit facility,impose operating and financial restrictions on us and our subsidiaries
and require us to meet certain financial tests. These restrictions may also have a negative impact on our business,
financial condition and results of operatlons by significantly limiting or prohibiting us from engagmg in certain
transactions, including: L
incurring or guaranteeing additional indebtedness;
making capital expenditures and othér investments;
incurring liens on our assets and engaging in sale-leaseback transactions;
issuing or selling capital stock of our subsidiaries;
transferring or selling assets currently held by us;
engaging in transactions with affiliates; :
entering into any agreements that restrict dividends from our subsidiaries; and
engaging in mergers or acquisitions.'

The failure to comply with any of these crovenants would cause a default under our revolving credit facility.
Furthermore, our revolving credit facility contains certain financial covenants, including a maximum leverage ratio
and a minimum coverage ratio, which, if not maintained by us, will cause us to be in default under our revolving
credit facility. Any of these defaults, if not walved could result in the acceleration of all of our debt, in which case
the debt would become immediately due and payable. If this occurs, we may not be able to repay our debt or borrow
sufficient funds to refinance it. Even if new fi nancmg were available, it may be on terms that are less favorable or
otherwise not acceptable to us.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments. |

None. |
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Item 2. Properties. 1,
The following table sets forth certain information relatin'g to our distribution an;d other principal facilities:
, Opening | Size Nature of
Facility Date Area Served | (Sq. ft)" . Qccupancy
Main Distribution Centers: ) J s
Roanoke, Virginia 1988 Mid-Atlantic i 433,681 Leased
Lehigh, Pennsylvania 2004 Northeast | 635,487 Owned
Lakeland, Florida 1982 Florida : 552,796 '« Owned
Gastonia, North Carolina 1969 South o 634472 Owned
Gallman, Mississippi 2001 South o I 388,168  Owned
Salina, Kansas 1971 West, Midwest }| 413,500 Owned
Delaware, Ohi;) 1972 Northeast ' 480,100 Owned
Thomson, Geoi'rgia 1999 Southeast ! 374,400 Ovyned
L : o :
Master PDQ® Warehoqse: ) . H.
Andersonvillc,‘ Tennessee - - ' 1998 All : 115,019 Leased
R . - X
PDQ® Warehouses: / - L _ : . !
Youngwood, Pennsylvania s 1999 East : 39,878~ Leased
Riverside, Missouri . 1999 . West o } 43912 Leased
Guilderland Cénter, New York ’ 1999 Northeast ‘ 40,950 Lehsed
Temple, Texas1 - ' 1999 Southwest : 61,343 Leased
Altamome Sprmgs, Florida | 1996 Central Florida v ; 10,000 Owned
Jackson\nlle Flonda ' 1997 Nerthern Florida and Sc:)ulhemL 12,712 Owned
‘ . . L Georgia 1 Co
Tampa, Florida o " leo7 West Central Florida ! 10000 Owned
Hialeah, Florida | L1997 South Florida ‘1 12,500° , Owned
West Palm Beach, Florida - . , 1998 Southeast Florida ' ‘ ' 13300. . Leased
- Mobile, Alabama . . 1998 Alabama and Mississippi ! 10,000 Owned
Atlanta, Georgia . R 1999 Ceorgia and South Carolina 16,786 Lcésed
Tallahassee, Florida - -, ' : 1999 South Georgia and Northwest l 10,000 Owned
b Florida | :
Fort Myers, Florida ~ " ' 1999 Southwest Florida 1 14,330 Owned
Corporate/Administrative Offices: | :
. Roanoke, Virginia 1995 ° - Al i 49,000 Leased
Roanoke, Virginia - ’ 2002 All ; 144,000 Leased
Al Properties: -~ i i " '
Sharon, Massa:chusetts 1974 Al corporate office ; 20,000 Leased
Norton, Massachusetts'” 2006 Al corporate office ‘ 30,000 Leased
Sharon, Massachusetts ' 1974 New England, New York - Al 102,644 Leased
Foxboro, Maséachusel‘ts 2004 New England, New York - Al } 84,875 Leased
Norton, Massachusetts™ 2006 New England, New York - Al j 317,500 Leased

b
|

0 square footage ‘amounts exclude adjacent office space. |

)
corporate offices will relocate to office space within the Norton distribution center in 2007.
|

1
|
{
i

This facility began servicing Al stores in January 2007, This facility will replace the two cxnstmg Aldistribution centers. The Al
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At December 30, 2006, we owned 588 oij our stores and leased 2,494 stores. The expiration dates, including the
exercise of rer}ewal options, Iof the store leases are summarized as follows: . . . .

IR T R @ P ' ’ [ . T, FIRC PR i . " o

.. [

.t LA

- Years_ _AAP Stores  __ Al Stores Totﬁ1l_.: -~ e

" 2006-2007 R S s
2008-2012 173 37 210 P,
"2013-2017. 602 | 128 .t 630 - P

.+ 2018-2027 924 & 14 - -« 938~ w
+2028-2037 - 554 RIS 554 R
-2038-2051 . 129 I 129 :

) 2407 87 .. 2494 S

‘r- ' ' i A
Item 3. Legal Proceedings. i o "
We currently and from time to time are involved in litigation incidental to the conduct of our business,
including litigation arising from claims of employment discrimination or other types of employment'matters ds a *
result of claims by current and former employees. Although we diligently defend against these claims, we may enter
into discussions regarding settlement of these and other lawsuits, and may enter into settlement agreements, if we
believe settlement is in the best interests of our shareholders. The damages claimed against us in some of these
proceedings are substantial. Although the amoum of lrablhty that may result from these matters.cannot be
ascertained, we do not currently believe that, 1Ln the aggregate, they will result in liabilities material to our
consolidated financial condition, future results of operations or cash flow. .- L
. |
- “Our Westem Auto subsidiary, together wrth other defendants including automobile manufacturers automotrve
parts manufacturers and other retailers, has been named as a defendant in lawsuits alleging injury as a result of
exposure to asbestos- -containing products. "We'and some of our other subsidiaries also have been named as
defendants in many of these lawsuits. The plaintiffs have alleged that these products were manufactured, distributed
andf’or sold by the various defendants. To date these products have included brake and clutch parts and rooﬁng
materials. Many of the cases pending against us or our subsidiaries are in the early stages of litigation. The damages
claimed against the defendants in some of these proceedings are substantial. Additionally, some of the automotive
parts‘manufacturers named as defendants in these lawsuits have declared bankruptcy, which will limit plaintiffs’
ability to recover monetary damages from those defendants. Although we diligently defend against these claims, we
may-enter into discussions regarding settlement of these and other lawsuits, and may enter into settlement
agreements, if we believe settlement is in the best interests of our shareholders. We also believe that most of these
claims are at least partially covered by i msurance Based on discovery to date, we do not believe the cases currently
pending will have a material adverse effect on us. However, if we were to incur an adverse verdict in one or more of
these claims and were ordered to pay damages that were not covered by insurance, these claims could-havea .
material adverse effect on our operating results, financial position and liquidity. If the number of claims filed against
us or any of our subsidiaries alleging injury as a result of exposure to asbestos-containing products increases .
substantially, the costs associated with concluding these claims, including damages resulting from any adverse
verdicts, could have a material adverse effect on our operating results, financial position and liquidity in future .. .
periods. i !

.M LR AL B

Item 4 Submlssmn of Matters to a Vote of Securrty Holders.

FEETSA t

T - f IO .o . s B

“ None.
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PART 11

Item 5. Market for Reglstrant ] Common Equity, Related Stockho]der Matters and!‘lssue'r Purchasés of Equity,
Securmes

|
I

vt il

Our common stock is listéd on the New York Stock Exchange or NYSE undelr the symbol "AAP " The table B
below sets forth, for the fiscal perieds indicated, the high and low sale prices per share for our common stock, as
reported by the NYSE.

' . oo L e ! High Low

Fiscal Year Ended December: 30, 2006 | ; , . 4' :

Fourth Quarter - - $ 38.58 $  34.01

Third Quarter $ 3531 § 2765

Second' Quarter $ 4230 § 2840

First Quarter $ 45.50 $ 3835
Fiscal Year Ended December 31,2005 -~ °~ ’ ) i

Fourth Quarter ) $ 4488 3 3540

Third Quarter § 47.73 $ 3745

Second Quarter . § 4417 $ 34.10

First Quarter ~ $l 35.10 $ 28.13

1,

The closmg price of our common stock on February 26, 2007 was $38.73. The table gives effect to our three-
for-two stock split effectuated in the form of a 50% stock dividend distributed on September 23, 2005, as trading
began on a post-split basis on September 26, 2005. At February 26, 2007 there were 420 holders of record of our
common stock.

On February 15, 2006 our Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dmdend the first in-our history. The
$0.06 per share quartetly cash dividend has been declared in each quarter of fiscal 3006 Any payments of dividends
in the future will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend upq:n our results of operations,
eamnings, capital requirements and other factors deemed relevant by our Board of Directors.

: P ‘e B . . . . }

Equity Compensation Plan Information *© to b

The following table sets forth our shares authorized for issuance under our equnty compensanon plans at December

30, 2006.- SR . T e
Number of securities
I remaining available
. Number of shares to be Welghted average for future issuance
* 3 . (P X
i e issued upon exercise.of. exerﬂse pnce of - -under equity
o outstanding optwns, outsta"dmg options, 'compenéa‘tion
- Lo warrants, and rlghts .warrants, and rights plansmm
Equity compensation plans.
approved by stockholders 7,269 ) i $2931 4,565
.  Equity compensauon plans I .
not approved by stockholders - | - . -
Total N ‘ . - 7269 o $29.31. ) 4,565
' 1

U]
"2}

ol o I Y - !
, Number of shares presented is in thousands.
Excludes shares reflected in the first column,




Stock Price Performance

The following graph shows a comparison of our cumulative total return on our common stock, Standard &
Poor’s 500 Index and the Staridard & Poor’s 500 Specialty Retail [ndex. The graph assumes that the value of an
investment in our common stock and in each such index was $100 on December 29, 2001, and that any dividends
have been reinvested. The comparison in the glraph below is based solely on historical data and is not mtended to
forecast the possible furure performance of our common stock.

1

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN AMONG
ADVANCE AUTO PARTS, INC., S&P 500 INDEX
AND SI&P 500 SPEC]ALTY INDEX

— :
Comparison of Cumulative Five Year Total Return

$300
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|
$50 :
1] ‘ .
$0 r l ' r r .
12/29/2001 12/28/2002 1/3/2004 111/2005 12/31/2005-  12/30/2006

|
| .
|—O—ADVANCE AUTO PARTS —O—S&P 500 INDEX —2r—S&P 500 SPECIALTY RETAIL INDEX | °

!
\
. 1 . ,
Company / Index Dec 29.2001 Dec 28.2002 Jan 32004 Jan1 2005 Dec 31 2005 Dec 30 2006
ADVANCE AUTO PARTS, INC. 8 ' 100 % 10444 § 173.05 § 18567 & 27711 § 22822
S&P 500 INDEX s | 100 § 7665 $ 9883 % 10992 $ 11532 $ 133.53
S&P 500 SPECIALTY RETAIL INDEX 8§ | 100 S 6484 § 9406 $ 10782 & 11090 $ 11826
1
l 3
Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data.

The following table sets forth our selected histoncal consolidated statement of operations, balance sheet and other
operating data. The selected historical consolldated financial and other data at December 30, 2006 and December 31,
2005 and for the three years ended December,30, 2006 have been derived from our audited consolidated financial
statements and the related notes included elsewliere in this report. The historical consolidated financial and other data at
January 1, 2005, January 3, 2004 and December 28, 2002 and for the years ended January 3, 2004 and December 28,
2002 have been derived from our audited consol:dated financial statements and the related notes that have not been
included in this report. You should read this data along with "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial

f
!
I
|
|
|
|
I
|
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Condition and Resuits of Operations,” and our consolidated financial statements and the related notes included elsewhere

in this report.

Statement of Operations Data:
Net sales

Cost of sales -

Gross profit !

Selling, general and administrative expenses @
|

Expenses associated with merger related restructuring'”’
Expenses associated with merger and integration

QOperating income .

Interest expense ‘

Gain (loss) on extinguishment of debt

Expenses associated with secondary offering

Other income, net

Income from continuing operations before
income taxes and (los.s) income on
discontinued operations

Income tax expense

Income from continuing operations before
(loss) income on discontinued operations

Discontinued operations:

(Loss) income from operations of discontinued
Wholesale Distribution Network (including loss on

disposal of $2,693 in 2003)
(Benefit) provision for income taxes
{Loss) income on discontinued operations
Net income ’
t

Per Share Data ';

Incomie from continuing operations before
{loss) income on discontinued operations
per basic share ' T

[ncome from continuing operations before
(loss) income on dis:cominued operations
per diluted share '

Net income per basic sl';lare

Net income per diluted share

Cash dividends declared per basic sharg

Weighted a-vefage basici shares outstanding

Weighted average diluted shares outstanding

. i

Cash flows proviﬁed b'y (used in):

Investing activities

. . i
Operating activities - |
1
Financing activities :
! i

1

]
v
'
b
'

|
iy
'
!

1
i
I

'Fiscal Year

{2

= |
2006 2005 ) 2004 2003 2002
(in thousair:ds, except per share data)
. l AT ) '_
$ 4616503 3 4,264,971: $ 3,770,297 $ 3493696 ; $ 3,204,140
2415339 2,250,493 ; 2,016,926 1,889,178 , 1,769,733
2,201,164 2,014,478 | 1,753,371 1,604,518 - 1,434,407
. 1,797,814 1,605,986 , 1,424,613 1,305.867 1,202,524
- - - R 597
- - - 10,417 34,935
403,350 408,492 328,758 288,234 ' 196,351
{35,992) (32,384) | (20,069) (37.576) (77.081)
986 - } {3,230) {47,288) (16,822)
. - - - (1,733)
. 1,571 2,815 289 341 963
; '
369,915 .378,023 1 305,748 203,711 101,678
138,597 144,198 | 117,721 78,424 39,530
231,318 234,725 188,027 125,287 : 62,148
i
1
I
* 1
- - (63) (572) 4,691
- - | 24) C220) 1,820
- - (39) (352) ° 2,871
$ 231318 § 23472500 5 187988 0§ 124,935 % 65,19
|
i -
5 218§ 217188 7 1L70 0§ .15 8 0.59
. | . Lo
I-I .,
$ 216§ 2130 3 166 § . LI2 S 0.57
5 . 218 % . 2171 § 170§ 114§ 0.62
$ . 216 S 2134 § 166 8 LIl 8 0.60
N A T B -8 - -8 -
106,129 108,318 ;| 110,846 109,499 . 105,147
107,124 109,987 | 113,222 112,115 108,564
. . | :
T - !
i . . ?
. . _ }
"$ 333,604 . $ 321,632 '}.§ 260397 $ 355921 & 242,996
(258,642) (302,780), _{166,822) (85,474) (78,005)
(104,617} - (34390} (48.741) .(272,845) (169,223}
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Fiscal Year """

2006 2005 2004 2003

|

+

I

|

o ) R | 2002
] T (in thousands, except per share data and ratios)
Balance Sheet and Other Financial Data: . ' __ L - i -
[ T

Cash ahd cash equivalents : ) 11,128 8§ 40,783  $ 56,321  § 11,487 § 13,885
Inventory i $ 1,463,340 $ 1,367,099 $ 1,201,450 14§ 1,113,781: $ 1,048,803
Inventory turnov err"J : T 1 1.71 1.75 1.74 1.72 1.75
Inventory per s store v . - L _ § 415 % 476 % 453 % 439 § 429
Accounts payable to mvenmry Tatio® i 53.2% 54.8% 53.7% 51.0% 44.9%
Net working capital’” "+ " ‘ ' | $ 498,553 § 06,476 -+ 416302 © 8 37509 0§ 462,896
Capital expenditures | $ 258,586  § - 216214 % 179,766 § 101;177 '% 98,186
Totalassets  __ - .S 2682681 $ 2542149 § 72,201,962 $ 1983071 5 1965225
Total debt v e } 3 477,240 5. 438,800 £ 470,000 § 445000 § 735,522
Total net debr'"? : L | $ 500318 § 448,187 & 433,863 § 464598 § - 722,506
Total stockholders’ equity | 3 1,030,854  § 919,771 $ 722315 § 631,244  §. 468,356

| ' -
Selected Sfore Data: T } ot n o
Comparable store sales growth U . l ' 2.1% 8.7% 6.1% . 3% 5.5%
Number of stores at beginning of year ' 2,872 2,652 2,539 2,435 2,484

New stores i t T s 231 L v 125 125 110
Closed stores™™ oo i 3 an oo 2y - @n (159

Number of stores, end of period | 3,082 2,872 2,652 C2,539 ., . 2435
Relocated stores l 47 L5400 . 34 . v.. 32 39
Stores with commercial delivery program, end of period 2,526 2,254 L9945 - ., 1,625 1,411
Total commercial sales, as a percentage of total sales ’ | 25.0% 21.8% 18.4% 15.8% 15.0%
Total store square footage. end of period' " | 22,235 20,899 19,734 . | 18,875 | 18,108
Aveérage net Siles per'siore Y, " T - =l 8T o552 8 1,551 § 1453 § 1,379 % 1,303
‘Average net sales per square foot !'® ~ . } RN 1L S 208 5 195§ 186 $ 174

|

" Qur fiscal year consists of 52 or 53 weeks ending on the Saturday nearest to December 31. All f:IS_‘(?;ll years

presented are 52 weeks, with the exceptllon of 2003, which consists of 53 weeks.. e
@, The statement of operations data for each of the years presented reflects the operating results of the wholesale
distribution segment as discontinued operratmns : S
) Selling, general and admlmstratwe expenses exclude certain charges disclosed separately and dlSCllSSEd in notes
(4) and (5) below. |

™ Represents expenses related prlmanly to lease costs associated with 27 Advance Auto Parts stores ldentlﬁed to be
closed at Decerber 29, 2001 as a result of the Discount dequisition. - ’

©) Represents certain expenses related to,i among other things, overlapping admmlstratwe flll"lCthﬁS and store
conversions as a result of the Discount acquisition.

®  Basic and diluted shares outstanding for éach of thé years presented gives effect to'a 3-for-2 stock split effectuated
by us in the form of a 50% stock dividend distributed on September 23, 2005 and a 2-for-1 stock split effectuated
by us in the form of a 130% stock d|v1dend distributed on January 2, 2004. -

™ Inventory turnover is calculated as cost of sales divided by the average of beginning and ending i mvemones The
fiscal 2003 cost of sales excludes the effect of the 53" week in the amount of $34.3 million.

®  Inventory per store is calculatéd as ending inventory divided by ending store count. For fiscal 2003, ending
inventory used in this calculation excludes certain inventory related to the wholesale distribution segment. The
wholesales distribution segment, which was discontinued in fiscal 2003, consisted of independently owned and
operated dealer locations, for which the Company supplied merchandise inventory.

¥ Accounts payable to inventory ratio iscalculated as ending accounts payable divided by ending inventory.

Beginning in fiscal 2004, as a result of our new vendor financing program, we aggregate financed vendor accounts

payable with accounts payable to calculéte our accounts payable to inventory ratio.

Net working capital is calculated by subtracting current liabilities from current assets.

I Net debt includes total debt and bank overdrafts, less cash and cash equivalents.

{12} Comparable store sales is calculated based on the change in net sales starting once a store has been open for 13
complete accounting periods (each perioid represents four weeks). Relocations are included in comparable

{10}
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|
store sales from the original date of opening. We do not include net sales from the 37 Western Auto retail
stores in our comparable store calculation as a result ofthetr unique product Offerlngs including automotive
service and tires. We also exclude the net sales from the Al stores from our comparable store.sales, in 2003,
the comparable store sales calculation included sales.from our 53" week comdared to our first week of
operation in 2003 {the comparable calendar week). In 2004, as a result of the 53" week in 2003, the
comparable stote sales calculation excluded week one of sales from 2003. ‘;'
Closed stores in 2002 include 133 stores closed as part of the integration of the Discount operations.
Total store square footage excludes the square footage of the stores in the Al degment :
Average net sales per store is calculated as net sales divided by the average of beginning and ending number of
stores for the respective pertod The fiscal 2006 and 2005 calculation exciudes the net sales and stores from the Al
segment. The fiscal 2003 net sales exclude the effect of the 53" week in the ar'nount of $63.0 million.
Average net sales per square foot is calculated as net sales divided by the average of the beginning and ending total
store square footage for the respective period. The fiscal 2006 and 2005 calculauon excludes the net sales and
square footage from the Al segment. The fiscal 2003 net sales exclude the et’fect of the 53" week in the amount of
$63.0 million. _ e - - ’

e,

(L3}
(14}
(15}

{16

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysi; of Financial Condition and Re';sults of Operations.

The following discussion and analvsrs of financial condition and results of opet:‘a!rons should be read in
conjunction with "Selected Financial Data,” our * consolidated historical financial statements and the notes to rhose
statements that appear elsewhere in this report: Our discussion contains forward-looking statements based upon
current expectations that involve risks and uncertainties, such as our pians objectives, expectations and intentions.
Actual results and the timing of events could differ materially from those anncrpated in these forward-looking -
statements as a result of a number of facrors mcludmg those set forth under * F orward Lookmg Starements " and
“Risk Factors" elsewhere in'this report. ‘I

Our fiscal vear enids on the Saturddy nearest December 31 of each year, whici;}results in an extra week every
six years (our next 53-week fiscal year is 2009). Our first quarter consists of 16 we‘eks and the othcr rhree quarters
consist of 12 weeks. )

Introduction ;l S ‘
{

We primarily operate w:thm the United States automotive aftermarket mdustryf which includes rep]acement
parts (excludtng tires), accessories, maintenance items, batteries and automottve c¢hémicals for cars and light trucks
(ptckup trucks, va'ns mlmvans and sport utility vehicles). We currently are 'the secdnd largest ‘specialty retailer of *
automotive’ pans accessories and maintenance items to “do-it-yourself,” or DIY customers in the United States
based on stor¢ count and sales. At December 30, 2006 we operated 3, 082 stores throughout 40, states

Co {

We operate in two reportable segments: Advance Auto Parts, or AAP, and Autopart International, or Al. The
AAP segment is compnsed of our store operations within the United States, Puerto Rico and the Virgin lslands
which operate under thé trade names “Advance Auto Parts, » “Discount Advance Auto Parts” and “Western Auto
At December 30, , 2006, we operated 2,995 stores in the AAP segment, of which 2, 958 stores operated under the
trade names “Advance Auto Parts” and “Discount Advance Auto Parts” throughout 40 states in'the Northeastem
Southeastern and Midwestern regions of the United States. These stores offer automotive replacement parts,
accessories and maintenance items, with no significant concentration in any spec:f ¢ product area. In addition, we
operated 37 stores under the “Western Auto” and “Advance Auto Parts” trade names located primarily in Puerto
Rico and the’ Vtrgm islarids. The Westernt Auto stores offer automotwe tires and servrce in addition to automotlve
parts, accessortes and ma:ntenance 1tems ‘ A L " ’

o . . ’ .

Al December 30, 2006, we operated 87 stores in the Al segment under the “Autopart International” trade name.’
We acquired Al in September 2005, and Al operates as an independent, wholly— wr'ted subsidiary. Al’s'business
primarily serves thé commercial market from its store locations. In addition, its North American Saiés Division
services warehouse drstnbutors and JObbBI‘S throughout North America. . F ,

The followmg table sets forth the total number of new, closed and relocated stores and stores with commercial
delivery programs during fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004. We lease approxtmately 80% of our stores

i
L
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AAP .
+ Fiscal Year )
2006 2005 2004

Number of stores at beginning of year ’ 2,810 2,652 2,539
New stores : 190 169 125
Closed stores | . (5) - (11) (12)

Number of stores, end of period® ] 2,995 2810 2,652

Relocated stores _ 47 54 34

Stores with commercial delivery program!s : 2,439 2,192 1,945

Al
T Fiscal Year
I‘ 2006 2005

Number of stores at beginning of year - 62 -
New stores®™ ! 25 62
Closed stores ‘ | - -

Number of stores, end of period | 87 62

Relocated stores P - -

Stores with commercial delivery programs 87 62

@ Includes 2 and 7 stores not operating at December 30, 2006 and December31 2005, respectively, primarily due
to hurricane damage.
®) Of the 62 new stores in 2005, 61 stores were acquired in September 2005 as a result of our Al acquisition.
t
We anticipate adding approximately 200 t0 210 AAP and Al stores during 2007.
|

Management Overview |

We recorded eamnings per diluted share of $2 16 in fiscal 2006 compared to $2.13 for fiscal 2005. These results were
primarily driven by increased sales and hlgher gross margin dollars offset by an increase in certain fixed operating
expenses. Although sales did not meet our expectatlon for 2006, our average sales per store did reach the industry
leading level of $1.55 million per store. Addltllpnally, our operating results for fiscal 2006 include the recognition of
$0.11 of share-based compensation expense per diluted share required by the adoption of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standard, or SFAS, No. 123 (rev15ed 2004), "Share-Based Payment,” or SFAS No. 123R, on January 1,
2006.

We believe the macroeconomic environment negatively impacted our business throughout much of 2006 and
resulted in weakening trends in our 2006 results compared to 2005. We believe our customers have been adversely
impacted by rising energy prices, higher insurance and interest rates, and larger required minimum payments on their
credit card balances, which limit their current ability to spend.

We have established a high priority of exammmg our operating expenses, including both corporate and store-
level, in light of our sales trends. We believe we can continue to be more efficient in our corporate-level expenses by
optimizing a number of job functions, examining discretionary expenses and re-evaluating all third party service
providers. Second, we continue to examine our non-sales activities in our stores and the impact of those activities on
our operating expenses due to the exponential impact that small changes can have on a large chain of stores such as
rolling out energy-managerment systems to a significant number of our stores. In addition, we are evaluating a
number of administrative procedures perfonnéd by our store team members in an effort to better optimize their time.

We believe our 2006 results do reflect the progress made on the following key 1rut|atwes that focus specnﬁcally on
driving higher sales per store:

= Improving store execution with a focus on customer service;

! 21




|
!
I

Contmued execution of our category management program, including direct importing;
.Continued implementation of our 2010 store remodeling program at a moré selective pace now that more
than 65% of our chain has been remodeied 1
Our focus on making our supply chain more responsive and i 1mprov1ng ourim stock position;
Consistent growth and execution of our commercnal program, including the optlmlzauon of dehvery

+ vehicles;' S .

Our focus on recruiting, training and retaining high-performing team members especially those who are
ASE certified and/or bilingual; and . . : 1| . T
. Enhanced merchandising and markeéting programs - { :

! 1‘ T
Addltlonally, ‘we believe the factors that favorably impact our mdustry contmue to remain strong. Customers
can only defer necessary maintenance on their automobiles for so long, and we continue to educate customers about
the value of performing certain types of maintenance and enhancerments. Government data recently revealed that
consumers are drwmg their automobiles more, which leads to a greater need for ma‘mtenance The growing
population of hght trucks and sport utility vehicles are also beginning to hit the average age where we believe they’

will need certain repa1rs mcludmg overaill more expenswe replacement parts. f _ '

-We believe the combmatlon of these favorable industry dynamics along with thle continued execution of our key
business initiatives along with our more recent effort to examiné operating expenses w:ll allow us to achieve each of the
following goals: . : : ‘ : i

' . . Iy . P
1. Raising average sales per store; {
2. Expanding operating margin; |
3. Increasing free cash flow; and '
4. Increasing return on invested capital, |
' t .. . . . . ! .
" The following table highlights certain consolidated operating results and key m%:trics for 2006, 2005 and 2004:
|

t:

‘ Fiscal Year

; ‘ 2006 _ 112008 2004

Total net sales (in thousands) '$ 4,616,503  $4,264,971 $3,770,297
Total commercial net sales (in thousands) : $ 1,155,953 $i 931,320 $ '693?449
Comparable store net sales growth . - 2.1% 8.7% 6.1%
-+ DIY comparable store net sales growth : (0.3)% ‘[ 4.8% - - 2.8%
DIFM comparable store net sales growth 10.8% | '25.2% 22.9%
Averaﬁe net sales per store (in thousands) g 1,552 ${ 1,551 $ 1,453
Inventory per store (in thousands) $ 475 8! 476§ 453
’Sellingl,' g'eneral and administrative expenses ‘ ‘ )
per store (in thou.s‘ands) : ) ‘ $ 583 S} 559 $ - 537
‘Inventory turnover . 1.71 i L7 0 L74
Gross margin . . _ 47.7% i 47.2% 46.5%
Operating margin 8.7% 9.6% 8.7%

|
|
‘Note: These metrics should be reviewed along with the footnotes to the table setting forth our selected

‘s i .
store data in Item 6 “Selected Financial Data” located elsewhere in this report. The footnotes contain
descnptlons regardmg the calculation of these metrics.

Key 2006 Mllestopes

\ |
The following key milestones occurred during 2006 i
s We opened our 3 000lh store; ) :

¢ Inthe AAP segment, we surpassed the S bllll()l‘l mark in commercial sales
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e We completed the reﬁnancmg of our|prevtous secured credrt facility to an unsecured revolving credtt
facrltty, and ' o
'On February 15, 2006, our Board of Dtrectors declared a quarter]y cash dtv1dend the first m our history.

Refinancing ' e ‘-l '

!
L e, '

On October 5, 2006, we entered into a new $750 million unsecured five- -year revolving credit facility. This new
facility. replaced the term;loans and revolver under our previous secured credit facility. Initial proceeds from this
revolving loan were used to repay $434 miltion of principal outstanding on the term loans and revolver under our
previous credit facility. As a result of the tmpr'oved borrowing costs under the new facility, we anticipate pre-tax
interest expense savings of more than $2.5 mtlhon annually. In conjunction with this refinancing, we wrote-off
existing deferred financing costs related to our previous term loans and revolver. The write-off of these costs of
$1.9 million was combined with a related gain on settlementof interest rate swaps of $2.9 million for a net gain on

extinguishment of debt of $1.0 million. . 0

! i
o A . .

I ¥

t

Stock Repurchase Program . .

During fiscal 2006, we repurchased 17 mtllton shares of common stock at an aggregate cost of $136.6 mtllton
or an average price of $37.12 per share, excludmg related expenses. Our stock repurchase program, as authorized by
our Board of Directors in fiscal 2005, authorizes us to repurchase up to $300 million of our common stock plus
related expenses. The program allows us to répurchase our common stock on the open market or in privately .
negotiated transactions from time to time in a}:cordance with the requirements of the Securities and Exchange
Commission. As of December 30, 2006, we had $104.0 million, excluding related expenses, remaining for future
stock repurchases under the stock repurchase program C . :
l oo

Commercial Program 't

As indicated in the preceding operating results table, our commercial program produced solid revenues in our
AAP stores during fiscal 2006. We attribute this performance to the exécution of our commercial plan, which-
consists of: : |

SR 1

" Targeting commercial customers with a hard parts focus;

Targeting commercial customers who need access to a wide selection of inventory;

+Moving inventory closer to our commercial customers to ensure quicker deliveries;

+Growing our market share of the commercial market through internal growth and selected acquisitions;
Providing trained parts experts to assltst commercial customers’ merchandise selections;

Shifting commercial dehvery veh1cles or other commercial resources to store locations where they can be

most productive; and S

¢ Providing credit solutions to our commereral customers through our commercral credit program.
I

Commercial sales represented approximately 25% of our consolidated total sales for the fiscal year compared to
almost 22% in fiscal 2005, including Al. At December 30, 2006, we operated commercial programs in 82% of our
stores, including the 87 Al stores, up from approxrmate]y 78% at the end of the prior fiscal year. We continued to
approach our goal of operating commercial programs in approximately 85% of our AAP store base Due to Al’s sole
focus on the commercial business, virtually all of their sales are to commercial customers.

I

. We believe we have the opportunity to grow our commercial business for the foreseeable ﬁJture through the
contmued execution of our commercial plan and growth in our commercial programs. We believe 'the acquisition of
Al supplements our commercial growth due to Al’s established delivery programs and knowledge of the commerctial
industry, particularly for foreign makes and models of vehicles.

* & & & & B
‘.

I _ S .

Share-Based Payments \

On January 1, 2006, we adopted the prov:smns of SFAS No. 123R. SFAS No: 123R replaces SFAS No. 123
and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25 and subsequently issued stock option related guidance. We elected to use the
modified-prospective method of implementation. Under this transition method, share-based compensation expense

¥
|
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for fiscal year ended 2006 included compensation expense for all share-based awards granted subsequent to January
1, 2006 based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123R, and
compensation expense for all share-based awards granted prior to but unvested as of'January 1, 2006 based on lhe
grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with original provisions of SFAS No. 123 . . .

We use the.Black- Scholes option- pricing model to value all options and straigh;t’ -line method to amertize this
fair value as'compensation cost over.the requisite service period. Total share-based: compensauon expense included
in selling, general and administrative expenses in our statements of operations for the fiscal years ended 2006 was
$19.1 million. The related income tax benefit was $7.1 million. We recognized $0.4' and $0.5 million of share-based
compensation expense in accordance with APB No. 25 for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2005 and January 1,
2005. On a pro forma basis, share-based compensation was $0.09 and $0.05 per d|luted share for the fiscal years .
ended December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005, respectively, In accordance with the 'modified- prospectlve transition
method of SFAS No 123R, we have not restated prior periods. e :

As a result of adopting SFAS No. 123R on January 1, 2006, our earnings before!income tax expense and net
earnings for the fiscal year ended December 30, 2006, were $18.8 million and $11.7 'million lower, respectively, -
than if we had continued to account for share-based. compensation under APB No. 25 The related impact in 2006 to
basic and dlluted eammgs per share is $0.11 for the fiscal year ended December 30, 2t006 o

i .
As of December 30, 2006, we: have $26.3 million of unrecognized compensation expense related to non- vested
fixed stock options we expect to recognize over a weighted average. period of 1.8 years _ .
; o tr ot e [. !
Al Acqulsmon -r : . T : nE . po -

The Company f nalized the aliocation of the purchase price of the assets acqurretii and Irabrlmes assumed of
Autopart International during the third quarter of fiscal 2006. We-acquired Al in September 2005. The acquisition,
which included 61 stores throughout New England and New York, a distribution center and Al’s wholesale
distribution busmess complements our growing presencé in the Northeast. Al serves'the growing commercial
" market in addition to warehouse distributors-and jobbers. The acquisition was accounted for under the purchase -
method of accounting. Accordingly, AI's results of operations have been included in our consolidated statement of
operations since the acquisition date. The total purchase price of $87.6 million primarily consisted of $74.9 million
paid upon closing and an additional $12.5 million of contingent consideration paid in' March 2006 based upon Al
satisfying certain earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization tarbets met through December 31,
2005. The completion of the purchase price allocation resulted in the recognition of $17 6 million in goodwill and '
$29.0 million of identifiable intangible assets. Furthermore, an additional $12.5 mllllon is contingently payable:
based upon the achievement of cértain synergies through fiscal 2008, which will be reﬂected ‘in the statement of
operations as eamned. We recognized additional cost of sales of $3.1 million in fiscal, 2006 due to such synergies.
| . .. . 1
Hurricane and Fire Impact ll

J

. During the second half of ﬁscal 2005 Hurncanes Katrma Rita and Wllma lmpaeted our operations throughout
 the states of Alabama, Florida, Loursrana Mississippi and Texas Atthe time these storms hit, we operated )
approximately 750 stores throughout these states, Over 70% of these locanons experllenced some kind of physical
damage and even more suffered sales disruptions. Additionally, we believe we expenenced sales drsruptlons
resulting from the economic impact of increased fuel prices.on our customer base throughout all of our markets
immediately following these hurricanes. We also incurred and reeogmzed mcremental expenses associated with
compensating our team members for scheduled work hours for which stores were clolsed and food and supplies
provided to our team members and their families, While these sales disruptions and related incremental expenses are
not recoverable from our insurance carrier, the insurance coverage provides for the recovery of physical damage at
cost, damaged merchandise at retail values and damaged capital assets at replacement cost. Additionally, during
fiscal 2005 we lost two store locations.due to fire. », ‘. ol :

For fiscal 2005, we estimated and reflected in earnings $0.1 million ofinsuranee:recoveries, net of deductibles,
for the fixed costs of all damage. A portion of these recoveries included the settlemeog with our insurance carrier-for
the retail value of certain damaged inventory. In fiscal 2006, we lost one store location due to. fire and received
additional recoveries as we settled additional hurricane claims for damaged invemory;at retail value and for
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damaged capital assets at replacement value. Accordingly, eamings for ﬁscal 2006 reflected $] 4 million of
insurance recoveries, net of deductibles. \ :

Critical Accounting Policies '

Our financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting policies generally accepted in the
United States of America. Qur discussion and analysis of the financial condition and results of operations are based
on these financial statements. The preparatlon of these financial statements requires the application of accounting
policies in addition to certain estimates and judgments by our management. Our estimates and judgments are based
on currently available information, historicalresults and other assumptions we believe are reasonable. Actual results
could differ from these estimates. |

. | ' ' -
The preparation of our financial statements included the following significant estimates.
I

Vendor Incentives

. v
.

1
E b .
We receive incentives from vendors as a} result of purchasing and promoting their products through a variety of
programs, including cooperative advertising allowances, volume rebates and other promotional incentives. We
account for vendor incentives in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force, or EITF, No. 02-16, “Accounting by
a Customer (Including a Reseller) for Certai:i Consideration Received from a Vendor.” Many of the incentives are
under long-term agreements (terms in excess of one year), while others are negotiated on an annual basis.
Cooperative advertising allowances and volume rebates are eamned based on inventory purchases and initially
recorded as a reduction to inventory. The deferred amounts are included as a reduction to cost of sales as the -

inventory is sold. \

. | .o ‘ :

We recognize other promotional incentives earned under long-term agreements as a reduction to cost of sales.
These incentives are recognized based on the cumulative net purchases as a percentage of total estimated net
purchases over the life of the agreement. Our margins could be impacted positively or negatively if actual purchases
o results from any one year differ from our estimates; however, the impact over the life of the agreement would be
the same. Short-term incentives (terms less than one year) are recognized as a reduction to cost of sales over the
course of the agreements. '

Amounts received or receivable from vendors that are not yet earned are reflected as deferred revenue,
Management's estimate of the portion of deferred revenue that will be realized within one year of the balance sheet
date is included in other current liabilities. Earned amounts that are receivable from vendors are included in |
receivables except for that portion expected to be received after one year, which is included in other assets.

nt ' Y i i - .
Inventory Reserves I
|

We establish reserves for inventory shrink, as an increase to our cost of sales, for our stores and distribution
centers based on our extensive and frequent eycle counting program. Our estimates of these shrink reserves depend
on the accuracy of thie program, which is dependent on compliance rates of our facilities and the execution of the
required procedures: We evaluate the accurajcy of this program on an ongomg basis and believe it provides
reasonable assurance for the established reserves. If estimates regarding our cycle countmg program are inaccurate,
we may be exposed to losses or gains that eould be material.

We have recorded reserves for potent1ally excess and obsolete inventories based on current inventory levels and
historical analysis of product sales and current market conditions. The nature of our inventory is such that the risk
of obsolescence is minimal and excess mventory has historically been returned to our vendors for credit. We provide
reserves where less than full credit is expected from a vendor or where we anticipate that items will be sold at retail
prices that are less than recorded cost. We develop these estimates based on the determination of return privileges
with vendors, the level of credit provided by the vendor and management’s estimate of the discounts to recorded
cost, if any, required by market conditions. Future changes by vendors in their policies or willingness to accept
returns of excess inventory could require us‘to revise our estimates of required reserves for excess and obsolete
inventory and result in a negative impact on’our consolidated statement of operations. A 10% difference in actual
inventory reserves at December 30, 2006 w?uld have affected net income by approximately $1.9 million.
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Warranty Reserves S :
. t

1
1
. § ! b

Our vendors are prlmarlly respon51ble for warranty clalms We are responSIble for merchandlse sold under
warranty which is not covered by vendor warranties (primarily batteries). We recor|d a reserve for future warranty
claims as an increase in our cost of sales based on current sales of the warranted products and historical claim
experience. If claims experience differs from historical levels, revisions in our estlmates may be required, which
could have an impact on our consolidated statement of operations. A 10% change i in the warranty reserves at '
December 30, 2006 would have affected net income by approximately $0.8: m1lhon for the fiscal year ended
December 30, 2006. - S . . iy

Self-Insured Reserves !
! . . ' . o f

- We are self-insured for general and automobile liability, workers' compensation and the health care claims of
our team members, although we maintain stop-loss coverage with third-party msurlers to limit our total liability .
exposure. A reserve for liabilities associated with these losses is established for claims filed and claims incurred but
not yet reported using actuarial methods followed in the insurance industry and our] historical claims experience.
While we do not expect the amounts ultimately paid to differ significantly from our estimates, our self-insurance .
reserves and corresponding selling, general and administrative expenses could be affected if future claim experience
differs significantly from historical trends and actuarial assumptions. A 10% change in our self-insurance liabilities
at December 30, 2006 would have affected net income by approximately $4.4 mlllxon for the fiscal year ended
December 30, 2006.

Leases and Leasehold Improvements

t - . :
' P r . ;1 .

We lease certain store locatlons dlstrlbutton centers, office space, eqmpment and vehicles. We account for:our
leases under the provisions of SFAS No. 13, “Accounting for Leases,” and subsequent amendments which require
that leases be evaluated and-classified as operating leases or capital leases for financial reporting purposes. Certain
leases contain rent escalation clauses, which are recorded on a straight-line basis o%er the initial term of the lease
with the difference between the rent paid and the straight-line rent recorded as a deferred rent liability. Lease
incentive payments received from landlords are recorded as deferred rent liabilities|and are amortized on a straight-
line basis over the lease term as a reduction in rent. In addition, leasehold |mprovements associated with these
opérating leases ate amortized over the shorter of their economic lives or the respectwe lease terms. The term of
each lease is generally the initial term of the lease unless external economic factors,were to exist such that renewals -
potentially provided for in the lease are reasonably assured to be exercised. In those instances the renewal pertod
would'be included in the lease term for purposes of establishing an amortization penod and determining if such’ .

lease qualified as'a capital or operating lease.
|

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
We primarily invest in property and equipment in connection with the opening and remodeling of stores and in

computer software and hardware. We periodically review our store locations and esumate the recoverability of our
assets, recording an impairment charge, if necessary, when we decide to close the store or otherwise determine that
future undiscountéd cash flows associated with those assets will not be sufficient to: recover the carrying value. This
determination is based on a number of factors, including the store’s historical operating results and cash flows, © -
estimated future sales growth, real estate development in the area and perceived local market conditions that can be
difficult to predict and may be subject to change. In addition, we regularly evaluateiour computer-related and other
long-lived assets and may accelerate depreciation over the revised useful life if the.asset is expected to be replaced
or has limited futire value. When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated
depreciation or amortization are removed from the accounts, and any resulting gam*or loss is reflected in income for
that period. Ourtlmpamnent loss calculations require management to apply Judgment in estimating future cash;
flows and asset fair values, including forecasting useful lives of the assets and se]ectmg the discount rate that reflects
the risk inherent in future cash flows. If actual results are not consistent with our as’sumptwns and judgments used
in estimating future cash flows and asset fair values, we may be exposed to addmori al impairment losses that could
be material to our results of operations,




Tax Reserves |
The determination of our income tax liabilities is based upon the tax code, regulations and pronouncements of
the taxing jurisdictions in which we do busmess Our income tax returns are periodically examined by those
jurisdictions. These examinations include, among other things, auditing our filing positions, the timing of
deductions and allocation of income among the various jurisdictions. At any particular time, multiple years are
subject to exammatlon by various taXing authorltles ' ‘ . '

In evaluating our income tax positions, we record reserves for potential exposures. These contingency reserves
are adjusted in the period actval developments,give rise to such change. Those developments could be, but-are not .
limited to; settlement of tax audits, expiration of the statute of limitations, and the evolution of tax code and
regulations, along with varying application of tax policy and administration within those jurisdictions.

These contingency reserves contain uncert:ainties because management is required to make assumptions and
apply judgment to estimate exposures associated with our various filing positions. Although management believes
that the judgments and estimates are reasonable, actual results could differ and the company may be exposed to
gains or losses that could be material. To the extent that actual results differ from our estimates, the effective tax
rate in any particular period could be matenaily affected. Favorable tax developments would be recognized as a
reduction in our effective tax rate in the period of resolution. Unfavorable tax developments would require an
increase in our effective tax rate and a possiblé use of cash in the period of resolution.

o .

Share-Based Payments

We have a share-based compensation plan, which includes fixed stock options and deferred stock units, or
DSUs. We account for our share-based compensation plans as prescribed by the fair value provisions of SFAS No.
123R. We determine the fair value of our stock options at the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model. The DSUs are awarded at a price equal to the market price of our underlying stock on the date of the
grant, The option-pricing model and generally accepted valuation technigues require management to make
assumptions and to apply judgment to determme the fair value of our awards. These assumptions and judgments
include the expected life of stock options, expected stock price volatitity, future employee stock option exercise
behaviors and the estimate of stock option forfeitures, We do not believe there is a reasonable likelihood there will
be a material change in the future estimates or'assumptions we use to determine stock-based compensation expense.
However, if actual results are different from these assumptions, the share-based compensation expense reported in
our financial statements may not be representative of the actual economic cost of the share-based compensation. In
addition, significant changes in these assumptions could materially impact our share-based compensation expense
on future awards. A 10% change in our share-based compensation expense for the fiscal year ended December 30,
2006 would have affected net income by apprcl)ximately $1.2 million for the fiscal year ended December. 30, 2006.

Components of Statement of Operations |

Net Sales i

Net sales consist primarily of comparableistore sales and new store net sales. We calculate comparable store
sales based on the change in net saies starting once a store has been opened for 13 completé accounting periods. We
include relocations in comparable store sales from the original date of opening. We exclude net sales from the 37
Western Auto retail stores from our comparable store sales as a result of their unique product offerings. We also
exclude the net sales from the Al stores from our comparable store sales.

. b

Our fi scal year ends on the Saturday c]osest to December 31 and consists of 52 or 53 weeks. Our 2004 fiscal
year began on January 4, 2004 and consisted of 52 weeks, while our 2003 fiscal year began on December 29, 2002
and consisted of 53 weeks. The extra week of operatlons in fiscal 2003 resulted in our fiscal 2004 consisting of non-
comparable calendar weeks to fiscal 2003. To create a meaningful comparable store sales measure for fiscal 2004,
we have compared the calendar weeks of 2004 to the corresponding calendar weeks of fiscal 2003. Accordingly, our
calculation of comparable stores sales for ﬁscz%l 2004 excludes week one of operations from fiscal 2003.
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Cost of Sales i
I . .

Our cost of sales consists of‘ merchandlse costs, net of incentives under vendor) programs, mventmy shrmkage
and warehouse and distribution expenses. Gross profit as a percentage of net sales may be affected by variations in
our product mix, price changes in response to competitive factors and fluctuations i m merchandise costs and vendor
programs. We seek to avoid fluctuation in merchandise costs and instability of supply by entering into Iong -term
purchasing agreements with vendors when we believe it is advantageous.

v
'

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses . ~ .

ot

Selling, general and administrative expenses consist of store payroll store occupancy (mcludmg rent)
advertising expenges, other store expenses and general and administrative expenses' including salaries and related
benefits of store support center team members store support center administrative ofﬁce expenses, data processing,
professional expenses and other related expenses. '
Consolidated Results of Operations . : PR . . _ '

1 N ¥ L !
The fol]owmg table sets fonh certain of our operalmg data expressed as a pcrcelmage of net sales for the le‘lOdS
indicated.

1 v \ o l Fiscal Year Ended

; _ ) L . Decembt':i' 30, December 31, January 1,
; . 2006] 2005 2005
Netsales . | , : : 100.0% 1000% . 100.0%
. Costofsales . ., - . 1523 . . 528 . 535
Gross profit i . o . 1417 472 46.5
Scl]mg, general and admmlstrauve eXpenses . ' - . _ '3'9.0 ‘ 37.6 37.8
Operating income L . \ 1 8..‘7A , . 9.6 87
Interest expense ) : (0.8) {0.7) (0.5)
Loss on extinguishment of debt o0 - (0.1)
Other income, net ) ' i 01 (0.0) ' 0.0
Income tax expense 3.0 34 3.1
Income from continuing operations before discontinued operations 5.0 ’ 5.5 5.0
Discontinued operations: ' . ' ! ! oo S
(Loss) income from operations of discontinued wholesale T . .
distribution network o . o q - .- o (0.0)
(Benefit) provision for income taxes M- - (0.0)
(Loss) income, on discontinued operations ] . + . . .- (0.0)
Netincome . . i . A ’ "50% . 5.5% . . 5.0%
o : - X {‘ [ . HE H L .
Fiscal 2006 Compared to Fiscal 2005 ' i )

Net sales for 2006 were $4,616.5 million, an increase of $351.5 million, or 8. 2'5/to, over net sales for 2005. The
net sales increase was dué 1o an increase in comparable store sales of 2.1%, contrlblftlons from the 190 AAP stores
opened within the last year and sales from'Al. Al, which was acqmred in September 2005, produced sales of $111. 1
million in 2006 compared to $30.3 million for the partial period in 2005. The comparable store sales increase was
driven by an increase in average ticket sales and customer traffic in cur DIFM busm'ess and an increase in average
ticket sales by our DIY customers offset by a decrease in DIY customer count. In addmon we believe our DIFM
sales have increased as a result of the commued execution of our commercnal plan as dlSCUSSCd prev1ously in the
Commercial Program. ; T

Gross profit for 2006 was $2, 201.2 million, or 47.7% of net'salés, as compared to $2,014. 5 million, or 47.2% of
net sales, in 2005. The iricrease in gross profit as a percentage of salés reflects the positive impact of our ongoing
category management initiatives, including improved procurement costs and a positive shift in sales mix, and
logistics efficiencies. i '
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Selling, general and administrative expenses were $1,797.8 million, or 39.0% of net sales, for 2006, as
compared to $1,606.0 million, or 37.6% of net sales for 2005. Selling, general and administrative expenses
increased as a percentage of sales as a result of:
¢ recording share-based compensation expense of approxmately 0. 4% of net sales upon the 1mplemental10n of

SFAS 123R on January 1, 2006; e Ve \ ,
¢ a0.5% increase in certain fixed costs as a percentage ‘of sales during the year, including rent and depreciation,

as a result of low comparative sales growth; and
¢ a0.3% increase in expenses associated w:th higher costs for insurance programs, including workers’

compensation, auto Ilab|llty and general liabihty
l . R . . . . i

Additionally, AI contributed appro:umately 0.2% of selling, general and administrative expenses as a result of
the reinvestment of working capital to aecelerate their new store growth.

Interest expense for 2006 was $36.0 million, or 0.8% of net sales, as compared to $32.4 million, or 0.7% of net
sales, in 2005, The increase in interest expense is a result of both higher average outstanding debt levels and -
borrowing rates as compared to fiscal 2005. ln'addition, other income for fiscai 2006 deereased as a result of less
interest income associated with lower cash balances throughout the year, : :

Income tax expense for 2006 was $138.6 million, as compared to $144.2 million for 2005. Our effective
income tax rate was 37.5% and 38.1% for 2006 and 2005, respectively.

We generated net income of $231 3 million, or $2.16 per diluted share, for 2006, as compared to $234.7
million, or $2.13 per diluted share, for 2005. As a percentage of sales, net income for 2006 was 5.0%, as compared
to 5.5% for 2005. Our earnings per diluted share results reflect the impact on both earnings and the diluted share
count of implementing FAS 123R as further explained in this management’s discussion and analysis and in the notes
to our financial statements contained elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Fiscal 2005 Compared to Fiscal 2004 !
'

Net sales for 2005 were $4,265.0 million, an increase of $494.7 million, or 13.1%, over net sales for 2004. The
net sales increase was due to an increase in comparable store sales of 8.7%, contributions from the 151 new stores
opened within the last year and sales from acquired operations: The comparable store sales increase was driven by
an increase in average ticket sales and a slight |increase in customer traffic.

[}

Gross profit for 2005 was $2,014.5 millior:1, or 47.2% of net sales, as compared to $1,753.4 million, or 46.5% of
net sales, in 2004. The increase in gross profit as a percentage of sales reflects continued benefits realized from our
category management program in the form of better margins on key product categories and increased incentives
under our vendor programs and supply chain efficiencies.

Seiling, general and administrative expenses were $1,606.0 million, or 37.6% of net sales, for 20035, as
compared to $1,424.6 million, or 37.8% of net sales, for 2004. For fiscal 2005, we experienced a decrease in selling,
general and administrative expenses as a percentage of net sales resulting from our ability to leverage our strong
comparable store sales an_d'low_er self-insurancie expense partialty offset by higher fuel and energy costs.

Interest expense for 2005 was $32 4 million, or 0.7% of net sales, as compared to $20.1 million, or 0.5% of net
sales, in 2004. The increase in interest expense is a result of both h:gher average outstanding debt levels and
borrowing rates as compared to fiscal 2004.

!

Income tax expense for 2005 was $144.2 million, as compared to $117.7 million for 2004. . This increase in
income tax expense primarily reflects our hlgher earnings. Our effective income tax rate was 38.1% and 38.5% for )
2005 and 2004 respectively, L ) ,

We generated net income of $234.7 millio:n, or $2.13 per diluted share, for 2005, as compared to $188.0
million, or $1.66 per diluted share, for 2004, As a percentage of sales, net income for 2005 was 5.5%, as compared
to 5.0% for 2004. [
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Quarterly Consohdated Fmancnal Results (m thousands, except per share data) o g
£ 1

16-Weeks . 12-Weeks 12-Weeks 12-Weeks 16-Weeks 12-Weeks 12-Weeks  + 12-Weeks

\ Ended ’ Ended Ended Ended Ended | i Ended Ended * Ended
' 4/23/2005 7/16/2005" 10/8/2005 12/31/2005 4/22/2006 7/15/2006 10/7/2006 12/30/2006
Net sales ¢ £ 1,258,364 § 1,023,146 § 1,019,736 § 963,725 § 1,393,0‘lp $ 1,107,857 § 1099486 - % 1,016,150
Gross profit : 600,931 482,050 481,415 450,082 665,168 527,359 530,206 478,431
Net income $ 68,647 § 65,929 % 60,793 $ . 3935 74,081 3 62,936 3 58,947. §% 35,354
i i i ' ' ' . ii 1
Net income per share: - ! 4 B
Basict? ! $ ' 064§ 061 § 056 § 036§ 0.69° § 060 §  -056 §- 0.34
Diluted® LS 063§ 060 S 055 % 0.36_ $ 068§ 059 "% .. 056 ' 8§ 0.33

() Amounts reflect the effect of a three-for-two stock split of our common stock dlstnbuted on September 23

2005. “ o

il

oot

Liquidity and Capital Resources . o ’ |
1

Overview of L!qutdny . . N

. : 1 o

Our primary cash requirements include the purchase of inventory, capital expendltures payment of cash
dividends and contractual obligations. In addition, we have used available funds to rlepurchase shares of common
stock under our stock repurchase program and to pay quarterly cash dividends begmnmg in 2006. We have funded
these requirements primarily through cash generated from operations supplemented by borrowings under our credit
facilities as needed. We believe funds generated from our expected results of operatlons available cash and eash
equivalents and available borrowings under our revolving credit facility will be sufﬁcnent to fund our primary
obligations for the next fiscal year. . . , Y . 1

At December 30, 2006, our cash and cash equivalents balance was $11.1 mrlhon a decrease of 329. 6 m1111on
compared to fiscal, ;year-end 2005. Our cash and cash equivalents balance decreased pnmarlly due to the repurchase -
of common stock, dividends paid to our shareholders and an overall net increase in workmg capital during 2006 as
compared to 2005.” At December 30, 2006, we had outstanding indebtedness cons:stmg of borrowings of $477.2 .
million under our revolving credit facility, an increase of $38.4 million from 2005. Addmonally, we had $66.8
million in letters of credit outstanding, which reduced our cash availability under the! revolving credit facility to -

$206.4 million. , |

H

On February 15 2006, our Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash d1v1dend the first in our history. We
paid quarterly dividends of $0.06 per share to stockholders of record for each of our quarters during 2006.
Subsequent to December 30, 2006, our Board of Directors declared a quarterly dividend of $0.06 per share to be
paid on April 6, 2007 to all common stockholders of record as of March 23, 2007, '

Capital Expenditu'res '

Our primary capltal requirements have been the fundmg of our continued store expansmn program, 1ncludmg
new store openings and store acquisitions, store relocations and remodels, inventory; requ1rements the construction
and upgrading of qlstrlbutlon centers, the development and 1mplementat10n of proprlletary information systems and
our acquisitions. . . , ‘

Our capital expenditures were $258.6 million in 2006. These amounts included costs related to new store
openings, the upgrade of our information systems and remodels and relocations of e:lustmg stores. During fiscal
2006, we opened 215 AAP and Al stores, remodeled 189 AAP stores and relocated 47 AAP stores. In addition, we
also made a $12.5 mllllon contmgent payment in 2006 related to the acquisition of Autopart International. '

Our future capttal requxrements will depend in large part on the number of and tlmmg for new stores we open or
acquire within a given year and the number of stores we relocate or remodel. During; 2007 we anticipate adding 200

to 210 new AAP and Al stores, remodeling 150 AAP stores and relocating 35 AAP stores ‘Our new AAP stores, if -

t
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leased, require capital expenditures of approximately $0.2 million per store. Our remodeled stores generally require
capital expenditures of approximately $0.1 million per store, which reflects a forty percent reduction from 2006
levels. We believe that we can spend less in certain areas of our remodel program white continuing to benefit from
an increase in sales from the remodeled stores In 2007, we anticipate that our capital expenditures will be
_approximately $250.0. million to $270.0 rmlllon inclusive of approximately $30 0 mllllon for the construction of our
new Midwest distribution center scheduled to'open in mid-2008.

|
Additionally, our new AAP stores reqmre an mventory investment of approximately $0.2 million per store, net
of vendor payables. A portion of the mventory investment is held at a distribution facility. Pre-opening expenses,
consisting primarily of store set-up costs and iraining of new store team members, average approximately $0.02
miltion per store and are expensed when incurred.
Vendor Financing Program ;

Ll . 4
b

*

Historically, we have negotiated extended payment terms from suppliers that help finance inventory growth,
and we believe that we will be able to continue financing much of our inventory growth through such extended
payment terms. In fiscal 2004, we entered into a short-term financing program with a bank for certain merchandise
purchases. In substance, the program ailows us to borrow money from the bank to finance purchases from our
vendors. This program allows us to reduce further our working capital invested in current inventory levels and
finance future inventory growth. Our new revolving credit facility does not restrict availability under this program.
At December 30, 2006, $127.5 million was payable to the bank by us under this program.

L
1 : . . .

During the third quarter of fiscal 2005, OL:II' Board of Directors authorized a program to repurchase up to $300
million of our common stock plus related expenses. The program replaced the remaining portion of a previous
repurchase program. The program allows us to repurchase our common stock in the open market'or in privately
negotiated transactions from time to time in accordance with the requirements of the Securities and Exchange
Commission. As of December 30, 2006, we had repurchased a total of 5.2 million shares of common stock under
the program, at an aggregate cost of $196.0 million, or an average price of $37.63 per share, excluding related
expenses. At December 30, 2006, we had $104.0 million, Lxcludm;_., related expenses avallablc for future stock
repurchases under the stock repurchase program . :

Stock Repurchase Program

During fiscal 2006, we retired 5.1 millioq shares of common stock which were previously repurchased under
the $300 million stock repurchase program. +

During fiscal 2005, we retired 7.1 million shares of common stock, of which 0.1 million shares were
repurchased under the current stock repurchase plan, and 7.0 million shares were repurchased under our previous
program at an aggregate cost of $189.2 million, or an average price 0f $26.91 per share, excluding related expenses.

' +
»

:
Deferred Compensation and Postretirement Plans

We maintain a non-qualified deferred compensation plan established for certain of our key team members. This
plan provides for 4 minimum and maximum deferral percentage of the team member base salary and bonus, as
determined by our Retirement Plan Commmee We fund the plan liability by remitting the team members’ deferrals
to a Rabbi Trust where these deferrals are mvested in certain life insurance contracts. Accordingly, the cash
surrender value on these contracts is held in the Rabbi Trust to fund the deferred compensation liability. At
December 30, 2006, the liability relatgd 10 thi_is plan was $3.4 million, all of which is current. ,

4

We provide certain health care and life m'surance benefits for ehglb]e retired team members through our
postretirement plan. At December 30, 2006, our accrued benefit cost related to this plan was $10.5 million. The
plan has no assets and is funded on a cash basis as benefits are paid/incurred. The discount rate that we utilize for
determining our postretirement benefit obhgatlon is actuarially determined. The discount rate utilized at December
390, 2006 and December 31, 2005 was 5.5% and 5.5%, respectively, We reserve the right to change or terminate the
benefits or contributions at any time. We also continue to evaluate ways in which we can better manage these
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benefits and control costs. Any changes in the plan or revisions to assumptions thai affect the amount of expected -
future benefits may have a significant impact on the amount of the reported obligatiim and annual expense.

Effective second quarter of 2004, we' amended the postretirement plan to exclude odtpanent prescription drug |
benefits to Medicare eligible retirees effective January 1, 2006, Due to this negatwe plan amendment, our
accumulated postretirement benefit obligation was reduced by $7.6 million, resulting in an unrecognized negative
prior service cost in the-same'amount. The unrecognized negative prior service cost is being amortized over the 13-
year estimated remammg life expectancy of the plan partncnpants :

Analys:s of Cach Flows

-

R . - |
An analysrs of our cash flows for fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 is mcluded below. - !!

et -+ " Fiscal Year :- 'i

(in millions). - . . 2006 2005 12004 . .
Cash flows from operating activities % 333.6 $ 3216 $i 2604
Cash flows from investing activities (258.6) (302.8) l (166.8)
Cash flows from financing activities {104.6) (34.3) :i (48.8)
Net (decrease) 1nérease in cash and o . ’
cash equwalents $ 7 (296) $ (159,

i
| 1
Operating Acriw'tfes b . S ; 1

For fiscal 2006 net cash provided by operatmg activities increased $12.0 mllhon to $333. 6 mllhon Significant
components of thls increase consisted of? U :

"i-‘ ) . . . ,
s $152 mtlllon increase in earnings excluswe of $18.7 mlihon of mcrementa] non-cash, share-based
compensatlon expense compared to the same period in fiscal 2005; . . i ‘ I

¢  $19.5 million increase in depreciation and amortization; -+ ., - v E L
e §£24.] million decrease in cash inflows pnmarlly related to the sale of our p rivate label credit card portfolio
in fiscal 2005; S S . i{ .

s $24.9 million reduction in cash outﬂows net of accounts payable as a result of reducing mventory growth -
rates in line with our current sales trend; ;

s $33.4 million increase in cash flows from other assets related to the. tlrmng|0f payments for normal
operating expenses, primarily our monthly rent ‘ -

e §£17.5 million decrease in cash inflows relating to the timing of accrued operatmg expenses; and i

¢ $303 million decrease in cash flows-from tax benefits related to exercise of stock options. .

For fiscal 2005, net cash provided by operating. activities mcreased $61.2 m11110n to $321.6 million: Slgmfcant
components ofthls increase consisted of: PEERLS -; S

. $61 8 mllllon increase from hlgher net income beforc the non-cash 1mpact of deprec1atmn and amortization
over fiscal 2004;

e  $37.8 million increase in cash flow, primarily resulting from the reduction in trade receivables upon the
sale of our private label credit card portfolio; ‘

e $42.8 millicn decrease as a result of higher inventory levels needed for our‘Northeast distribution center
and expansion of the number of stores which carry an extended mix of parts'

e $25.7 million increase in other assets primarily due to timing in the paymem of our monthly rent;

s -£15.9 million increase in accounts payable reflective of the increase in inventory discussed above; and

e 3202 mllhon increase in accrued expenses related to the timing of payment*s for normal operating
expenses.’
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Investing Activities : .
For fiscal 2006, net cash used in mvestmg activities decreased by $44 2 million to $258.6 million. Significant
components of this decrease consisted of: ' .
: g S . . oo
e  §111.8 million related to acquisilionszin 2005, of which $12.5 million was-paid in 2006; .
» increase in capital expenditures of $42.4 million used primarily to accelerate our square footage growth
through adding new stores (includinglownership of selected new stores) and remodeling existing stores.

For fiscal 2005, net cash used in investingT activities increased by $136.0 million to $302.8 million. Significant
components of this increase consisted of: .

i
¢  $99.3 million used to acquire Al and iLappen Auto Supp]y, net of cash acquired; and
capital expenditures of $36.4 million used primarily to accelerate our square footage growth through new
stores (including ownership of selected new stores), the acquisition of certain leased stores and an increase
in store relocations. , ]
|
Financing Activities I .
For fiscal 2006, net cash used in ﬁnancmg activities increased by $70.3 million to $104.6 million. Slgmﬁcant

components of this increase consisted of: l -
[

$46.0 million cash cutflow resulting %’rom the timing of bank overdrafts;

$54.3 million decrease in financed vendor accounts payable;

$504.0 million cash inflow resulting from an increase in net borrowings;

$433.8 million used for early extinguishment of debt in fiscal 2006;

$19.2 million paid in dividends in fiscal 2006;

$36.0 million increase in cash used to repurchase shares of our common stock under our stock repurchase
program; | :

e $15.1 million decrease in proceeds from the exercise of stock options; and

s  $26.3 million increase resulting from-the repayment of secured borrowings in 2005.

+

For fiscal 2003, net cash used in ﬁnancmg activities decreased by $14.5 million to $34.3 million. Srgmficant

components of this decrease consisted of:

$40.9 million cash inflow resulting from the timing of bank overdrafts;

$161.2 million cash outflow resulting from a reduction innet borrowings;’

$105.0 million used for early extmgulshment of debt in fiscal 2004, : :

$44.8 million decrease in cash used to repurchase shares of our common stock under our-stock repurchase

program;

s  $32.6 miltion decrease resulting from the repayment of secured borrowings in connection with the.
reduction of trade receivables dlscussed above; and

e  $14.0 million in cash from the i mcrease in f' nanced vendor accounts payable and proceeds from the exercise
of stock options. | o -
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Contractuoal Obligations . : . ‘ ' . : .-
Our future crmtractual obligations related to long -term debt, operatmg leases and other contractual obligations
at December 30, 2006 were as follows ] o | : -

L 2 |

: Lot : Fiscal . Fiscal Fiscal , Fiscal Fiscal
Contractual Obligations Total 2007 2008 . 2009 2010 2011, . Thereafter
(in thousands} i

Long-term debt $ 477240 § . 67 § 75§ 718 73 ' $476.869 8 85
Interest payments $ 122530 % 2753 § 27052. § . 27,01(:) $ 27281 §$ 13651 & -
Letters of credit g 66,768 % 61,768 % 5000 & ;'; - - % - - % -
Operating leases'” , $ 2,018,132 $ 249905 § 222,693 § 205128 § 185473 $162,829 $ 992,104
Purchase obligations” _ $ 625 $ 500 § 125§ 1os -8 -8 -
Other long-term liabilities"”’ $ 61234 § - 3 - 5. : $ - 3 -8 -

e e

We lease certain store locations, distribution centers, office space, equipment and vehicles. Our property
leases generally contain renewal and escalation clauses and other leases concessions. These provisions are
censidered in our calculation of our minimum lease payments which are reco'gmzed as expense on a
- straight-line basis over the applicable tease term. In accordance with SFAS No 13, “Accounting for
Leases,” as amended by SFAS No. 29, “Determining Contingent Rental,” any lease payments that are
based upon-an existing index or rate, are included in our minimum lease payment calculations.
For the purposes of this table; purchase obligations are defined as agreements that are enforceable and
legally b1ndmg, a term of greater than one year and that specify all sngmﬁcam terms, including: fixed or "'
" minimum quantities to be purchased fixed, minimum or vartable price provisions; and the approximate
timing of the transaction. Our open purchase orders are based on current mve'ntory or operanonal needs and
are fulfilled by our vendors within short periods of time. We currently do not'have minimum purchase
commitments under our vendor supply agreements nor are our open purchase orders for goods and services
binding agreements. Accordingly, we have excluded open purchase orders from this table. The purchase
obligations consist of certain commitments for training and development. Thls agreement expires in March
2008. .'
Primarily includes employee benefits accruals and deferred income taxes for which no contractual payment
schedu]e exists. . :

). o M . ok

0

ey

(3}

5
i

Long Term Debt

‘
f,

On October 3, 2006, we entered into a new $750.0 million unsecured five-year revolvmg credit facility with our
subsidiary, Advance Stores Company, Incorporated, serving as the borrower. This new facility replaced the term
loans and revolver under our previous credit facility, Proceeds from this revolving loan were used to repay $433.8
million of pnnc:pal outstanding on the term loans and revolver under our previous credlt facility. In conjunction
with this refinancing, we wrote-off existing deferred financing costs related to our prelv1ous term loans and revolver.
The $1.9 million write-off of these costs was combined with a related gain on settlement of interest rate swaps of
$2.9 million for a nef gam on extinguishment of debt of $1.0 million. ! "

Additionally, the new facility provides for the issuance of letiers of credit with a sub limit of $300 million and
swingline loans in an amount not to exceed $50 million. We may request that the total revolvmg cornmitment be
increased by an amount not exceeding $250 million during the term of the credit agreemem Voluntary prepayments
and voluntary reductions of the revolving balance are permitted in whole or in part, at c')ur option, in.minimum
principal amounts as specifigd in the new revolving credit facility. :

As of December 30, 2006, we had borrowed $476.8 m1lhon under the revolver and| had $66 8 million in ]etters
of credit outstanding, which reduced availability under the revolver to $206.4 million. At December 30, 2006, we
also have interest rate swaps in place that effectively fix our interest rate exposure on approxlmately 50% of our
debt. These interest rate swaps are further dlscussed in our market risk analysis. 'l
i
1
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The interest rates on the borrowmgs under the new revolving credit facnhty will be based, at our option, on an
adjusted LIBOR rate, plus a margin, or an altemate base rate, plus a margin. After an initial interest period, we may
elect to convert a particular borrowing to a different type. The initial margin is 0.75% and 0.0% per annum-for the
adjusted LIBOR and alternate base rate borrowings, respectively. A commitment fee will be charged on the unused
portion of the revolver, payable in arrears. The initial commitment fee rate is 0.150% per annum. Under the terms of
the new revolving credit facility, the interest rate spread and commitment fee will be based on our credit rating. The
revolving credit facility terminates on October 5, 2011, o o

The revolving credit facility is fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Advance Auto Parts, Inc. The facility
contains covenants restricting the ability of us and our subsidiaries to, among other things, (1) create, incur or
assume additional debt (including hedging arrangements), (2) incur liens or engage in sale-leaseback transactions,
(3) make loans and investments, (4) guarantee obligations, (5) engage in certain mergers, acquisitions and asset
sales, (6) engage in transactions with afﬁhates (7) change the nature of our business$ and the business conducted by
its subsidiaries and (8} change our holding company status. We are required to comply with financial covenants with
respect to a maximum leverage ratio and a minimum coverage ratio. The new revolving credit facility also provides
for customary events of default, including non-payment defaults, covenant defaults and cross-defaults to our other
material indebtedness. '

In 2004, we wrote-off existing deferred 'ﬁnancing costs as a result of refinancing our outstanding term loans.
The write-off of these costs combined with the related refinancing costs incurred to set up the new revolving credit
facility resulted in a loss on extinguishment of debt of $2.8 million in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations for the year ended January 1, 2005 During fiscal 2004, prior to the refinancing of our credit facility, we
repaid $105.0 million in debt prior to its scheduled maturity. In conjunction with these partial repayments we wrote-
off deferred financing costs in the amount of $0.4 million, which is classified as a loss on extinguishment of debt in
the accompanying consolidated statement of operatlons for the year ended January 1, 2003,

We are required to comply with ﬁnanmal covenants in the revolving credit facility with respect lo (a) a
maximum leverage ratio and (b} a minimum, 'interest coverage ratio. We were in compliance with the above
covenants under the revolving credlt facﬂlty at December 30, 2006..

1

Credit Ratings . . : i (
1
At December 30, 2006, we had a credit rating from Standard & Poor’s of BB+ and a credit rating of Bal from
Moody’s Investor Service. The current pricing grid used to determine our borrowing rates under our revolving
credit facility is based on such credit ratings. If these credit ratings decline, our interest expense may increase.
Conversely, if these credit ratings improve, our interest expense may decrease,

New Accounting Pronouncements i

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Vatue Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities.” SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items
at fair value. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years begmmng, s after November 15, 2007. We are currently
evaluating the impact of SFAS No. 159.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SIITAS No. 158, “Employers” Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and
Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R}.” SFAS No. 158
requires recognition of the overfunded or underfunded status of defined benefit postretirement plans as an asset or
liability in the statement of financial position and to recognize changes in that funded status in comprehensive
income in the year in which the changes occur. SFAS No. 158 also requires measurement of the funded status of a
plan as of the date of the statement of financial position. We adopted the recognition provisions of SFAS No. 158 on
December 30, 2006 and recorded a reduction to the liability of $5.4 million and an impact to other comprehensive
income of $3.3 million, net of tax. SFAS No 158 is effective for the measurement date provisions for fiscal years
ending after December 15, 2008. We are curremly evaluatmg the 1mpact of adopting the measurement provusnons of
SFAS No. 158. |
E
!
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In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, staff iss@!ed Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year
Financial Statements,” or SAB 108. SAB 108 was issued in order to eliminate the diversity in practice surrounding
how public companies quantify financial statement misstatements. SAB IOS-requirefsf‘that registrants quantify errors
using both a balance sheet and income statement approach and evaluate whether eith;er approach results in a
misstated amount that, when all relevant quantitative and qualitative factors are considered, is material. SAB 108 is
effective for financial statements covering the first fiscal year ending after November 15, 2006. We adopted SAB
108 for the year ended December 30, 2006 with no lmpact on our consolidated finangial condition, results of
operations or cash flows. . .o e i; .

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurementé"’ SFAS No. 157 clarifies the
definition of fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands the disclosures on fair value
measurements. SFAS No. 157is effective for fiscal years beginning af‘ter Novemberi 15, 2007. We are currently
evaluating the impact of SFAS No. 157. o

coe |

Tn July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Imerpretanon No. 48, “Acceummg for Un!:ertamty in Tncome Taxes,” or
FIN 48. FIN 48 clarifies the accoummg and reporting for income taxes recognized i m accordance with SFAS No.
109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” FThe interpretation prescribes a recognition threlshold and measurement
attribute for the financial statement recognition, measurement, presentation and dlsclosure of uncertain tax posmons
taken or expected to be taken in income tax returns. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2006. We will adopt the provisions of FIN 48 as of December 31, 2006. Accordingly, we estimate a
cumulative effect adjustment will be recorded to reduce our retained earnings by an a'mount less than $8 million
upon initial adoption. . . . _ - . ‘

In March 2006, the FASB’s Emerging Issues Task Force, or EITF, released Issue 06-3, “How Sales Taxes
© Collected From Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should Be Présented in the Income
Statement,” or EITF 06-3. A consensus was'reached that entities may adopt a policy;c:yf presenting sales taxes in the
incorne statement on either a gross or net basis. [f taxes are significant, an entity should disclose its policy of
presenting taxes and the amount of taxes if reflected on a gross basis in the income statement. EITF 06-3 is effective
for periods beginning afier December 15, 2006. We present sales net of sales taxes iq'our consolidated statement of
operations and do not anticipate changing our policy as a result of EITF 06-3. .‘ -t

In March 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 156, “Accounting for Servicing of Fmanc1al Assets —an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 140.” SFAS No. 156 amends SFAS No. 140, “Accoummg for Transfers and
Servicing of Financial Assets and Extmgutshmenls of Liabilities,” with respect to thelaccounting for separately
recognized servicing assets and servicing liabilitics. SFAS No. 156 is effective for ﬁscal years beginning after !
September 15, 2006. We do not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 156 to have a materlal impact on our financial
condmon results of operations or cash flows, g 3

t

In February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No: 155, “Accounting for Certain Hybrld Financial Instruments - an
amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 and 140.” This statement simplifies accountmg for certain hybrid
instruments currently g,ovemed by SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instrup1ents and Hedging Activities,”
or SFAS No. 133, by al]owmg fair value remeasurement of hybrid instruments that contain an embedded derivative
that otherwise would require bifurcation. SFAS No. 155 also eliminates the gu:dance‘m SFAS No. 133
Implememauon Issue No. DI, “Application of Statement 133 to Beneficial Interests | in Securitized Financial
Assets,” which provides such beneficial interests are not subject to SFAS No. 133, SFAS No. 155 amends SFAS
No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Exlmgmshments of Liabilities - a
Replacement of FASB Statement No. 125, by eliminating the restriction on passive derlvatwe instruments that a
qualifying special-purpose entity may hold. SFAS No. 155 is effective for financial irl\struments acquired or issued
after the begmnmg of our fiscal year 2007. .We do not expect the adoption of SFAS No 155 to have a material
impact on our ﬁnanc:]a] condition, results of operauons or cash flows. ‘ ) ll

I
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualltatlve Dlslclosures about Market Risks..- . . S . L

We are exposed to cash ﬂow nsk due to changes in interest rates with respect to our long -term debt. Our long-
term debt currently consists of borrowings under a revolving credit facility and is primarily. vulnerable to-
movements in the LIBOR rate. While we cannot predict the impact interest rate movements will have on our debt, -
exposure to rate changes is managed through the use of hedging activities. ‘At December 30, 2006 approx1mately
$225 mllllon of our bank debt was fixed in accordance with the mterest rate swaps described below. - "«

i ' ' o I .

Our ﬁJture exposure to 1nterest rate risk i Is mltlgated as a result of entermg mto four new mterest rate swap
agreements in Qctober 2006 on an aggregate of $225 million of debt under our revolving credit facility. These
interest rate swaps replaced the prevrously optstandmg swaps settled asa result of our reﬁnancmg in October 2006

The f rst swap ﬁxed our LIBOR rate at 4 9675% on $75 mllllon of debt for a term of 60 months, expiring in
October 2011, The second swap fixed our LIBOR rate at 4.9680% on $50 million of debt for a term of 60 months, .
expiring in October 2011. The third swap fixed our LIBOR rate at 4.9800% on $50 million of debt for a term of 60
months, expiring in October.2011. The fourth swap fixed our LIBOR rate at 4. 9650% on $50 million of debt for a
term of 60 months, expmng in October 201 l[ o :

: | . . ,

Thetable below presents principal cash flows: and related welghted average interest rates on-our long-term debt

outstanding at December 30; 2006, by expected maturity-dates. Addmonally, the table includes the notional amounts
of our hedged debt and the impact of the ant1c1pated average pay and receive rates of our interest rate swaps through
their maturity dates. Expected maturity dates approximate contract terms.  Weighted average variable rates are -
based on implied forward rates in the yield curve at December 30, 2006. Implied forward rates should not be .

considered a predictor of actual future interest rates.

. L ' . R Fair
.\ * Fiscal | Fiscal , . ' Fiscal, , - .Fiscal . » Fiscal K oo "« Market
. . . 2007 | 2008 - 2009 » 2010 2011 Thereafter _ Total Liability
Long-term debt: . -, b, (dollars in thousands) R
|

Variable rate - -8 - % - % - - 8 - $476,800 5 - - $476,800°- § 476,800
Weighted average =~ '+ o - : : o . e ‘

interest rate 58% | 5.6% 56% T 5T%  5.8% - 5.7% -
Interest rate swap: N ) } ) ] .

. + _' + . LY ' i .

Variable to fixed” .+« $225000 $225, 000 $ 225000 $225,000 ~ $225000 . - - = § 252
Weighted average pay rate SRR <o 0% 0.1% *10.0% T Tl - + 0.0% -

Weighted average receiverate - - +.0:1%. |0 . - s 00% - 01% . - 0.0% -

v

) Amounts presented may not be outstanding for the entire year.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplerhentary Data. '( )

See financial stat{etnents included in ltem 15 “Exl‘li'_bits, Financial Statement'Schedu'ldsf’ of this annual report.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagréements with Accountants on Accounting and 'lj‘inancial Disclosure.

- | S

"None.

ltem‘9A. Controls and Procedures.”

| U RPN . . ,
Disclosure Controls and Procedures. Disclosure controls and procedures are our controls and other procedures that

are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in our reports that. we file or submit under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in
the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures
designed to ensure that information requ1red to be disclosed by us in our reports that we file or submit under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is accumulated and commumcated to our management, including our principal

f
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executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
Our mariagement has evaluated, with the participation of our principal executive ofﬁcer and principal financial officer,
the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the; penod covered by this report in
accordance with Rule 13a-15(b) under the Exchange Act. Based on this evaluation, our principal executive officer and

our principal financial officer have concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this report, our disclosure
controls and procedures were effective. N

. . o )
Managemem s Report on lmernal Control over Financial Reporting, Managemenit’s Report on Internat Control over
Financial Reporting is set fonh in Part 1V, Item 15 of this annual repott. Ii

. ‘
) )

There have been no changes tn our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended

December 30, 2006 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materiall'g} affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.

‘
1
. :

' , - [ - . .

Item 9B. Other Information. ’

None.
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Item lﬂ Directors, Executive Officers and|C0rp0rate Gm ernance. s
| . .

* ' 1 ! Kl
See the mformauon set forth in 1he sections entltled “Proposal No I — Election of D1rectors Corporate -
Governance,” “Meetings and Committees of the Board,” “Information Concerning Our Executive Officers,” “Audit
Committee Report,” and “Section 16(a). Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in our proxy statement for the
2007 annual meeting of stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year ended
December 30, 2006 (the “2007 Proxy Statement”), which is lncorporated herein by reference.
. i . .
Item 11. Executive Compensation.. - ' I T S . :
Lo . '

See the information set forth in the secti(:)ns entitled “Meetings and Committees of the Board — Compensation
Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation,” “Compensation Committee Report” and ¥Executive ++ ™':- -
Compensation” in the 2007 Proxy Statement, which is incorporated herein by reference.

! :
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneﬁclal Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters. .

LIS

See the information set forth in ltem 5-—“Equity Compensation Plan Information” of this Form 10-K and the section
entitled "Security Ownership of Certain Benéficial Owners and Management" in the 2007 Proxy Statement, which is
incorporated herein by reference. '

i
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.
[

See the information set forth in the sections entitled "Related-Party Transactions,” “Proposal No. 1 — Election of

Directors —Compensation Committee Inter]ofcks and Insider Participation” and “Corporate Governance” in the 2007

Proxy Statement, which is incorporated hereiin by reference,

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and S'ervices.

See the information set forth in the secnon entitled “2006 and 2005 Audit Fees” in the 2007 Proxy Statement,
which is incorporated herein by reference. |
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING

A M
| - eae 1d .. 4 . P . !

Management of Advance Auto Parts, Inc, anv::l subsidiaries (the Company) is responsible for establishing and -
maintaining adequate internal control over ﬁlnancial reporting. The Company’s internal control over financial
reporting is a process designed under the supervision of the Company’s principal executive officer and principal
financial officer to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of the Company’s financia! statements for exltemal purposes m accordance with accountmg pnncxples generally

acccpted in the United States of America. | B

| . . . o

Our internal control over financial reporting includes policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with accountmg principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or dlsposmon of the Company ] assets that could have a matenal effect
on the ﬁnanc:al statements ;

’ f
As of December 30, 2006, management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on the criteria established in flirztemal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commlssmn (COSO0). Based on this assessment, management has
determined that the Company’s intemal control over financial reporting as of December 30, 2006 is effective.
Because of the inherent limitations of interna! control over financial repomng, ‘including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or
detected on a timely basis. Also, pro_]ecttons of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Lo '

. s . . . .
Deloitte & Touche LLP, the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm who audited the Company’s
consolidated financial statements, has issued an attestation report on management’s assessment of the Company’s

internal control over financial reporting as of December 30, 2006 which is included on page F-3 herein.
!

Nl Coppr A

Michael N. Coppela 7 Michael O. Moore
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
v :

February 28, 2007 |
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM .

i

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of | ' . .': o
Advance Auto Parts Inc. and Subsu:llanes . , L
Roanoke, Vlrgmla L o o I

: oy J

We have audited the accompanying consoltdated balance sheets of Advance Auto Parts Inc and subSIdlarles (the
Company) as of December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, and the related consolldated statements of operatlons
changes in stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the penod ended December 30, 2006
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is io express an
opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. o i' . .,
We conducted our audits i in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accoluntmg Oversight Board (Umted
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on'a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessmg the accountmg principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall ﬁnancmt statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our oplmon ;1 )
t .

In our opinion, such conselidated fmanCIaI statements present fairly, in all matenal respects the financial posmon of
Advance Auto Parts, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 30, 2006 and December 31 2005, and the results of their

operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 30, 2006, in conformlty wnh

accounting pr1nc1ples generally accepted in the Umted States of America. : ‘ . N
As discussed in Notes 2, 17 and 18 to the consohdated financial statements, in 2006 the Company changed its method of
accountmg for share-based payments to conform to Financial Accounting Standards Blc)ard (FASB) Statement No. 123
(R), Share- Based Payment, and changed its method of accounting for other postreurement benefits to conform to FASB
Statement No. 158, Employers ' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Pastrettremem Plcms an amena’ment
of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132 (R). - li .
We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accoxlmtmg Oversight Board (United
States), the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 30, 2006, based on
the criteria established in Internal Control—integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 27, 2007 exp}'essed an unqualified opinion on
management's assessment of the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting and an
ungualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over f'manc1al reporting.

Dotk §-rRmkecr

McLean,' Virginia .
February 27, 2007
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders Tof
Advance Auto Parts,.Inc. and Subsidiaries L . o .
Roanoke, Virginia l ' ' '
We have audited management’s assessment,.included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting, that Advance Auto Parts, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 30, 2006, based on criteria established in Jnternal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of
the effectiveness of internal control over 'financial reporting. Our respon51b|]1ty i$ 10" express  an opinion on
management’s assessiment and : an opinion or the effeetlveness of the Company $ lntemal control over financial repomng
based on our audit, ' t L "
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States) Those standards reql.nre that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
‘efféCtive internal Control over financial reportmg was maintained in all material respects. Qur audit included obtammg
an understanding of internal control over Iﬁnanelal reporting, evaluating management § assessment, testmg and
evaluating the design and operatmg effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we
'conS|dered necessary in the cnrcumstances We beheve that our ‘audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.
A company s internal control over ﬁnancnal repomng 'is a process des1gned by, or under the supemsmn of, the
company’s prmc;pal executive and principal fi financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by
the company’s board of directors, management ‘and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparatlon of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dlsposmons of the assets of the company; (2) prowde reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to perrmt preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the | company are being made only i in accordance with authorizations of
management and dn'ectors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assuratice regardmg prevenuon or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, orydisposition of the company s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements. ,
Because of the inherent limitations of intéral control over ﬂnanCIal reportmg, meludlng the possibility of collusion or
improper management ovemde of controls; material misstatements due to error or'fraud may not be prevented or
detected on a timely basis. Also prOJectlons of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial
reporting 16 future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become madequate because "of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of Compllanee wnh the policies or procedures may deterlorate '

b
In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting
as of December 30, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the criteria established in Inrernal Controi—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Also inour
opinicn, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 30, 2006, based on the criterialestablished in faternal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

f

'
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We have also audited, in accordance with'thie standards of the'Public Company Accountmg Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 30 2006 of the Company and our
report dated February 27, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on those fi nancnal statements and included an

explanatory paragraph regardm&, the Company's adoption of new aceountmg standards
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Current assets:

ADVANCE AU:TO PARTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 30, 2606 and December 31, 2005

(in thousands, except per share data)

D |

Asset_s

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables, net
Inventories, net -

Other current assets

Total current assets

Property and equipment, net of accumulat;ed depreciation of

$670,571 and $564,558

Assets held for sale

Goodwill

Intangible assets, net

Other assets, net

Current liabilities:
Bank overdrafts

Liabilities and Stockh(l)lders' Equity

Current portion of long-term debt

Financed vendor accounts payable

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Qther current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Other long-term liabilities

Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders' equity:

Preferred stock, nonvoting, $0.0001 par v:iilue,

10,000 shares authorized; no shares issued or outstanding
Common stock, voting, $0.0001 par value, 200,000

shares authorized; 105,351 shares issuedl and outstanding

in' 2006 and 109,637 issued and 108,198; outstanding in 2005

- Additional paid-in capital

Treasury stock, at cost, 1,439 shares in 20@5 ‘

}

|
|
|
|
|
|

|
|

!
i

!
I
|
[
i
1
!
|
!
1
|

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Retained earnings

Total stockholders' equity

.
I
f
[
|

December 30, )

December 31,

2006 2005
$ 11,128 § 40,783
97,046 94,689
1,463,340 . 1,367,099
40,459 45,369
1,611,973 1,547,940
994,977 898 851
1,548 8,198
33,718 67,004
27,926 -
12,539 20,066

$ 2,682,681 $ 2,542,149
$ 34206 $ 50,170
67 32,760

127,543 119,351
651,587 629,248
252,975 265,437
47,042 44,498
1,113,420 1,141,464
477,173 406,040
61,234 74,874

11 11

414,153 564,965

- (55,668)

3,472 3,090
613,218 407,373
1,030,854 919,771

$ 2,682,681 § 2,542,149

) . .
The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

are an integral part of these statements, -

|
i
i
!
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i
ADVANCE AUTO PARTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIAR]ES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

| For the Years Ended December 30, 2006, December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005
! (in thousands, except per share data)

Fislcal Years: Ended

2006 . ‘ 2005 2004
. R |
Net sales : . $ 4,616,503 l$ 4,264,971 $ 3,770,297
Cost of sales, including purchasmg and warehousing costs 2,415.339 rl 2,250,493 2,016,926
Gross profit . 2,201,164 ' 2,014,478 1,753,371
Selling, general and administrative expenses 1,797,814 1,605,986 1,424,613
Operating income 403,350 | 408,492 328,758
OQther, net: i t
Interest expense (35,992) (32,384) (20,069).
Gain (loss) on extinguishment of debt ' . 986 ‘ - {3,230)
Other income, net ' 1,571 4 2,815 : 2897
Total other, net- . (33,435) (29,569) (23,010)
Income from continuing operations before provision for - ' N ! ’
income taxes and loss on discontinued operations - 369,915 : 378,923 . 305,748
Provision for income taxes i 138,597 . 144198 117,721
Income from continuing operations before loss on ' . ! ! .
) discontinued operations ) 231,318 : 234,725 188,027, .
. Discontinued operations: ' !
Loss from operations of discontinued Wholesate ..
Dealer Network - - (63)
Benefit for income taxes ' - - 24 .
Loss on discontinued operations - S - 1" (39)
Net income $ 231,318 $ 234,725 - % 187,988
' ﬁ i ' _
Net income per basic share from: ' i ‘
Income from continuing operations before toss on k ' I . .o
discontinued operations . : 8 2.18 3 217 3 1.70:
Loss on discontinued operations | - 3 . -
! . 3 2.18 % 2.17 b 1.70
. Net income per diluted share from: il '
Income from continuing operations before loss on ) ! : :
discontinued operations 3 216 % 213 © § 1.66
Loss on discontinued operations - TI R -
3 216 § 2.13 5 1.66.
Average common shares outstanding ' 106, 129 I 108,318 ) 110,846
Dilutive effect of stock options 995 1,669 2,376
Average common shares outstanding - assuming dilution 107,124 4 109,987 113,222
| i
{
4
1
[
‘!
!

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
are an mtegral part of these statements.
- F-6
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' ADVANCE AUTO PARTS, INC!AND SUBSID]AR'IES
.~ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For. the Years Ended December 30, 2006, December 31, 2005 and“lanuary 1,2005

‘ (in thousands)

'

Fiscal Years Ended

‘ . an

Cash flows from operatmg activities:
Net income . o 3
i Adjustments to reconcile net'income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
| Depreciation and amortization
| Amortization of deferred debt issuance costs
| Share-based compensation -
Loss on disposal of property and equipment, net
(Benefit) provision for deferred income taxes
Excess tax benefit from share-based compensation
Tax benefit related to exercise of stock options
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Net decrease (increase) in: '
Receivables, net
Inventories, net .
Other assets
Net increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable !
Accrued expenses
Other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment
Business acquisitions, net of ;cash acquired
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash Nows from financing activities:
(Decrease) increase in bank overdrafts
Increase in financed vendor accounts payable
Early extinguishment of debt
Dividends paid '
(Payments) borrowings on note payable
Borrowings under credit facilities
Payments on credit facilities
Payment of debt related costs
Proceeds from the issuance of common stock, primarily exercise
of stock options
Excess tax benefit from share-based compensation
Repurchase of common stock
Increase (decrease) in borrowings secured by trade receivables

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $

2006 1 2005 2004
231,318 5§ 234725 § 187,988
' LY
139, 423 119,938 ;104,877
534, . 620 1,082
19,052 363 494
2,103 503 . 447
(6,562) 2,790 6,508
(5,272) - -
- 30,300 123,749
1,887, - 3,230
@, 318) 21,819 (15,945)
(92,239) (130,426) (87,669)
9,412 (23,963) 1,750
22,339 35610 19,673
15,264 32,805 12,581
(1,337) (3.452) 1,632
333.604 321,632 260,397
(258,586) (216,214) (179,766)
(12,500) (99,300) .
12,444 12,734 12,944
(258,642) (302,780) (166,822)
L
(15.964) 29,986 (10,901)
8,192 62,455 56,896
(433,775) - (105,000)
(19,153) - -
(60) 500 -
678,075 1,500 256,500
(205,800) (33,200) (126,500)
(1,070) - (3,509)
17, 20'3 32,275 23,867
5,272 - .
(137,560) (101,594) (146,370)
23 (26,312) 6,276
(104.617) (34,390 (48.741)
(29,655) (15,538) 44,834
40,783 © 56,321 11,487
11,128 § 40,783 § 56,321

|
|
|

The.accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

- are an integral part of these statements.
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ADVANCE AU’i‘O PARTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - (Continued)
For the Years Ended December 30, 2006, December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005

(in thousands)

|
I
I
' _ : 2006 2005 2004
Supp]emental cash flow information: | L
Interest paid ’ | 24,822 $ 23,455 15,616
Income tax payments, net ! © 130,131 "*115,408 86,051
Non-cash transactions: } C
Accrued purchases of property and equipment | 24,011 " 39,105 21,479
Repurchases of common stock not settled | oo ' 889 - c-
Retirement of common stock ) I 192,339 193,185 -
Reclassification of net gain on hedges into earnings ! (2,873 . - -
Unrealized (loss) gain on hedge arrangements l {61} 2,276 1,343
Adjustment to initially apply FASB Statement No. 158, net of tax 3,316 S .
Declared cash dividend unpaid at December 30, 2006 6,320 - -
Contingent payment accrued on acquisition | - ‘12,500 -
Accounts and note receivable upon disposal of property ar;ld equipment - 2,714 1,225

1

3

The accompanyirig notes to consolidated financial statements
are an integral part of these statements. -
i
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ADVANCE AUTO PARTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 30, 2006, December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005

(in thousands, except per share data) ' |

1. Organization and Description of Business:, '

Advance Auto Parts, Inc. (“Advance”) conducts all of its operations through enher 1ts whol]y owned subsidiary,
Advance Stores Company, Incorporated and its subsidiaries ("Stores") or Autopart lntematlonal (“AI™), collectively,
the “Company.” Stores operate 2,995 stores within the United States; Puerto Rico and. the Virgin Islands. The -
Company operates 2,958 stores throughout 40 states in the Northeastern, Southeastem and Midwestern regions of
the United States. These stores operate under the “Advance Auto Parts™ trade name clxcept for certain stores in the
State of Florida which operate under the “Advance Discount Auto Parts” trade name. These stores offer a broad
selection of brand name and proprietary automotive.replacement parts, accessories and-maintenance items for
domestic and imported cars and light trucks, with no significant concentration in any: specxﬁc product area. In
addition, Stores operates 37 stores under the “Western Auto” and “Advance'Auto Paits” trade names, located
primarily tn Puerto Rico and the Virgin Islands. The Western Auto stores offer automotive tires and service in
addition to automotive parts, accessories and maintenance items. Al operates 87 storés under the “Autopart
International” trade name throughout the Nonheastem region of the Umted States. _" . : ‘. v

. . : . t

2. Summary of Slgmﬁcant Accounting Policies: !
3

!

Accountmg Perlod .

The Company's fiscal year ends on the Saturday nearest the end of December, Wthh results in an extra week
every six years (the next 53 week fiscal year is 2009). All other f scal years presented mclude 52 weeks of
operations. r : ‘ :

B = - [
Principles of Consolidation : : 4

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned sub51d|anes
All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been ehmmated in consolldatlon

'
o A d . . i

Use of Estimates : c o C o . : T
. ' o vl . o
‘The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts.
of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements.
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

. . - : . f
Cost of Sales and Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

The following table illustrates the primary costs classified in each major expenséicategory:

Cost of Sales . ’ Lo S SG&A " : b o '
e Total cost of merchandise sold including: " . Payroll and benefit costs 'for retail and corporate team
e Freight expenses associated with moving members, including share-based compensation;

Occupancy costs of rctall! and corporate facilities;
Depreciation related to retail and corporate assets;
Advertising; '
Self-insurance cbsts; \

merchandise inventories from our vendors to our
distribution center;
* Vendor incentives;
& 'Cash discounts on paymenis to vendors;
s Inventory shrinkage; Professional services; anili
Warranty costs; Other administrative costs, such as credit card service
& Costs associated with operating our distribution fees, supplies, travel and lodging.
network, including payroli and benefit costs, occupancy
costs and depreciation; and '
& Freight expenses associated with moving merchandise |
inventories from our distribution center to our retail stores. . ;

F-10




J
!

ADVANCE AUTO PARTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)
December 30, 2006, Decembeér 31, 2005 and January [; 2005
(in thousands, except per share data)

|

[
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Bank Overdrafits

) . . , ,
Cash-and cash equivalents consist of cash in banks and money market funds with original maturities of three
months or less. Bank overdrafts consist of net outstanding checks not yet presented to a bank for settlement.

Vendor Incentives ,
The Company receives incentives in the form of reductions to amounts owed and/or payments from vendors.
related to cooperative advertising allowances, volume rebates and other promotional considerations. The Company :
accounts for vendor incentives in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force, or EITF, No. 02-16, “Accounting by

a Customer (Including a Reseller) for Certain Consideration Received from a Vendor.” Many of the incentives are
under long-term agreements (terms in excess of one year), while others are negotiated on an annual basis.
Cooperative advertising allowances and volume rebates are earned based on inventory purchases and initially
recorded as a reduction 1o inventory. The deferred amounts are included as a reduction to cost of sales as the
inventory is sold. Total deferred vendor incentives in inventory is $35,393 and $33,175 at December 30, 2006 and .
December 31, 2003, respectively. :
|
The Company recognizes other promotional incentives earned under long-term agreements as a reduction to
cost of sales. These incentives are recognized based on the cumulative net purchases as a percentage of total
estimated net purchases over the life of the agreement. The Company's margins could be impacted positively or
negatively if actual purchases or results from any one year differ from its estimates; however, the impact over the
life of the agreement would be the same. Short-term incentives (terms less than one year) are recognized as a
reduction to cost of sales over the course of the agreements.
' |
Amounts received or receivable from vendors that are not yet earned are reflected as deferred revenue in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Management's estimate of the portion of deferred revenue that will be
realized within one year of the balance sheet date has been included in other current liabilities in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets. Total deferred revenue is $8,006 and $12,529 at December 30, 2006 and December 31,
2005, respectively. Earned amounts that are receivable from vendors are included in receivables, net on the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets, except for that portion expected to be received after one year, which is
included in other assets, net on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets..

g +

Preopening Expenses
!
Preopening expenses, which consist primarily of payroll and occupancy costs, are expensed as incurred.
: .

Income Taxes |

- l * .

The Company uses the liability method of accounting for income taxes in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards, or SFAS, No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Under the liability method, .
deferred income taxes are determined based upon enacted tax laws and rates applied to the differences between the
financial statements and tax bases of assets and liabilities.

Advertising Costs - 7 !
The Company expenses advertising costsf as inc.u'rred_ in accordance with the American Institute of Certified

Public Accountant’s Statement of Position, or SOP, 93-7, “Reporting on Advertising Costs.” Gross advertising
expense incurred was approximately $97,215, $95,702 and $86,821 in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.




-ADVANCE AUTO PARTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
‘NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - —‘- (Continued)
December 30, 2006, December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005
«(in thousands, except per share data)

Warranty Costs: . \ y L ¢ b - '

The Company's vendors are primarily responsible for warranty claims. Warranty costs relating to merchandise
(primarily batteries) sold under warranty, which are not covered by vendors' warranties, are estimated-based on the
Company's historical experience.and are recorded in the period the product is sold The following table presents
changes-in our warranty reserves. . ' g I

Tr e, o TR . December 30, December 31, January 1,
: L SR - 2006 - . 2005 ' 2005

i

Warranty resérves, beginning | | o :
of period . ' o s 1352 0§ o960 s 5578

Resegves established o 17352 1 14,268 13,071
Reserves utlhzed(” : : {(15,635) . f{-(13,8@ (17,689)
Warranty reserves, end of ‘ - A .

period . |, L : '$ 13069 , $ 11352 § 10960

M Reserves at the beginning of fiscal 2004 included $1,656 of reserves established for the transition of the

discontinued operations of the wholesale dealer network. Substantially all th"ase reserves were utilized
during fiscal 2004, l

kB
K
iT .

The Company recognizes merchandise revenue at the pomt of sale to customers. ~The majority of sales are made
for cash and credit with no recourse; however, the Company extends credit to certain commercral customers through
a third-party prov:der of private label credit cards. In August 2005, the Company begaln using a new third party to,
process its prwate label credit’ card transactions subsequent to the sale of its existing credn card portfolio. Under the
new arrangement receivables under the private iabel credit card program are generally transferred to a third-party
provider with no recourse. The Company will continue to transfer a limited amount olf receivables with recourse. \
The Company provides an allowance for doubtful accounts Jon receivables sold with recoursc based upon factors

related to credit risk of specific customers, historical trends “and other information. Recewables sold with recourse
are accounted for as a secured borrowing. Receivables and the related secured borrowmgs under the private label

credit card were $610 and $587 at December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respecitwely and are included in
accounts receivable and other current liabilities, respectively, in the accompanying coinsohdated balance sheets.

[
. ] - . . I‘

Revenue Recogni’tion and Trade Receivabies _

Sales Returns and Allowances

The Company $ accounting pollcy for sales retums and a]lowances consists of estlabhshmg reserves for_
estimated returns at the time of sale. The Company estimates returns based on current salés levels and the
Company’s historical return experience on a specific product basis. : \I

a0 . . . M 'l '
. [
Lo

'l

The Company presents sales net of sales taxes in its consolidated statements of operauons

Sales Taxes

Share-Based Payments .|

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for its share-based compensanon plans as prescribed by
Accounting Principles Board or APB, Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued!to Employees,” or APB No.
|
25. The Company recorded no compensation cost in its statement of operations prior to fi fiscal 2006 for its fixed
stock option grants as the exercise price equaled the fair market value of the underlying stock on the grant date. In
addition, the Company did not recognize compensation expense for its employee stock purchase plan since it
qualified as a non-compensatory plan under Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code#of 1986, as amended. The

|
|
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ADVANCE AUTO PARTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL.STATEMENTS - (Continued)
December 30, 2006 December 31, 2005 and January 1; 2005
(in thousands, except per share data)

Company did recognize an insignificant amount of share-based compensation expense related to the grant of .1 7
deferred stock units to its Board of Dlrectors
T ) .

On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No 123 (rewsed 2004) "Share Based
Payment," or SFAS No. 123R. SFAS No..123R replaces SFAS No. 123 and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25 and
subsequently issued stock option related guldance The Company elected to use the modified-prospective method of
implementation. Under this transition method, share-based compensation expense for the fiscal year ended -
December 30, 2006 included compensation expense for all share-based awards granted subsequent to January I,
2006 based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123R, and
compensation expense for all share-based av:vards granted prior to but unvested as of January 1, 2006 based on the
grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with original provisions of SFAS No. 123. .

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to value all options and the straight-line method to
amortize this fair value as compensation cost over the requisite service period. Total share-based compensation
expense included in sellmg, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations for the fiscal year ended December 30, 2006 was $19,052. The related income tax benefit was $7,145.
The Company recognized $363 and $494 of share- based compensation expense in accordance with APB No. 25 for
the fiscal years ended December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2003, respectively. In accordance with the modified-
prospective transition method of SFAS No. 123R the Company has not restated prior perlods ' :

|

As a result of adopting SFAS No. 123R on January 1, 2006, the Company’s earnings before income tax expense
and net earnings for the fiscal year ended December 30, 2006 were $18,767 and $11,730 lower, respectively, than if
the Company had continued to account for share-based compensation under APB No. 25. The related impact in 2006
to basic and diluted earnings per share i is $0 11 for the fiscal year ended December 30, 2006

1

 In Novernber 2005, the FASB issued- FASB Staff Position No. FAS 123R-3 “Transition Election Related to*
Accounting for Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards.” We elected to adopt the alternative transition method
provided in the FASB Staff Position for calci:ulatmg the tax effects of stock-based compensatlon The alternative '
transition method mcludes simplified methods to determine the beginning balance of the additional paid-in capital
(APIC) pool related to the tax effects of stock-based compensation, and to determine the subsequent impact on the '_
APIC pool and the statement of cash flow of the tax effects of stock-based awards thal were fully vested and
outstanding upon the adoption of SFAS No! 123R.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No.123R, the Company reported the benefit of tax deductions in excess of
recognized stock compensation expense, orlexcess tax benefits, resulting ‘from the exercise of stock options as
operating cash inflows in its consolidated statements of cash flows. In accordance with SFAS No.123R, the
Company revised its statement of cash flows presentation prospectively to include these excess ‘tax benefits from the
exercise of stock options as financing cash inflows rather than operating cash inflows. Accordingly, for the fiscal
year ended Deeember 30, 2006, the Company reported $5,272 of excess tax beneﬁts asa fi nancmg ‘cash mﬂow

The following table reflects the impact:on net income and e¢arnings per share as if the Company had applied the
fair value based method of recognizing share-based compensation costs as prescribed by SFAS No. 123 for the
fiscal years ended December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005, respectively.

|

] . 1

f
[
i
!
i
f
-[ . . ' S .
|
t
|
|



, ADVANCEAUTOPARTS[NC,ANDSUBHDhuﬁES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS L {Continued)
December 30, 2006, December 31, 2005 and January l' 2005
{in thousands, except per share data) ‘

2005 10 2004

o R Y

- Net'income, as reported ' $ 234,72!5l $ 187,988
Add: Total stock-based employee compensation™ ' '
expense included in reported net income, net ;

. of related tax effects 225 304
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation ‘ ;
expense determined under fair value based method . ; :

for all awards, net of related tax effects (9,622) (5,977)
Pro forma net income $ 225328 $ 182,315

|
Net'income per share: ' . ' T ‘ :l .

]

P I

Basic, as reported $ 2. li'la’ 3 1.70
Basic, pro forma , 2.08 1.64
Diluted, as reported 23 1.66
Diluted, pr? forma - o ) ' 2.0{-!1 1.61

i
Earnings Per Share of Common Stock o i

Basic earnings per share of common stock has been computed based on the wei‘ghted—averagc number of
common shares outstanding, less stock held in treasury, during the period. Diluted é?mings per share of common
stock reflects the increase in the weighted-average number of shares of common stogk outstanding assuming the
exercise of outstanding stock options, calculated on the treasury stock method as modlﬁed by the adoption of SFAS
123R, and all deferred stock units outstanding during the respective perlod There were 2,140, 517 and 510
antidilutive options for the fiscal years ended December 30; 2006, December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005,
respectively. ‘ i

!
Hedge Acnvmes

The Company utlllzes mterest rate swaps to limit its cash flow risk on its vanable rate debt. In connection with .
the refinancing of its credit facility.in October 2006, the Company entered into four new interest rate swap
agreements on an aggregate of $225,000 of debt under its revolving credit facility. The Company settled its previous
three interest rate swaps, and accordingly, recognized income of $2,873 resulting from the reclassification of the
previously unrealized gain from other comprehensive income. As of December 30, 2006 the detail for the new -
individual swaps is as follows: '

¢ The first swap fixed the Company’s LIBOR rate at 4.9675% on $75,000 of tl;lebt for a term of 60 momhq

expiring in October 2011,

s The second swap fixed the Company’s LlBOR rate at 4, 9680% on $50 000 of debt for a term of 60 months,

expiring in October 2011. . '|

s The third swap fixed the Company’s LIBOR rate at 4.9800% on $50,000 of debt for a term of 60 months

expiring in October 2011.
¢ The fourth swap fixed the Company’s LIBOR rate at 4.9650% on $50,000 of debt for a term of 60 months,
expiring in October 2011. j
. J

In accordance with SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and' Hedgmg ACtIVltleS,” the fair
value of the Company’s outstanding hedges is recorded as an asset or liability in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets at December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively. The Company uses the “matched terms”
accounting method as provided by Derivative Implementation Group Issue No. G9 '{‘Assuming No Ineffectiveness
When Ciritical Terms of-the Hedging Instrument and the Hedge Transaction Match in a Cash Flow Hedge” for the
interest rate swaps. Accordingly, the Company has matched the critical terms of each hedge instrument to the

t
!
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ADVANCE AUh‘O‘PARTS, INC. AND SUBSIDMARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)
December 30, 2006, December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005
(in thousands, except per share data)

|
hedged debt. Therefore, the Company has recorded all adjustments to the fair value of the hedge instruments in
accumulated other comprehensive income through the maturity date of the applicable hedge arrangement. The fair
value at December30, 2006 and December 31 2005, respectively, was an unrecognized gain of $156 and $3,090 on
the swaps. Any amounts received or paid under these hedges will be recorded in the statement of operations as
earned or incurred. : ; C : ‘ , o

Based on the estimated current and future fair values of the hedge arrangements at December 30, 2006, the
Company estimates amounts currently mcluded in accumulated other comprehensive income that will be reclassified

to earnings in the next 12 months will consnst of a net loss of $104 assocnated wnth the mteresl rate swaps
[ } .o

]

Accumulated Otherj Comprel_n’enswe lncomle ) i o

Accumulated other comprehensive income is reported in accordance with SFAS No. 130, “Reporting

Comprehensive Income.” Accumulated other|comprehensive income consists of the following:
p | p g
i )

! Accumulated.

\ - Unrealized gain Adjustment to - Other .
' . (loss) on hedge adopt FASB Comprehensive
arrahgement " Statement No. 138 Income

Balance, January 3, 2004 ) ' (529) 3 -~ .8 . (529) -,
Fiscal 2004 activity L1343 - 1,343
Balance, January 1, 2005 8. 4., 814§ - $ . .. , 8l4 .
Fiscal 20035 activity . D 2,276 . T . 2,276 .
Balance, December 31,2005  § . 3,090 $ : -, 3% . 3,090.

Balance, Decémber-30,2006 .+ § . .- 156 .§ e 3316 - 8§ SR 3,472,

Fiscal 2006 activity - 1 (2,934) . 3316 - . 382
}
Goodwill and Other Entangible Assets :

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwiil and Other Intangible Assets,” the Company tests goodwill and
other indefinite-lived intangibles for impairment at Iéast on an annual basis. Testing for impairment is a two-step
process as prescribed in SFAS-No. 142. The first step is a review for potential impairment; while the second step
measures the amount of impairment, if any. The Company has elected to complete its annual impairment test as of
the first day of its fourth quarter. An 1mpa1rment loss would be recognized when the assets” fair value is below their
carrying value. For fiscal 2006, our lmpamnent analysis yielded no impairment.’ !

Valuatlon of Long-leed Assets

,t n . 1 . . )

The Company evaluates the recoverabﬂlty of its long-lived assets under Lhe provnsmns of SFAS No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived-Assets.” SFAS No: 144 requires the review for
impairment of long-lived assets, whenever events or changes in circumstances mdlcate that the carrying amount of
an asset might not be recoverable and exc:eeds| its fair value. b .o e e .

;Significant factors, which would trigger an impairment review, include the, following:

Significant negative industry trends;}
Significant changes in technology;" ’ e,
Significant underutilization of assets;and » - L .

Slgmf icant ehanges in how assets are used or are planned to be used. '

When such an event occurs; the Company estimates the future cash ﬂows expected to result from the use of the
asset and its eventual disposition. These impairment evaluations involve estimates of asset useful lives and future *

F-15
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ADVANCE-AUTO PARTS, INC. AND SUBS]DIAR!ES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 7 (Continued)
‘December 30, 2006, December-31;:2005 and January'1; 2005
(in thousands, except per share data) |

cash flows. If the undiscounted expected future cash flows are less than the-carrying amount of the asset and the
carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss is recognized |‘Management utilizes an
expected present value technique, which uses a risk-free rate and multiple cash flow | scenanos reflecting the range of
possible outcomes, to estimate fair value of the asset. Actual useful lives and cash ﬂows could differ from those
estimated by management using these techniques, which could have a material af'fect L on our resuits of. operanons
financial position or liquidity. There were no reductions to the carrying amounts currently assngned tothe . &
Company's long-lived assets'during fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectwely | A . o
; o - P
t

i

Financed Vendor Accounts Payable
Ty .‘" |. . ' “ R O t I3 ! " RS

In fiscal 2004, the Company entered into a shon—term ﬁnancmg program with a, bank allowing it to extend its
payment terms on certain merchandise purchases. The substance of the’program is. for the Company to borrow .+,
money from the bank 1o finance purchases from vendors. The Company records any dxscount given by.the.vendor to
the value of its inventory and accretes this discount to the resulting short-term payable to the bank through interest -
expense over the extended term. At December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, $127,543 and $119,351,
respectively, was payable to the bank by the Company under this program and is mcluded in the accompanying: .-
consohdated balance sheets as Fmanced Vendor Accounts Payabte T [[ . " . e
Lease Accounting Coe «:E- I N

i

The Company leases certain store locations, distribution centers, office space, equ1pment and vehicles, some of
which are with refated parties: Initial terms for facility leases are typically 10 to 15 years followed by additional -
terms: contammg renewal options at 5 year intervals, and may include rent escalation clauses The total amount of
the minimum rent is'expensed on a straight-line basis over the initial term of the lease unless external economic
factors exist such that renewals are reasonably assured, in which case the Company would include the renewal .
period iniits amortization period. In those instances the renewal period would be mcluded in-the lease term for
purposes of establlshmg an amortization period and determining if such lease qualifi ed as a capital or operating
lease. In addition to:minimum fixed rentals, some leases provide for contingent famhty rentals. Contingent-facility:
rentals are determined on the basis of a percentage of sales in excess of stipulated mmlmums for certain store
facilities as defined in the individual lease agreements. Most of the leases provide that= the Company pay taxes,
maintenance, insurance-and certain other expenses applicable to the leased premises and include options.to renew.
Management expects that, in the normal course.of busmess ‘leases that expire will be renewed or replaced by other -
leases. .+ - i - - ! ' e L
Closed Store Liabilities |

, ] ek tro. - * : P PR I T

The Company contmua]ly reviews the operatlng performance of its existing store locations,and closes certain:+
locations identified as under performing. Closing an under performmg location has not resulted in the elimination of
the operations and associated cash flows from the Company’s ongoing operations as the Company transfers those -
operations to another location in the local market. The Company maintains closed store liabilities. that include
liabilities for these exit'activities and liabilities-assumed through-past acqunsmons thattare similar in nature but .
recorded by the acquired companies.prior to, acquisition. o . j e

1 e -

New provisions established for closed store liabilities include the present value ofi.the remaining lease
obligations and management’s estimate of future costs of insurance, property tax and common area maintenance
reduced by the present value of estimated revenues from subleases and lease buyouts and are established by a charge
to sellmg, general and administrative costs in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations at the time ,
the facilities actual!y close. . | .o _— - T 4

. L . L | -, e

" From time to t1me these estimates requn'e revisions that af‘fect the amount of the recorded habtlny' ThlS change
in estimate relatés primarily to changes in assumptions associated with the revenue from subleases. The effect of
changes in estimates for the closed store liabilities is netted with new provisions and mcluded in selling, general and
administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. Closed store liabilities are
recorded in accrued expenses (cutrent portion) and other long-term liabilities (long- term portton) inthe ., ..

Y-
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. ’ . t
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. | . . |
New Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2007, the FASRB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities.” SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items
at fair value. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company is
currently evaiuating the impact of SFAS Noznl 159.

s

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and

Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R).” SFAS No. 158
requires recognition of the overfunded or underfunded status of defined benefit postretirement plans as an asset or
llablllty in the statement of financial position and to recognize changes in that funded status in comprehensive
income in the year in which the changes occur. SFAS No. 158 also requires measurement of the funded status of a
plan as of the date of the statement of ﬁnanc_lal position. The Company adopted the recognition provisions of SFAS
No. 158 on December 30, 2006 and recorded a reduction to the liability of $5,357 and increase to other .
comprehensive income of $3,316, net of tax' (see Note 17). SFAS No. 158 is effective for the measurement date
provisions for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2008. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of
adopting the measurement provisions of SFAS No. 158.

}

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, staff issued Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year
Financial Statements,” or SAB 108. SAB 108 was issued in order to eliminate the diversity in practice surrounding
how public companies quantify financial statement misstatements. SAB 108 requires that registrants quantify errors

using both a balance sheet and income statement approach and evaluate whether either approach results in a
misstated amount that, when all relevant quantitative and qualitative factors are considered, is material. SAB 108 is
effective for financial statements covering the first fiscal year ending after November 15, 2006. The Company
adopted SAB 108 for the year ended December 30, 2006 with no nmpact on its consolidated ﬁnanc1al condition,
results of operations or cash flows. . t .

-In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measuréments.” SFAS No. 157 clarifies the
definition of fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands the disclosures on fair value
measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company is
currently evaluating the impact of SFAS No. 157. ‘

i

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,” or
FIN48. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting and reporting for income taxes recognized in accordance with SFAS No.
109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” The interpretation prescribes a recognition thresheld and measurement -
attribute for the financial statement recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of uncertain tax positionis
taken or expected to be taken in income tax'returns. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2006. The Company will adopt the provisions of FIN 48 as of December 31, 2006. Accordingly, the
Company estimates a cumulative effect adjustment will be recorded to reduce its retained earnings by an amount
less than $8,000 upon initial adoption.

]

In March 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 156, “Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets — an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 140.” SFAS No. 156 amends SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and
Servicing of Financial Assets and Exlmguishments of Liabilities,” with respect to the accounting for separately
recognized servicing assets and servicing habllmes SFAS No. 156 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
September 13, 2006. The Company does not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 156 to have a material impact on its
financial condition, results of operatlons or cash flows.

In February 2006, the FASB lssued SFAS No. 153, “Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments - an
amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 and 140.” This statement simplifies accounting for certain hybrid

instruments currently governed by SFAS No: 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,”

{ F-17
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or SFAS No. 133, by allowing fair value remeasurement of hybrid instruments that contam an embedded derivative
that otherwise would require bifurcation. SFAS No. 155 also eliminates the gmdance in SFAS No. 133
Implementation Issue No. D1, “Application of Statement 133 to Beneficial Interests i in Securitized Financial
Assets,” which provides such beneficial interests are not subject to SFAS No. 133, SFAS No. 155 amends SFAS
No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extmgunéhments of Liabilities -2~
Replacement of FASB Statement No. 125,” by eliminating the restriction on passive, 'derivative instruments that a
qualifying special-purpose entity may hold. SFAS No. 155 is effective for financial instruments acquired or issued
after the begmmng of our fiscal year 2007. The Company does not expect the adoptlon of SFAS No. 155 to have a
material impact on its financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. _

| 1.
3. Acquisitions:

. . ’

On September 14, 2005, the Company acquired Autopart International, Inc., or Al The acquisition, which
included 61 stores throughout New England and New York, a distribution center and Al’s wholesale distribution
business, complentents the Company’s growing presence in the Northeast. Al serves 'the growing commermal
market in addition to warehouse distributors and Jobbers

The acquisition has been accounted for under the provisions of SFAS No. 141, ;Busmess Combinations”, or
SFAS No. 141. The total purchase price of $87,626 primarily consisted of $74,940 pald upon closing and an
additional $12,500 of contingent consideration paid in March 2006 based upon Al satlsfymg certain earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization targets through December 31, 2005. Furthermore, an additional
$12,500 is payable upon the achievement of certain merchandise cost.reduction synérgies through fiscal 2008, In
accordance with SFAS No. 141, this additional payment does not represent contmge}lt consideration and will be
reflected in the statement of operations when considered probable and estimable. The Company recognized $3,114
in cost of goods sold due to such synergies for the year ended December 30, 2006. |

During the third quarter of fiscal 2006 the Company ﬁnal:zed the allocation of the purchase price to the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. The Company allocated $29,000 to intangible assets based on a valuation study. A
portion of these intangible assets are subject to amortization and are being amortlzeq over their estimated useful
lives ranging from;5 to 10 years using straight-line methods.'Remaining adjustments’?to the fair value of assets and
liabilities acquired primarily included inventory and deferred income taxes. Accordmgly, the Company’s initial
goodwill balance was adjusted down to $17,625 as a result of these adjustments, all of which is deductible for tax
purposes. The following table summarizes the final allocation of amounts assigned tf’) assets acquired and liabilities
assumed as of the date of acqmsltlon

T e

o . ————

F-18 !




-ADVANCE AUTO PARTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
December 30, 2006 December 31, 2005 and January 1; 2005
(in thousands, except per share data)

L ; ! :September 14, . Lo

| . 2008
.Cash I ! "h_"$ ‘ ‘ 223 . o
Receivables, net ' .. 10,224 o L
Inventories L e ! . 32,914 e e
,Other current assets . S 812
Property and equipment ) o+ 5,332
Goodwill SRR .. 17,625
‘Intangible assets | 29,000 _
Other assets . 1,454 e vl
Total assets acquired j 97,584
. t .
Accounts payable '~ ﬁ S " (5,690)
Current liabilities SR * (4,062) - )

Other long-term liabilities (206)

Iota] liabilities assumed L (9,958)

it . "

Net assets acquired VR s, 87,626 . _ _ .

The following unaudlted proforma information presents the results of operatlons of the Company as if the, o
acquisition had 1aken place at the beginning of the applicable period: | ' )

" December 31, 'Januaryl,_

L2005 2005
. ) . ! . ' . L . s e
Net sales . L Js 43374610 5 3857646 - s
Net income - ;- \ Cose ooed 238,290 - . 189,138 : . S

v

’ o ' " .
oo . . . a . : oo HE . '

Eamings per diluted share = - '$ . 217 % s 167 W L .

-
'

4. G_poldwil_l. and ln!ta ngible Assets:

N | t : Loy MR

‘ | 1 : S
The carrying amount and accumulated amortization of acquired intangible assets as of December 30, 2006 include:

' As of December 30, 2006

Acquired intangible assets 't Gross Carrying Accumulated Net Book
subject to amortization: . Amount Amortization Value
Customer relationships 1 $ 9,600 $ (1,181) § 8,419
Other 885 (178) 707

Total 8 10,485 $ (1,359)  $ 9,126
Acquired intangible assets '
not subject to amortization: i
Trademark and tradenames g 18,800 $ - $ 18,800

The Company recorded amortization expense of $1,359 for acquired intangible assets for the fiscal year ended
December 30, 2006. The table below shows expected amortization expense for the next five years for acquired
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intangible assets recorded as of December 30, 2006:

e '
e

|
d
2007 1,087 i
2008, 1,087 |
2009 . 1,087 . a ‘ ;
2010 1,059 , 1 e
2011 967 v

s

-t

The changes i in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended December 301 2006 and December 31, 2005,
respectively, are as follows: '___' W , - v
!

B e . “+
' 'AAP Segiment " _ Al Segment’ “Total -
Balance at .!anuaryl 2005 U S 2,720, -$ 1 I"i,— .8 2,720,
Recogmtlon of goodwill assocnated wnh .._. . - _ E - . l T oo
acquisitions .+ 13,934 . 50,440 . 64,374 it
Balance at December 31, 2005 3 16,654 $ 50,440 $ 67,094
Reclassification to intangible assets among - . L N H » : RV

other purchase accounting adjustments - (561) (32:815) (33,376) e
Balance at December 30, 2006 5 16,093 § l7 625 $ 33,718

The carrying amount of goodwill decreased from $67,094 at December 31, 2005 to $33 718 al December 30

2006 as a result of the completlon of certain purchase accountmg adjustmems assoc:ated with the Al acquismon
(Note »oo0 . e

a f . LI SO Yo st - . PR .
. _"

5.'Catastroph_le'L:es,§és and [nsurance Recoveries: "~ : ' S oL
Y . ' - . ' Lo . . . 1 1
During the second half of fiscal 2005, the Company sufféred losses resulting frb‘m Hu'ricanes Katrina; Rita and’
Wilma as well as two stores damaged by fire. The Company estimated and recognii:ed the fixed costs of these
events including the write-off of damaged merchandise at cost, damaged capital assets at net book value and’-
required repair costs. Moreover, these hurricanes caused significant sales disruptlons primarily from store closures,
stores operating on limited hours and lower sales trends due to evacuations. The Company also incurred and !
recognized incremental expenses associatéd with compensating team members for scheduled work hours for which
stores were closed and food and supplies provided to team members and their famll]es While these costs and sales
disruptions were not recoverablé from thé Company’s insurance carrier, the Company did maintain property
insurance against the fixed costs of the related physical damage including the recovéry of damaged merchandise at
retail values and damaged capital assets at replacement cost. Prior to December 31 I?.005 the Company and the
insurance carrier settled in full a claim for the retall value of certain merchandise mventory damaged by Humcanes
Katrina and Wilma. The Company evatuated and recogmzed a receivable for the recovery of these fixed costs’ net of
deductibles. The following table represents the net impact of certain insured fixed costs less recoveries-as reflected
in the selling, general and administrative line of the accompanying consolidated Statement of operations for the *.
fiscal year ended December 31, 2005. At December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005 two and seven stores,*
respectively rematn closed as a result of these events.,

P -

L 11 iy ¥ :'.. - ’ LRI

T '

- - — . - TRE L.

rL T e e e -
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-

+
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1
' " December 31,

: 2005
|
Estimated fixed costs ' $ 15,351
Insurance recovery of fixed costs, net of deductibles (6,518)
Insurance recovery for merchandise inventories settled '
during the year, net of deductibles (8.941)
L
=Net expénse ‘ ; 3 (108) @ iy

t

®  Does not include the eamings impact of sales disruptions.
!

During the year ended December 30, 2006 the Company lost one store location due to fire and received
additional recoveries as the Company settled addmonal hurricane claims for damaged inventory at retail value and
for damaged capital assets at replacement value Accordingly, earnings for the year ended December 30, 2006
reflected $1,388 of insurance recoveries, net of deductibles.

The Company expects to recbgnize additibnal recoveries in future quarters primarily representing the remaining
retail value of damaged merchandise and the replacement value of damaged capital assets not previously settled.

6. Discontinued Operations:— :

}

In fiscal 2003, the Company discontinued the supply of merchandise to its Wholesale Distribution Network, or
Wholesale. Wholesale consisted of independently owned and operated dealer locations, for which the Company
supplied merchandise inventory. This component of the Company’s business operated in the Company’s previously
reported wholesale segment. For the fiscal year ended January 1, 2005, the operating results related to the
discontinued wholesale business were minima] as a result of recognizing an estimate of exit costs in fiscal 2003.

o -
4

7. Receivables:

|
_ . . .
Receivables consist of the following: |
t

December 30, December 31,
2006 - 2005
Trade : ! o $ '.13,149 $ 13,733 N
Vendor - . , ' 73,724 63,161 '
" Installment . . - 2,336 S 5622
Insurance recovery ! 9,676 13,629
Other . . 2,801 3,230,
Total receivables ' 101,686 - 99,375
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts | (4,640) (4,686)
Receivables, net $ 97,046 $ 94,689

In August 2005, the Company began using a new third party provider to process its private label credit card
transactions related to its commercial business. In conjunction with this transition, the Company sold the credit card
portfolio for proceeds totaling $33,904. Accordingly, the Company’s previously recorded receivable balance
recognized under SFAS No. 140, “Accounling for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets”, of $34,684 and the
corresponding allowance for doubtful accounts of $2,580 were reduced to zero. Additionally, the Company repaid its
borrowings previously secured by these trade recelvables the overall impact was a benefit of $1,800 recorded as a

.reduction of bad debt expense in selling, general and administrative expenses.
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8. Inventories, net ‘ : o Ll ) oy

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, cost being determined usingI the last-in, first-out ("LIFO")
method for approximately 93% of inventories at both December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005: Under the LIFO
method, the Company’s cost of sales reflects the costs of the most currently purchased inventori€s while the
inventory carrying balance represents the costs relating to prices paid in prior years. The Company’s costs to acquire
inventory have been generally decreasing in recent years as a result of its signiﬁcantlgrowth Accordingly, the cost
to replace inventory is less than the LIFO balances carried for similar product. As a result of the LIFO method and
the ability to obtain lower product costs, the Company recorded a reduction to cost of sales of $9,978 for fiscal year
ended 2006, an increase in cost of sales of $526 for fiscal year ended 2005 and a reducllon to cost of sales of
$11,212 for fiscal year ended 2004, .

The remaining inventories are comprised of product cores, which consist of the non -consumable portion of
certain parts and batteries and are valued under the first-in, first-out ("FIFO™) melhod Core values are included as
part of our merchandise costs and are either passed on to the customer or returned to; the vendor. Additionally, these
products are not subject to the frequent cost changes like our other merchandise mvemory, thus, there is no material
difference from applymg either the LIFO or FIFO valuation methods. ;

The Company capuallzes certain purchasing and warchousing costs into mventofy Purchasing and
warehousing costs included in inventory, at FIFO, at December 30, 2006 and December 31, 20035, were $95,576 and
$92,833, respectively. Inventories consist of the following:

s
i

'
i

December 30, December;31,

. 2006 2005 f !
Inventories at FIFQ, net B $ 1,380,573 $ 1,294,:3' 10
Adjustments to state inventories at LIFO ‘ 82,767 72,789
Inventories at LIFO, net . $ 1463340 % 1,367,099

Replacement cosl approximated FIFO cost at December 30, 2006 and Decembe:“'." 1,2005. , .

Inventory quantities are tracked through a perpetual inventory system. The Company uses a cycle counting
program in all distribution centers, Parts Delivered Quickly warehouses, or PDQs, Local Area Warehouses, or
LAWSs, and retail stores to ensure the accuracy of the perpetual inventory quantities of both merchandise and core
inventory. ' E

: i

The Company establlshes reserves for estimated shrink based on historical accuracy and effectiveriess of the
cycle counting program. The Company also establishes reserves for potentially exces§ and obsolete inventories
based on current inventory levels and the historical analysis of product sales and current market conditions. The
nature of the Company’s inventory is such that the risk of obsolescence is minimal and excess inventory has
historically been returned to the Company’s vendors for credit. The Company prowdes reserves when less than full
credit is expected from a vendor or when liquidating product will result in retail prices below recorded costs. The
Company’s reserves against invéntory for these matters were $31,376 and $22,825 at December 30, 2006 and
December 31, 2005 respectweiy ) | .

9. Property and Equipment:

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Expenditures for maintenance and
repairs are charged directly to expense when incurred; major improvements are capitz;lilized. When items are sold or
retired, the related cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts, with any gain or loss reflected
in the consolidated statements of operations. -

Depreciation of land improvements, buildings, furniture, fixtures and equipmenti and vehicles is provided over
the estimated useful lives, which range from 2 to 40 years, of the respective assets using the straight-line method.

i
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Depreciation of building and leasehold improvements is provided over the shorter of the original useful lives of the *
respective assets or the term of the lease using the straight-line method. The term of the lease is generally the initial
term of the lease unless external economic factors exist such that renewals are reasonably assured in which case, the

renewal period would'be included in the lease:térm for purposes of establishing an amortization-period. Depreciation

expense was $138 064, 8119 938 and $104, 877 for the fi scal years ended 2006 2005 and 2004, respectlvely

“ N AN

Property and equipment consists of lhe followmg . . e
' N . Vet . Original. . Decembel_' 30, December 31,
i, < Useful Lives . 2006, 2005 -
Land and land improvements ‘  0-10years § 238,186 $ 2!2,'1 10
Buildings ! 40 years 328,997 295,699
Building and leasehold improvements = . 10; 40 years ., , 197,657 ;159,568
. Furniture, fixtures and equlpmem ‘ ] 3-12 years - . 843,645 , 745,142
Vehicles . - . . . Con o Ty 2 -10 years’ 24,682 - 35,339 .
: *Constructionin progress_ « <. ‘-’ f o N 28,151 11,035
Other ! ti oot co Tl 4230 ' 4,516
; 1,665,548 1,463,409
' Less - Accumulated deprecnanon and amomzatlon Y (670,571 (564,558) ‘
" Property and equipment, net’ R - : $ 994,977 $ 898,851 ‘ |

' st v n 0 - . [

l

I

The Company capltallzed approx1mately $3, 641 $6 584 and 34, 625 incurred for the development of internal

use computer software in accordance with the American Institute of Certified Public Accountant’s Statement of
Position 98-1, “Accounting for the Cost of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use” during
fiscal 2006, f' scal 2005 and fiseal 2004, respecuvely These costs are included in the fiimiture, fixtures and
equipment category above and are deprecnated on the straight-line method over three to seven years, e

10. Accrued Expenses: - A B P s T TR B

?
Accrued expenses conmst of the' follow ing:
(-

$ 252975 % 265437

T e o TR v e i Déeember 30, ‘December 31, o

| 2006 2005
Payroll and related benefits . - po. 8. ., 48477 - % 58,553 o £
Warranty - . . Y. .o be o 13,069 , . ,11,352-. '
Capital'expenditures’ . - g 24,011 . 39,105 Co
Se]f—insurance reserves” w0 | - 58,755 - 39840 L ° T 0en B

* Property taxes oo T 23,427 t20029 T T

Other ool esase 96,558 e

| .

Total accrued expenses
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:
11. Other Long-term Liabilities: ,[
" . . . . . ;
* Other long-term liabilities consist of the following: : N

| - . : . oo v,

e
I

December.30, December 31, * o '
: R ' : 2006 ¢ - 2005 R
Employee benefits © = s 10330" § 17,253 *° ' )
Deferred income taxes ’ - 26,048 36 958" '
Other |, ., | . . ‘ o, 24856 . 20 663 ... .,
Total other long-term liabilities . 8 61,234 . % 74,874
) N . 1. [ ! [ . li
12. Long-term Debt: . o . B "'l i
Long-term debt consists of the follo-wing:' ' ) ’ .
: ' December 30, December 31,
L2006 2005

Senior Debt:
~Tranche A, Senior Secured Term Loan at variable interest
rates (5.66% at December 31, 2005), redeemed October 2006
.Tranche B, Senior Secured Term Loan at variable interest

|
II 278 L 170,000
. ' ' PR
. rates (5.89% at December 31, 2005), redeemed October.2006 1 -. 168,300

i, o

Delayed Draw, Senior Secured Term Loan at variable interest ' SR

Revolvmg facility at variable interest rates |

rates (5 91% at December 31, 2005), redeemed October 2006 L Lo -+ 100,000
(6. 13% and 5.66% at December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005 l

respectively) dué October 3011 "'1476,800 o -
Other 4 440 - 500
Ve e ! f 477,240" .« v ' 438,800

Less: Current portion of long-term debt I (67) (32,760
Long-term débt, excluding current portion $ 1477173 8 406,040°

1 } R

On October 5 2006, the Company entered into a new $750,000 unsecured ﬂve-year revolving credit facﬂlty
with Advance Stores Company, Incorporated, a subsidiary of the Company, servmg‘as the borrower. This new
facility replaced the Company’s term loans and revolver under the previous credit facnllty Proceeds from this
revolving loan were used to repay $433,775 of principal outstanding on the Company s term loans and
revolver under its previous credit facility. In conjunction with this refinancing, the Company wrote-off existing
deferred financing costs related to the Company’s previous term loans and revolverj'] The write- off of these costs of
$1,887 was combined with a related gain on settlement of interest rate swaps of $2,873 for a'net gam on o
extmgmshment of debt of 5986 |

¥

| Yo

Additionally, the new revolving credit facility provides for the issuance of letters of credit with a sub limit of -
$300,000 and swingliné loans in an amount not to exceed $50,000. The Company may request that the total "~ -
revolving commitment be increased by ah amount not exceeding $250,000 during the term’of the credit agreemenl
Voluntary prepayments and voluntary reductions of the revolvmg balance are perrmtted in whole or in part, at the *
Company ] optlon in mmlmum prmc1pal amoums as specnﬁed in'the new revo]vmgl credit facnl:ty v o

As of December 30, 2006, the Company had borrowed $476, 800 under the revoiiver and had $66,768 in lettérs
of credit outstanding, which reduced availability under the new revolver to $206, 432. In addition to the letters of
credit, the Company maintains approx1mately $2,527 in surety bonds issued by its insurance prov:der primarily to
utility providefs and the departmens ‘of revénue for certain states. These letters of c'r'edlt and surety bonds generally
have a term of one year or less. ‘

v oo e
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! B . -

The interest rates on borrowings under the new revolving credit facility will be based, at the Company’s option,
on an adjusted LIBOR rate, plus a margin, or an alternate base rate, plus a margin. After an initial interest period, the
Company may elect to convert a particular bor:rowing to a different type. The initial margin is 0.75% and 0.0% per
annum for the adjusted LIBOR and alternate base rate borrowings, respectively. A commitment fee will be charged
on the unused portion of the revolver, payable in arrears. The initial commitment fee rate is 0.150% per annum.
Under the terms of the new revolving credit facility, the interest rate spread and commitment fee will be based on
the Company’s credit rating. The revolving crédit facility terminates on October 5, 2011.

The new revolving credit facility is fully z;nd unconditionally guaranteed by Advance Auto Parts, Inc. The
facility contains covenants restricting the ability of the Company and its subsidiaries to, among other things; (1)
create, incur or assume additional debt (including hedging arrangements), (2} incur liens or engage in sale-leaseback
transactions, (3) make loans and investments, (4) guarantee obligations, (5) engage in certain mergers, acquisitions
and asset sales, (6) engage in transactions with affiliates, (7) change the nature of the Company’s business and the
business conducted by its subsidiaries and (8) change the holding company status of the Company The Company is
required to comply with financial covenants with respect to a maximum leverage ratio and a minimum coverage
ratio. The new revolving credit facility also prowdes for customary events of default, including non-payment
defaults, covenant defaults and cross-defaults to the Company’s other material indebtedness.

I

In fiscal 2004, the Company wrote-off existing deferred financing costs as a result of refinancing its outstanding
term loans. The write-off of these costs combined with the related refinancing costs incuired to set up the credit
facility resulted in a loss on extinguishment of debt of $2,818 in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations for the year ended January 1, 2005. rDurlng fiscal 2004, prior to the refinancing of its credit facility, the
Company repaid $105,000 in debt prior to its scheduled maturity. In conjunction with these partial repayments, the
Company wrote-off deferred financing costs in the amount of $412, which is classified as a loss on extinguishment
of debt in the accompanying consolidated slale'ment of operations for the year ended January 1, 2005.

The Company was in compliance with the above covenants under the revolving credit facnhty at December 30,
2006. )

At December 30, 2006, the aggregate future annual maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

2007 g 67
© 2008 a 75 |
2009 T
2010 ' 73
2011 , 476,869
Thereafter 85 :

' $ 477,240 ,

13. Stock Repurchase Program: . i

During fiscal 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized a program to repurchase up to $300,000 of
the Company’s common stock plus related expenses. The program, which became effective August 15, 2005,
replaced the remaining portion of a previous stock repurchase program. The program allows the Company to
repurchase its common stock on the open market or in privately negotiated transactions.from time to time in
accordance with the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission. As of December 30, 2006, the
Company had repurchased a total of 5,209 shares of common stock under the program, at an aggregate cost of
£196,013, or an average price of $37.63 per share, excluding related expenses. At December 30, 2006, the Company
had $103,987, excludmg related expenses, avallable for future stock repurchases under the stock repurchase
program.

| : .
During fiscal 2006, the Company retired 5,117 shares of common stock which were previously repurchased
under the Company’s current stock mpurchase| program.
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Il
_ ,f
During fiscal 2005, the Company retired 7,122 shares of common stock, of whlch 92 shares were repurchased

under the current stoeck repurchase program, and 7,030 shares were repurchased under the Company’s previous
program at an aggregate cost of $189,160, or an average price $26.91 per share, excludmg related expenses.

14. Income Taxes:

}

.

. Provision (benefit) for i mcome taxes from contmumg operanons for fiscal 2006 ﬁscal 2005 and fiscal 2004

consists ol‘ the following:

}

Current

. Deferred

Total I

" 2006- _ o . ‘ )
Federal $126,726 3 (4,874) $121,852 1
State - | 18,433 (1,688) 16,745 i
' $145,159 S (6,562) $ 138,597 .i

2005- o !
Federal : $124,978 5 (1,343) $123,635 :

State. o 16,430 - 4,133 20,563 *
$141.408 $ 2,790 $ 144,198 :

2004- .—"— - :
Federal $102,171 § 1,318 §103,489 i
State " 19,042 5190 14232 tl - '

$111,213  § 6,508 $117,721 .

The provision (benefit) for income taxes from continuing operations dlﬁ'ered from the amount computed by

applying the federal'statutory income tax rate due to:

2005 I : 2004

2006

Income from continuing operations ! .

at statutory U.S. federal income tax rate {35%) $129.470 $132,623 $107,012
State income tgigés;netof federat, . .. : ‘ 1 T

income tax benefit 10,884 13,366 9,251
Non-deductible expenses » : ' 1,155 I(3) . 745
Valuation allowance ' 70 75 : 236 -
Other, net (2,982) (1, 863) 477

' He - $138,597 $144198 §$117,721

"

"t

During the. year ended January 1, 2005 the Company had a loss from operations df the discontinued Wholesale
Dealer Network of $63. The Company recorded an income tax benefit of $24 related to these discontinued
operations for the year ended January 1, 2005. ,!

Deferred income taxes are recognized for the tax consequences in future years of differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their financial reporting amounts at each period- e:ndl based on enacted tax laws and
statutory income tax rates applicable to the periods in which the differences are expected to affect taxable income.:
Deferred income taxes reflect the net income tax eftect of temporary differences between the bases of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and for income tax reporting purposes.: Net]deferred income tax balances
are comprlsed of the followmg . :

b ) . ¢ +

|
| .
3 .’ i.‘ . .o N . . . ' ' o F

1 N 3
'
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‘ December 30, December 31,

b 2006 L2005 : o
Deferred income tax assets’ , % 52,873 § - 42167 c D
Valuation allowance : SR T T (1,174) ""(1m@ ' R
Deferred income tax liabilities : (119,361) (113,150) _
Net deferred income tax liabilities % (67,662) § (72,087) e AR

F

At December 30, 2006 and December 3 lf 2005, the Company has cumulative nejt deferred irn_come tax liabilities
of $67,662 and $72,087, respectively. The gross deferred income tax assets also include state net operating loss
carryforwards, or NOLs, of appmxlmately $11752, and $1,579, respectively. These NOLs may be used to reduce
future taxable income and expire penodlcally through fiscal year 2024. Due-to uncertainties related to the realization
of certain deferred tax assets for NOLs in vanous jurisdictions, the Company recorded a valuation allowance of
$1,174 as of December 30, 2006 and $1,104 as of December 31, 2005. The amount of deferred income tax-assets
realizable, however, could change in the near future 1f estimates of future taxable income are changed.

Temporary differences which give rise to signiﬁcant-’deferredfirlcolme'tax assets (liabilities) are as follows:

f December 30, December 31,

oo .- 2006 . 2005
Current deferred income tax liabilities . \ . _
Inventory differences LT ) $ °(79,071)° §  (68,250)
Accrued medical and workers compensation . 22,114 16,134 ,
Accrued expenses not currently deductible for tax 15,213 16,661
Net operating loss carryforwards Pt - 130 - 326
Total current deferred income tax assets (liabilities}y = . _$  (41,614) $ (35,129)
Long-term deferred income tax liabilities
Property and equipment . - . (40,194) .. (44900) . -
Postretirement benefit obligation | 4423 . . 6,649 PR
Share-based compensation [ 7,671 -
Net operating loss carryforwards e 1,622 1,253
Valuation allowance { (1,174) .. (1,104) .
Other, net . l . o 1604 ., 1,144 . ,
Total long- _term deferred income tax assets (llabllmes) b (26,048)  §  (36,958). , . -

' | 4
These amounts are recorded in other cur:'em liabilities and other long-term llabllmes in the accompanymg
consolidated balance sheets, as appropriate, .,' o a
o, L "
The Company currently has certain years that are open to audit by the Internal Revenue Service, In addmon the
Company has certain years that are open for audlt by various state and foreign jurisdictions for income taxes and
sales, use and excise taxes. In management' s opinion, any amounts assessed will not have a material effect on the

Company’s,financial position, results of operations or liquidity. o P

| . - L T . . T v

15. Lease Commitments: !

. 1T, - - ERE T - 1 ) . L B
..The Company leases certain store locati(':ms, distribution centers, office space, equipment and vehicles. Initial
terms for facility leases are typically 10 to 15 years, followed by additional terms containing renewal options at.5.
year intervals, and may include rent escalatlc'm clauses. The total amount of the minimum rent is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the initial term of the!lease unless external economic factors exist such that renewals are .
_ reasonably assured, in which case the Company would include the renewal period in its amortization period. Iny; -
addition to minimum fixed rentals, some leases provide for contingent facility rentals. Contingent facility rentals are

determined on the basis of a percentage of sales in excess of stipulated minimums for certain store facilities as
|

E
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defined in the individual lease agreements, Most of the léases provide-that the COm;I)any pays taxes, maintenance,
insurance and certain other expenses applicable to the leased premises and include optrons to renew. Management
- expects that,.in the normal course of business, leases that expire will be renewed or replaced by other leases.
oy . [ ' ’ . , e,
At December 30 2006 future minimum lease payments due under non- cancelalble operatmg leases with lease.

terms: rangmg from one year to twenty years through the year 2027 for all open stores are as follows: -

H ' f V! v 4 t ' R . . ‘l 1

e g : * Total T . f : o

2001 © . cTsrae%s oy T

2008 ' | 222,693 | | P

2009 ' 205,128 | ]

2000 07 T T 1854737 T | ‘ N

011" Ge2de T o
... Thereafter . . . .+ "% - 992,104 - oo e Al -
RPN e 82,018,432 S e ! :

v 1 e LA . P T - e !

. ro e vy - f ’ PR . i l' - .

At December.30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, future minimum sub-lease incolme to be received under non-
cancelable operating leases is $7,333 and $7,929, respectlvely T - : ;l : e

Net rent expense for fiscal 2006 f' scal 2005 and fiscal 2004 was as follows

v T, s 1

L P v 2006 2_005 2004) -
Minimam facility,rentals . 217,588 SI91897  $169.449 T )
Contingent facility rentals R 1,090 . l,334, B 1201, oL O
Equipment réntals ™ - - S 5,735 4,128 5, 128 "

Vehiclg rentals ~ 0 3ssa T N3eT 6007 S

ot T g6, 208675 181,785 B
Less: Sub-lease income (4,166) (3,665 (3, l7l)

$233,801 $205,010 3178,614°

1
e

Rent expense associated with closed locations is included in other selling, gener;al and administrative €xpenses.
16. Contingencies: N SRR e 'l

In the case of all known contmgenc:les the Company accrues for an obllgatron lmcludmg estimated legal costs,
when'it is probable and the amount 'is reasonably estimable. As facts concerning contmgencres become known to the
Company, the Company reassesses its position with respect to accrued liabilities and other potential exposures.
Estimates that are particularly sensitive to future change include tax and legal matters, which are subject to change
as events evolve ‘and as additional information becomes available during the administrative and litigation process.

. . i o

The Company s Westem Auto subsrdrary, together w1th other defendants mcludmg automobrle manufacturers,
autemotive parts manufacturers and other retailers, has been named as a defendant i m lawsuits alleging injury as a
result of exposure to asbestos-containing products. The Company and some of its subsrd:anes also have been named
as defendants in many of these lawsuits. The plaintiffs have alleged that these products were manufactured,
distributed and/or sold by the various defendants. To date, these products have mcluded brake and clutch parts and
roofing materials. Many of the cases pending against the Company or its subsidiaries are in the early stages of
litigation. The damages claimed against the defendants in some of these proceedmgs are substantial. Additionally,
some of the automotive parts manufacturers named as defendants in these lawsuits have declared bankruptcy, which

will limit plaintiffs’ ability to recover monetary damages from those defendants. Although the Company diligently
i ! .

1
E
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defends against these claims, the Company may enter into discussions regarding settlement of these and other
lawsuits, and may enter into settlement agreements, if it believes settlement is in the best interests of the Company’s
shareholders. The Company believes that most of these claims are at least partially covered by insurance. Based on
discovery to date, the Company does not believe the cases currently pending will have a material adverse effect on
the Company’s operating results, financial position or liquidity. However, if the Company was to incur an adverse
verdict in one or more of these claims and was ordered to pay damages that were not covered by insurance, these
claims could have a material adverse affect on its operating results, financial position and liquidity. If the number of
claims filed against the Company or any of its subsidiaries alleging injury as a result of exposure to asbestos-
containing products increases substantially, the costs associated with concluding these claims, including damages
resulting from any adverse verdicts, could have a material adverse effect on its operating results, financial position
or liquidity in future periods.

The Company is involved in various types of legal proceedings arising from claims of employment
discrimination or other types of employment matters as a result of claims by current and former employees. The
damages claimed against the Company in some of these proceedings are substantial, however, because of the
uncertainty of the outcome of such legal proceedings and because the Company’s liability, if any, arising from such
legal matters, including the size of any damages awarded if plamtlffs are successful in litigation or any negotiated
settlement, could vary widely, the Company cannot reasonably estiniate the possible loss or range of loss which may
arise. The Company is also involved in various other claims and legal proceedings arising in the normal course of
business. Although the final outcome of these legal matters cannot be determined, based on the facts presently
known, it is management’s opinion that the final outcome of such claims and lawsuits will not have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s fi nanc1al posmon results of operations or liquidity.

The Company is self-insured for general and automobile liability, workers compensatlon and the hea]th care
claims of its teatn members although the Company maintains stop-loss coverage with third-party insurers to limit its
total liability exposure. Liabilities assocnatecl[wnh these losses are calculated for claims filed and claims incurred
but not yet reported at the Company's estlmate of their ultimate cost based upon analyses of historical data,
demographic and severity factors and perlodlc valuations provided by third-party actuaries. Management monitors
new claims and claim development as well as negative trends related to the claims incurred but not reported in order
to assess the adequacy of the Company’s insurance reserves. While the Company does not expect the amounts
ultimately paid to differ significantly from its'estimates, the self-insurance reserves could be affected if future claim
experience differs significantly from the histo‘rical trends and the actuarial assumptions.

l
The Company accrues for tax contmgencnes when it is probable that a liability to a taxmg authority has been

incurred and the amount of the contingency can be reasonably estimated, based on past experience. The Company’s
tax contingency reserve is adjusted for changes in circumstances and additional uncertainties, such as significant
amendments to existing tax law, both 1egls]ated and concluded through the various jurisdictions’ tax court systems.
The Company had a tax contingency reserve of $6,415 and $7,588 at December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005,
respectively. It is the opinion of the Company’s management that the possibility is remote that costs in excess of
those reserved for will have a material adverse impact on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or
liquidity. The Company’s accounting for income tax contingencies will change subsequent to December 30, 2006
upon the adoption of FIN 48,

o .
'

The Company has entered into employment agreements with certain team members that provide severance pay
benefits under certain circumstances afier a change in control of the Company or upon termination of the team
member by the Company. The maximum contingent liability under these employment agreements is approximately
$5,590 and $l 617 at December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectwely, of which nothing has been accrued

f
!
[
|
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TNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
December. 30, 2006, December 31, 2005 and January ‘l 2005
‘ (in thousands, except.per share data)
17. Benefit Plans: ;
1 |
401(k) Plan i . ‘
! i
The Company maintains a defined contribution team member benefit plan, whllch covers substantially all team
members afier one year of service and who have attained the age of twenty-one. The plan allows for team member
salary deferrals, which are matched at the Company’s discretion, Company conmbutlons were $7 726, $6, 779 and
$6,752 in fiscal 2006 fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004, respectively. ! C

1 A

]
Deferred Compensatlon . N i .

During the third quarter of fiscal 2003, the Company established an unquahﬁed deferred compensation plan for
certain teamn members. The Company has accounted for the unqualified deferred compensatlon plan in accordance
with EITF 97-14,““Accounting for Deferred Compensation Arrangements Where Amounts Earned Are Held in a
Rabbi Trust and Invested.” The liability related to the former Discount deferred cor‘r'rpensaﬂon plan, which was
terminated in May 2002, was merged into the new plan. This plan provides for a milnlmum and maximum'deferral
percentage of the team member’s base salary and bonus, as determined by the Retirement Plan Committee. The
Company estabhshes and maintains a deferred compensation liability for this plan. I;The Company funds this llablhty
by remitting the team member s deferrals to a Rabbi Trust where these deferrals are invested in certain life insurance
contracts. Accordmgly, any ehange in the cash surrender value on these contracts, which are held in the Rabbi Trust
to fund the deferred compensation liability, is recognized in the Company’s consolldated statement of operations.

At December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005 these liabilities were $3,402 and $2 693, respectlvely

Postretirement Plan :

1

The Company provides certain health care and life insurance beneﬁts for ehgll;le retired team members through

a postretirement plan, or the Plan. These benefits are subject to deductibles, co-payment provisions and other
limitations. The Plan has no-assets and is funded on a cash basis as benefits are pald During the second quarter of
fiscal 2004, the Company amended the Plan to exclude outpatient prescription drug | benefits to Medicare eligible
retirees effective January 1, 2006. Due to this plan amendment, the Company's acc‘umulated postretirement benefit
obligation was reduced by $7 557, resulting in an unrecognized prior service cost in'the same amount. The
unrecognized prior service cost is being amortized over the 13-year estimated remalblng life expectancy of the plan
participants as allowed under SFAS No. 106, “Employers Accounting for Postretrrement Benefits Other Than
Pensions.”

\ |
' v . 1

) cher_ﬁnancial information related to the plans was determined by the Company’s independent actuaries. The
measurement date used by the actuaries was October 31 .of each fiscal year. The following provides a reconciliation
of the accrued benefit obligation included in other long-term l:abllmes in the accordpanymg consolidated balance
sheets, recorded and the funded status of the plan as of December 30, 2006 and Deeember 31, 2005:

*r

I
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2006 2005 R
Change in benefit obligation: ‘
Benefit obligation at beginning of the year $ 13,711 % 14,625
_ Interest cost ' o | L CT26 80z,
. Benefitspaid |, . - ‘ coo T L (513), FRN
L Actuarlal gain ., \ Co g e s 326 L 1 (203) L e e
Benefit obligation at end of the year E 10,517 -+ 13711 . ST
Change in plan assets: | ..
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year : - Lo n
" Employer contributions i . o , . 194 . 1513 - . '_‘..
Part1c1pant contnbutlons 541, . 1 . ,-' - L. 1,088 . 2336 L
.. Benefits paid - - o G co . 0(1,882) .(3,849) . :
Fair.wvalue of plan assets at end ofyear B R ' L
- Funded Status '~ v e sl 10,517 0 13,711 - ot T
o Reconcﬂlatlon ofﬁn"lded status - ‘t ' . f 'f_ B ' ; ' A . "
Funded status ! e [ YL (10517 ._(13,7;'1)" | ’
Unrecogmzed prior service cost R -, (6,53D) ,
Unrecognized actuanal loss k 4 e L~ 3,929 Lo :
Accrued postrenrement benefit cost . o $ (10 517) $(16,313) S
Net penodtc poslretlrement benefit cost is as follows:
' .. T R L A T T LS A I
E SRR "f 2006 2005 200477 '
Service cost . o vt {} 5. -8 .t 8 2 -
{.Interestcost » * .t g g S5T26 - . 802 S004 . e T o
Amortization of the prior service cost | 7’ (581) .- (58ly - {436) oo s b
““Amortization'of recogmzed net losses ’ 210 - 239 - - 250 5 T e
LR I T sty 460 ST R0 et

The health care cost trend rate was assumed to be 11.5% for 2007, 10.0% for 2008, 9.5% for 2009, 8.5% for
2010, 8.0% for2011; 7.0% for 2012 and 5. 0% to 6.0% for 2013 and thereafter: If the health caré Cost were increased
1% for all futuré years the accumulated postretlrement benefit obligation would have increased by $285'as of
Decembér 30, 2006. The. effect of this change} on the combined service and interest cost would have been an increase
of $26 for 2006. If the health care Cost were decreased 1% for all future years the accumulated postretirement
benefit obhgatlon would have decreased by $258 as of December 30, 2006. The effect of this change on the
combined service and interest cost would have been a decrease of $25 for 2006.

The postretirement benefit obligation and net periodic postretirement benefit cost was computed using the
following weighted average discount rates as determined by the Company’s actuaries for each applicable year:

|

| 2006 2005

[
Postretirement benefit obligation } 5.50% 5.50%
Net periodic postretirement benefit cost : 5.50% 5.75%

i
|
;
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The Company expects plan contribitions to completely offset benefits’ pard The following table summarizes the
Company's expected benefit payments (net of retiree contributions) to be paid for each of the following fiscal years:.

l , Amount

2007 _ $1,048 :

2008 S, 4100 J . |

2009 CL. LI5S , .o ,

2010 L1388 L .

2011 o S P F:T B ',

2012-2016 4893 . o i :

The Company reserves the right to change or tenmnate the benefits or contrrbutrons at any time. The Company
also continues to evaluate ways in which it can better manage these benefits and contro] costs. Any changes in the
plan or revisions to assumptions that affect the amount of expected future benefits may have a srgmﬁcant rmpact on
the amount of the reported obligation, annual expense and projected benefit payments C

. [

The Company adopted SFAS No. 158 on December 30 2006 ‘Asa result the Company recorded an actuarial
gain to accumulated other.comprehensive income, net of tax; and recognized prevrously unamortized prior service
cost that had not yet been included in net periodic postretirement benefit cost as of December 30, 2006. The
adoption of SFAS'No. 158 had no impact on net incomne, but increased comprehensr've income by $3,316, net of tax.
The table below shows the incremental effect of applying SFAS No. 158 on rndmdual line rtems m the Company 8
consolidated balance sheet as of December 30, 2006 ) ' !

t

r . . [ [ -~ . ]

Before Application - it After Application

of Statement 158 Adjustments of Statement 158

Accrued expenses ) $ (251,955 $ 4 1,020 s . 252,975
Other long—term liabilities i . L 65 570 L : (4,336); " A 61,234,
Accumulated other ‘comprehensive income L o 156 ] ) l . 3:3]6! o . , - 3472,
Total stockholders equity 1,027,538 V3316 l 030, 854

At December 30 2006, the net unrealized gain on the postretirement plan consrsts of an unrealized gain of
$5,951 related to prior service cost and an unrealized net loss of $594 related to actuarral losses. Approximately
$581 of the unrealized gain related tQ prior service cost is expected to be recognized ‘as a component of net periodic *
postretirement benefit cost 1n fiscal 2007. a!

18. Share-Based Compensation Plans: ‘l R

The Company has share- based compensauon plans as allowed under its long—term incentive plan or LTlP
which includes fixed stock options and deferred stock units, or DSUs. The stock opt:ons ‘authorized to be granted are
non-qualified stock options and terminate on the seventh anniversary of the grant dale Additionally, the stock
options vest over a three-year period in equal installments beginning on the first anniversary of the grant date and
contain no post-vesting restrictions other than normal trading black-out perrods prescribed by the Company’s

. corporate governance policies. The Company grants DSUs annually to jts Board of Directors as provided for in the
Advance Auto Parts, Inc. Deferred Stock Unit Plan for Non-Employee Directors and|Selected Executwes or the
DSU Plan. Each DSU is equwalent to one share of common stock of the Company. The DSUs are 1mmed|ately
vested upon issuance but are held on behalf of the. director until he or she ceases to be a director. The DSUs are then
distributed to the director following his or her last date of service, Addmonally, the DSU Plan provides for the
deferral of compensation as eamed in the form of an annual retainer for board members and wages for certain highly
compensated employees of the Company. These deferred stock units are settled in colmmon stock with the

participants at a future date or,over a specified time.period as elected by the pamcrpanls in accordance with the DSU
Plan. . vy L . e , -
i e .o !

. o R .
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- The followmg table summarizes the ﬁxed stock option transactions for the fiscal year ended December 30, |

2006: b | ‘

! . Weighted-

" " Average

[ Weighted- Remaining

[ Number of Average Contractual Aggregate-

Options  Exercise Price Term (in years) Intrinsic Value

Fixed Price Options

!
Qutstanding at beginning of year : 6,192 §$ 24.46 :
Granted ‘ |- 2,116 . 40.38 .
Exercised - L (741) ‘ 1896
Forfeited . oo (298) 32.97 . . oo
Outstanding at December 30, 2006 . : 7,269 % 29.31 . 458 § 56,126
Qutstanding, net of expected forfeitures ! 6955 § 29.00 458 $ 55,496
Outstanding and exercisable | 3341 §$7 7 21.21 349 § 48,249
I

.The aggrcgate intrinsic value i in the precedmg table is based on the Company’s closmg stock price of $35 56 as
of the last trading day of the period ended December 30, 2006. The aggregate intrinsic value of options (the amount
by which the market price of the stock on the date of exercise exceeded the exercise price of the pption) exercised
during the fiscal years ended December 30, 2006, December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005, was $14,001, $77,611
and $60,793, respectively. As of December 30, 2006, there was $26,304 of unrecognized compensation expense
related to non-vested fixed stock options that is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.8

years . '
|

The welghted average falr value of stock | optsons granted dunng the fiscal years ended December 30, 2006,
Déecember 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005, was $IO 68, $10.54 and $8.28 per share, respectively. The fair value of
each stock option was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the
following weighted average assumptions:

Black—Scholes Optlon Valuatien ASSumpthllS o, -+ 2006 - 2005 2004
Risk-free interest rate I[ 4.6% 3% 33%
Expected dividend yield ¥ ; 0.6% U .
Expected stock price volatility ® | 28.0% 33.2% 34.3%
Expected life of stock options (in months) (5)| . , 4 48 . 48
| ) Cor e
M Forfeitures are based on historical expenence - - Ce
@ _ The risk-free interest rate is based on a U S. Treasury constant maturlty interest rate whose termy is consistent
* with the expected life of the Company’ s stock options. .

®  The Company declared its first ever cash dividend beginning in its first quarter of 2006.
@ Expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of the Company’s common stock for the perlod
‘ + consistent with the expected life of the Company s stock options,
®  The expected life of the Company ] stock options represents the estlmated period of time until exermse and is

+

based on historical experience of such awards. : K
. ¢ : S : o
The Company granted seven and six DSUs in fiscal years 2006 and 2005, respectively at a welghted average
fair value of $38.35 and $39.65, respectively. "The DSUs are awarded at a price equal to the market price of the
Company's underlying stock on the date of the grant. For fiscal years 2006 and 2005, respectively, the Company
recognized a total of $285 and $237,on a prcl-tax basis, in compensation expense related to these DSU grants,

|
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!
Additionally, the DSU Plan provides for the deferral of compensation as earned in the form of an annual retainer for
board members and wages for certain highly compensated employees of the Company These deferred stock units
are payable to the:participants at a future date or over a spec1ﬁed time period as elected by the partlcrpants in

accordance with the DSU Plan. s

A total of 8, 620 of shares were originally authorized under the LTIP. At December 30 2006, there are 4 565
shares currently available for future issuance under the LTIP. The Company issues new shares of common stock
upon exercise of stock options. Subsequent to December 30, 2006, the Company granted 1,440 stdck appreciation
rights to be settled in the Company’s common stock at a conversion price of $38. 03 and 143 shares of restricted"
stock at a price of $38.03, A :

The Company also offers an employee stock purchase plan, or ESPP Throught2005 all eligible employees or
team members, could elect to have a portion of compensation paid in the form of Company stock in lieu of cash
calculated at 85% of fair market value at the beginning or end of the quarterly purchase period whrchever was lower.
Effective January 1, 2006, the ESPP was amended such that eligible team members irnay purchasé commboh stock at

95% of fair market value at the date of purchase. There are annual limitations on team member elections of either
$25 per téain member or ten percent of compensation, whichever is less. Under the lplan team members acquired
90, 110 and 177 shares in fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. At December 30, 2006, there were 1,461
shares available to be issued under the plan.

19. Fair Value of Financial Instruments: " Y

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, bank overdraﬂs accounts payable, borrowmgs
secured by receivables and current portion of long-term debt approximates fair value because of the short maturity
of those instruments. The carrying amount for variable rate long-term debt approxrmates fair value for similar issues
available to the Company. The Company s interest rate swaps are presented at fair| 'Value as stated in its accountrng
policy on hedge activities (Note 2). © .- I sl

‘ . ’ i e
20. Segment anleelated Information: . 1: - Lo

The Company has the following two reportable segments: Advance Auto Parts Ior AAP, and AL The AAP
segment is comprised of store operations within the United States, Puerto Rico and. the Virgin Islands which operate
under the trade names “Advance Auto Parts,” “Discount Advance Auto Parts” and ! “|Westem Auto.” These stores
offer a broad selection of brand name and proprietary automotive replacement parts, accessories and maintenance
items for domestic and imported cars and light trucks, with no significant concentration in any specific product area.
The Al segmeit consists Solely of the operatioris of Autopart International, which C(:Jntinu'es to operate as an ~
independent, wholly-owned subsidiary. AI’s business serves the growing commercml market in additionto
warehouse distributors and Jobbers located throughout the Northeastern region of the United States, The Company
acqurred Alin September 2005. ,| L ,

The Company évaluates each of its segment’s financial performance based on net sales and operating profit for
purposes of making decisions and allocating resources. The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as those descnbed in the summary of 51gnrﬁcant accounting policies in Note 2 et ¢

The followmg table summarizes financial information for each of the Company 8 busmess segments for the
years ‘ended Décember 30, 2006 and December 31 2005, respectwely RitR "

[ - ’ o4
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|

2006 - j AAP . - Al Eliminations  Totals
. f . . . . . .
Net sales ‘ P, $4,505437 0§ 111,066 - § - $4,616,503
Income before provision for income taxes: 368,818 1,097 - 369915
~ Provision for inpome taxes | 138,144 453 - 138,597
Segment assets | '2,'565';986_ 116,695 - 2,682,681
Depreciation and amomzatlon f . 135,159 "‘ . 4,264 o e 139,423
Capital. expenditures S 251,024 7,562 © - 258,586
2005 | AAP Al . Eliminations  Totals '
Net salés . i $4234667 ©$ 30304 § - $4264971
Iicome before provision for income taxes | 377,205 1,718 - 73718923
Provision for income taxes - ' 143514 684 .- 144,198
Segment assets . .o ;2,446,226 95,923 R 2,542,149,
Depreciation and amortization . | [ . 119,184 . 754 A 119,938
Capital expenditures Lo 215,585 629 - 216,214
! : o
|
21. Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited): N
f
. The following table summarizes quarter.lyl financial data for fiscal years 2006 and 2005: ..
20006, | . _ . R First . Second Third ~ Fourth,
e T, ] . | {16 weeks) {12 weeks) (12 weeks) (12 weeks)
Net sales | $1,393,010 $1,107,857 $1,099.486 $1,016,150
Gross profit f 665,168 527,359 530,206 478,431
Income from continuing operations 1 74,081 62,936 . 58,947 " . 35,354 ¢
Net income i - 74,081 62,936 58947 35,354
' - . } 4 - ' o .
‘Basic earning per share ©= © _ { ot 0.69 0.60 ©056 0.34
'Dilizted'_eamings'ﬁer share ' l[ ’ 0:68 © 059 - 0.56 T 033
2005 - . ' ' e t ** * + -First - Second - -  Third Fourth
' ' I (16 weeks) T (1Z2weeks) = (12 weeks) - {12 weeks)
Net sales ' . 81258364 $1,023,146 $1019,736 $ 963,725
Gross profit L T 600,931 © 7 482,050 48.1,415' 450,082
Income from continuing operations ! 68,647 65,929 60,793 39,356 '
Net income ‘ S [ . 68,647 65,929 60,793 39,356
Basic earnings per share . .+ 0.64 0.61 .0.56 0.36
Dlluted earnings per share i 0.63 0.60 0.55 0.36

.
Note: Quarterly and year—to-date computatlons of per share amounts are made mdependently
sum of per share amounts for the quarters may not round to per share amounts for the year.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNT[NG FIRMI
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of R '

Advance Auto Parts, Inc. and Subsidiaries ,
Roanoke, Virginia o 'l

We have audited the consohdated financial statements of Advance Auto Parts, Inc. and éubmdlanes (the Company}) as of
December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, and for each of the three years in the penod ended December 30, 2006
(which report expresses an unqualified opinion on those financial statements and includes an explanatory paragraph
regarding the Company’s adoption of new accounting standards), management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 30, 2006, and the Ieff‘ectn.remass of the Coinpany’s
internal control over financial reporting as of December 30, 2006, and have issued our reports thereon dated Fébruary 27,
2007; such consolidated financial statements and reports are included elsewhere in this Form .10-K.: Our audits also
included the consolidated financial statement schedules of the Company listed in ltefr;n 15(a)(2). These consolidated
financial statement schedules are the responsibility of the Company’s management.. Qur responsibility is to express an
opinion based on our audits. In our opinion, such consolidated financial statementlschedules when considered in
relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present falrly, in all material respects, the
information set forth therein. . [

D bie s~ TRuke et S

McLean, Virginia '
February 27, 2007 . c S
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ADVANCE AUTO PARTS, INC.
SCHEDULE I - CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE REGISTRANT
Condensed Parent Company Balance Sheets
‘December 30, 2006 and Decémber 31, 2005 R
(in thousands, except per share data)

December 30, December 31;

H

B . 2006 _ 2005
b 0 : .
i

‘Assets _ , * _ N o , ‘

Cash and cash equwalents oo $ ., 23 $. - 23
Receivables, net B o s . 205
Other current assets , | = .3 -3
Investment in subsidiary - 1,417,907 ... 1,162,060

Total assets ; ' $1,417,933 $ 1,162,381

|

|

{

[

¥

. i g v |
Liabilities and stockholders' equity !
b

|

Accrued expenses $ 57 $ 57
Dividends payable ‘ K 6,320 ‘-
Intercompany payable, net o 380,702 242,553
Total liabilities [ 387,079 242,610
Stockholders' equity \
Preferred stock, nonvoting, $0.0001 par value,
10,000 shares authorized; no shares fissued or outstanding . - -
Common stock, voting $0.0001 par value; 200,000
shares authorized; 105,351 shares issued and outstanding -
in 2006 and 109,637 issued 108 198 outstanding in 2005 11 11
Additional paid-in capital 414,153 564,965
Treasury stock, at cost, 1,439 shares in 2005 - (55,668)
Accumulated other comprehensive i mcome 3,472 3,090
Retained earnings L 613,218 407,373
Total stockholders' equity ‘ 1,030,854 919,771
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 1,417,933 3 1,162,381

f

I
|
f

t
|
!
!
i
!
|
1
{
|
|
I
|
|
|

: 1 :
The accompanying notes to condensed parent company financial information

are an‘[integral part of this schedule.
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! ADVANCE AUTO PARTS, INC.

SCHEDULE I - CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE REGISTRANT
Condensed Parent-Company. Statements of Operations
nd January 1, 2005

For the:Years Ended December 30, 2006, December 31, 2005 a

| (in thousands, except per share data) :
i !
‘ ‘! - ; . For the Years Ended

g ' ' 2006 i 2005 2004

i . % | [ Loy et
Selling, general and administrative expenses $ 165 $ 165 $ .. 166
Loss before (benefit) provision for income taxes (165)- . I . (165} o (166)
Income tax (benefit) provision {58) il (59) -~ 635
Loss before equity ‘in earnings of subsidiaries (107) (106) - (801)
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries 231425 - f 234,831 ... . 188,789
Net income s ' $ 231,318 $] 234,725 $ 187988

L. 1 S . T . '
Net income per basic share $ 218§ - 217 3 - 1.70
Net income per diluted share § 216 §] 213 -8 166
Average common shares outstanding 106,129 | 108;3] 8“ - 1'.0,2‘346 )
Dilutive effect of stock options 995 i 1,669 © 2,376

107,124 i 109,987 ‘113,222

Average commen shares outstanding - assuming dilution

f

The accompanying notes to condensed parent company financial information

are an integral part of this schedule:
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ADVANCE AUTO PARTS, INC.

SCHEDULE I - CONDENSED F INANCIAL-INFORMATION OF THE REGISTRANT
Condensed Parent Company Statements-of Cash Flows
For.the Years Ended December 30, 2006, December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005

- hw e e R

Net income,

-

l
[
ba
Cash ﬂows from operatmg actwntles !

.“.'

l

(in thousands) .

Adjustments to reconc1le net income to net cash

pr0v1ded by (used in) operations:

Provision for deferred income taxes

" Equity in earnings of subsidiary

. Net decrease (increase) in working capltal
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Change in net intércompany with subsididries
S+ Net cash provided by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Net increase (decrease} in cash and cash equwalems

Cash and cash equwalents beginning of year. - -
Cash.and cash equivalents; end of year -—-' =

Supplemental cash flow information:

Interest paid

Income taxes paid, net
Noncash transactions:

Retirement of common stock

Declared but unpaid cash dividends

|
|
|
|
|
l

Cash dividends paid by Stores on behalf of Parént

Proceeds received by Stores from stock transacnons under the
Parent's stock subscription plan and Stores stock option plan

Repurchase of Parent's common stock by Stores

|
l
|
I
|
|
|
|
|
|
n
I
|
t
|
|
1
|

For the Years Ended
2006 2005 2004
-$ 231,318 «* $ 234725 "% i87,988
f T ot ) 56
«(231,423) (234,831) ;' -(188,789)
295 (95) (211)
188 - (201) {956)
l?'!: a} 4 '
(188) 201 - 956
(188) 201 956
13 3 23
3 23 g 23 - § 23
$ - $ - $ -
$192,339 $193,185 % -
6,320
19,153 - -
17,203 28,696 20,470
{137,560) (101,594) (146,370)

The accompanying. notes to condensed parent company financial 1nformat10n

are an integral part of this schedule.
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ADVANCE AUTO PARTS, INC.

SCHEDULE 1 —CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OFI
Notes to Condensed Parent Company Statemen

C December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005 |
- (in thousands, except per’share Qata)

apit

R B Presentation gRE

I
b

1
f
'
|

THE REGISTRANT
ts

These condensed financial statements have been prepared pursuant to the rules and regulatlons of the Sécurities
© and Exchange Commission. Certain information and note disclosures normally 1nc]uded in annual financial ~
statements prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
have been condensed or omitted pursuant to those rules and regulations, although management beligves that the -

disclosures made are adequate to make the information presented not mlsleadmg

2. Organization

1
N
!
I
b

1

L3

E 1L

Advance Auto Parts, Inc. (“the Company™) is a holding company, which was the! 100% shareholder of Advance
Stores Company, Incorporated and its subsidiaries ("Stores") during the periods preselnted The parent/subsidiary
relationship between the Company and Stores includes certain related party transactions. These transactions consist
primarily of interest on intercompany advances, dividends, capital contributions and }e'lllocatlons of certain costs.
Deferred income taxes have not been provided for financial reporting and tax basis dlfferences on the undistributed

earnings of the subsidiaries. The Company fully and unconditionally guarantees the t[evolvmg credit facility of

Stores.
£ .
3. Summary of Significant Acconnting Policies

Accounting Period

l

J

The Company s ﬁscal year ends on the Saturday nearest the end of December, wl‘nch results in an extra week
every six years (the next 53 week fiscal year is 2009). All fiscal years presented mclude 52 weeks of operations.

New Accounting Pronouncements

; ' }
In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Einanciai Assets and Financial
Liabilities.” SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to measure many financial mstruments and certain other items
at fair value. SFASNo. 159 is effective for fiscal years begmnmg after November 15 2007. The Company is

currently evaluatmg the impact of SFAS No. 159.

In September 2006 the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements ” SFAS No. 157 clarifies the
definition of fair value establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands the disclosures on fair value
measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November rl 5, 2007, The Company is

currently evaluating the impact of SFAS No. 157.

I

‘ H

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertamty in Income Taxes,” or
FIN 48. FIN 48 clarifies the accountmg and reporting for income taxes recognized ml accordance with SFAS No.

109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.”

The interpretation prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement

attribute for the financial statement recognition, measurement, presentation and dlselosure of uncertain tax positions
taken or expected to be taken in income tax returns. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after

December 15, 2006. The Company does not expect the adoption of FIN 48 to have a. matena] impact on its financial
condition, results of operations or cash flows as the Company utilizes the separate retum method of allocating

income taxes to the' separate financial statements of the consolidated entity.

I

|
|

-

1
i
1

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for Additional Disclosures.
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ADVANCE AUTO PARTS, INC.

)  SCHEDULE IF - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING- ACCOUNTS =
+* ¢ {in thousands)- -
vt f
.. . Balance at ) . Balance at
"Beginning of ' Charges to End of
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable: Period Expenses Deductions Other |, Period
January 1, 2005 : $ L 9,130 § 2236 8 (32630 - $ 8,103
December 31, 2005 . . | , 8103 2,081 (6,066) (l)‘ 568 @ . 4,686
December 30,2006 - - . - . I 4686 1,228 (1,274 ¥ - 4640
M Accounts written off during the period. These amounts did not impact our statement of operations for any year presented. \
@ Reserves assumed in the acquisition of Autopart International.
\
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this reporl to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorlzed

.!

Dated: February 28, 2007 . i

SIGNATURES

. ADVANCE'AUTO PARTS, INC.

By: /st Michael O. Moore

. . " 4 .
- Mich‘alel 0. Moore
.- . Execurive Vice Presg'lienr, Chief Financial Qfficer
Pursuant to the requ:rements of the Securmes Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been 51gned below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates mdtcated
Signature ’ Title ‘ | .  Date
1 1
/s/ Michael N. Coppola Chairman, President, Chief Executive February 28, 2007
" Michael N. Coppola " Officer (Principal Executive !
; e Officer) | , t'
/s/ Michael O. Moore Executive Vice President, Chief h . IFeb'rual_y 28, 2007
Michael O. Moore . Financial Officer (Principal o '
' " Financial and Accounting .
, Officer) | ' I
. i - ' . . . b .
/s/ John C. Brouillard . Lead Director _ . February 28, 2007

Jehn C. Brouillard ) . ) . oA

b . — . . . 'I :
/s! Lawrence P. Castellani Director . February 28, 2007

. Lawrence P. Castellani

it
/s/ Darren R. Jackson Director . IFebruary 28, 2007
Darren R. Jacksan i ,!l
. ! o : " : .
/s/ Nicholas J. LaHowchic Director . 'Ifebruary 28,2007
Nicholas J. LaHowchic f
/s/ William S. Oglesby Director L . 'f:-‘c_:brpéry 28,2007
William S Oglesby e . ] C, K|
. 4 . VN . - ! P
/s/ Gilbert T, Ray - . Director : . - February 28, 2007 .
Gilbert T. Ray . e 1- | |
/s/ Carlos A. éaladrigas- . Director 7 . - 'l"ebruary 28, 2007
Carlos Ai‘SalndrIgns , . , . .
/s/ William L. Salter Director : . February 28, 2007
William L. Salter . !i ) .
e
/s/ Francesca Spinelli - . Director e 'February 28, 2007

Francesca Spinelli

_|

S-1 - 1
| |

l



Exhibit

Number

3.1(6)
32
10.1(11)
10.2(11)
10.3(3)
10.4(1)
10.5(2)
10.6(2)
10.72)
10.8(2)
10.9(6)
10.1002)

10.11(2)

10.12(3)

10.13(4)
10.14(3)
10.15(4)

10.16(3)

10.17(3)

10.18(7)

10.19(5)
10.20(5)
10.21(5)
10.22(5)

10.23(8)
10.24(8)
10.25(8)
10.26(9)

v EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

Restated Certificate of [ncorporation of Advance Auto Parts, Inc. (“Advance Auto™)(as amended on May
19, 2004). | :

Bylaws of Advance Auto. {as amended on November 15, 2006).

Credit Agreement dated as of October 5, 2006 among Advance Auto, Advance Stores Company,
Incorporated (“Advance Stores”), as borrower, the lenders party hereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A,
as administrative agent. ‘

Guarantee Agreement dated as of October 5, 2006 among Advance Auto and JP Morgan Chase Bank
N.A., as administrative agent. |

Indemnity, Subrogation and Contribution Agreement dated as of November 28, 2001 among Advance
Auto, Advance Stores, the Guaraﬁmrs listed therein and JP Morgan Chase, as collateral agent.

Lease Agreement dated as of January 1, 1997 between Nicholas F. Taubman and Advance Stores for the
distribution center located at 1835 Blue Hills Drive, N.E., Roanoke, Virginia, as amended.

Advance Auto 2001 Senior Executive Stock Option Plan.- :

Form of Advance Auto 2001 Senior Executive Stock Option Agreement.

Advance Auto 2001 Executive Stock Option Plan.

Form of Advance Auto 2001 Stock Option Agreement.

Form of Indemnity Agreement between each of the directors of Advance Auto and Advance Auto, as
successor in interest to Advance Helding.

Form of Advance Auto 2001 Stock Option Agreement for holders of Discount Auto Parts, Inc.
(“Discount”) fully converted options.

Purchase Agreement dated as of October 31, 2001 among Advance Stores, Advance Trucking -
Corporation, LARALEV, INC,, Westem Auto Supply Company, J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., Credit
Suisse First Boston Corporation and Lehman Brothers Inc.

Joinder to the Purchase Agreement dated as of November 28; 2001 by and among Advance Aircraft
Company, Inc., Advance Merchaﬁdising Company, Inc., WASCO Insurance Agency, Inc., Western Auto
of Puerto Rico, Inc., Western Auto of St. Thomas, Inc., Discount, DAP Acceptance Corporation, J.P:
Morgan Securities, Inc., Credit Su'isse First Boston Corporation and Lehman Brothers Inc.

Form of Master Lease dated as of. February 27, 2001 by and between Dapper Properties I, lI and III, LLC
and Discount. I

Form of Amendment to Master Lease dated as of December 28, 200] between Dapper Properties I 11 and
111, LL.C and Discount. ‘

Form of Sale-Leaseback Agreement dated as of February 27, 2001 by and between Dapper Properties 1,

Il and ITI, LLC and Discount.

Substitution Agreement dated as of November 28, 2001 by and among GE Capital Franchise Finance
Corporation, Washington Mutual Bank FA, Dapper Properties [, [1 and 111, LLC, Autopar Remainder I,
11 and 11§, LLC, Discount and Advance Stores.

First Amendment to Substitution Agreement dated as of December 28, 2001 by and among GE Capital
Franchise Finance Corporation, Washington Mutual Bank, FA, Dapper Properties I, Il and 111, LLC,
Autopar Remainder [, Il and 111, LLC, Discount, Advance Stores and Western Auto Supply Company.
Reaffirmation Agreement dated a$ of November 3, 2004 among Advance Auto, Advance Stores, the
lenders party thereto and JP Morgan Chase, as administrative agent and collateral agent.

Advance Auto Parts, Inc. 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan.

Form of Advance Auto Parts, Inc.! 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan Stock Option Agreement,

Form of Advance Auto Parts, Inc.? 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan Award Notice.

Advance Auto Parts, Inc. Deferred Stock Unit Plan for Non-Employee Directors and Selected
Executives, |

Amended Advance Auto Parts, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

Advance Auto Parts, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan.

Advance Auto Parts, Inc. 2006 Executwe Bonus Plan.

Form of Employment Agreement among Advance Auto and Advance Stores and Michael N. Coppola,
Paul W. Klasing, Michael Q. Moore, David B. Mueller, Elwyn G. Murray ill, Jimmie L. Wade and Keith
A. Oreson. t




Exhibit
Number Description

10.27(10) Release and Termination Agreement dated as of October 5, 2006, among Advance Auto, Advaace Stores

Company, [ncorporated and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N A, as admlmstratlve agent.

10.28(11) Form of Advance Auto Parts, Inc. 2007 Restricted Stock Award !

10.29(11)} Form of Advance Auto Parts, Inc. 2007 Stock Appreciation Right Award.,

21.1
23.1
311
31.2
32.1

Subsidiaries of Advance Auto. B
Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP. :I
Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002.
Certifications of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Purstiant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. '

(N
(2
3)

4
(5)
(6)
(7
(8
9)
(10)
(1)

Filed on June 4, 1598 as an exhibit to Registration Statement on Form S-4 (No 333-56013) of Advance
Stores Company, Incorporated.

Furnished on November 6, 2001 as an exhibit to Amendment No. 2 to Reglstratlon Statement on Form S-4
{No. 333-68858) of Advance Auto Parts, Inc. ;I

Filed on January 22, 2002 as an exhibit to Registration Statement on Form S-4,(No. 333-81180) of Advance
Stores Company, Incorporated. A

Filed on April 2, 2001 as an exhibit to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q) of Dlscount

Filed on August 16, 2004 as an exhibit to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Advance Auto Parts, Inc.
Filed on May 20, 2004 as an exhibit to Current Report on Form 8-K of Advance Auto Parts, Inc.

Filed on November 9, 2004 as an exhibit to Current Report on Form 8-K of Advance Auto Parts, Inc,

Filed on March 16, 2006 as an exhibit to the Annuval Report on Form 10-K of Advance Auto Parts, Inc.
Filed on April 6, 2006 as an exhibit to the Annual Report on Form 8-K of Advance Auto Parts, Inc.

Filed on October 12, 2006 as an exhibit to Current Report on Form 8-K of Advance Auto Parts, Inc,

Filed on February 26, 2007 as an exhibit to Current Report on Form 8-K of Advance Auto Parts, Tnc.
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Advance Aute Parls, Inc. A Annual Report 2006 ]

.

EXECUTIVE TEAM Geoffrey R. McCarty
Senior Vice President, Marketing and Advertising
Michael N, Coppola* ‘

President and Chief Executive Officer Kurt R. Schumacher

Senior Vice President, Store Operations—Florida
Paul W. Klasing*

Executive Vice President, Stores Kenneth A. Wirth, Jr.

Senior Vice President, Store Operations—Southeast
Michael O. Moore*

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer Randall A.Young

Senior Vice President, Real Estate
David B. Mueller*
Executive Vice President, Merchandising and Marketing
STOCKHOLDER INFORMATION
Elwyn G. Murray 11[* .
Executive Vice President, Administration i Corporate Offices:

, 5008 Airport Road

| Roanoke, Virginia 24012
t (540) 362-4911

|
{
|
i
|
|
|
|
i
[
!

Jimmie L. Wade*
Executive Vice President, Business Development

Keith A, Oreson* - l Internet Site:

Senior Vice President, Human Resources i www, AdvanceAutoParts.com
Roger Patkin ! Annual Meeting:
President and Chief Executive Officer, Autopart International, Inc. May 16, 2007 at §:30 a.m. (EDT)

" The Hotel Roanoke and Conference Center
110 Shenandoah Avenue, NW

SENIOR LEADERSHIP TEAM Roancke, Virginia 24016

Ralph Castanza Registrar and Transfer Agent:
Senior Vice President, Mellon Investor Services LLC

South Hackensack, New Jersey 07606
Ricardo S. Coro (866) 865-6327
Senior Vice President, Information Technology and

Chief Information Officer

|
!
i
[
i
Store Operations—Northeast F PO. Box 3315
f
f
I
‘ TDD for Hearing-Impaired  (800) 231-5469
|
t
i
\

Foreign Stockholders (201) 680-6578
Michael S. Fogarty TDD Foreign Stockholders  (201) 680-6810
Senior Vice President, Operations Support Internet site www.melloninvestor.com/isd
Jill A. Livesay Common Stock:
Senior Vice President, Controller . Ticker Symbol AAP

Listing New York Stock Exchange
Doenald L. Lockard, Jr. I
Senior Vice President, Store Operations—West 1 Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm:

’ \ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Eric M. Margolin* : 1750 Tysons Blvd.
Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary McLean, Virginia 22102
1

C. Roy Martin
Senior Vice President, Logistics and Replenishment |

i
*Executive Officers |
i
SEC FORM 10-K: Stockholders may obtain free oficharge a copy of Advance Auto Parts’ Annual Report on Form 10-K as filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission by writing to the Investor Relations Department, PO. Box 2710, Roanoke, Virginia 24001 or by
accessing the Company’s web site at www.AdvanceAutoFParts.com.
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of Directors

d

John C. Brouillard *+**

Renred Chief Administrative and
Fmanc:lal Officer, H.E. Butt Grocery
Company

Lawrence P Castellani ¥
Renred Chief Executive Officer,
Advance Auto Parts, Inc,

Michael N. Coppola

Chmrman of the Board, President and
Chlef Executive Officer,

Advance Auto Parts, Inc,

Darren R. Jackson "%

Executive Vice President—Finance
dndrChref Financial Officer,
Bcst Buy Co., Inc.

NrcholasJ LaHowchic ©
Retlred Executive Vice President,
lelted Brands Inc.

i

Wlll1am S. Oglesby @
Semor Managing Director,
The Blackstone Group, L.P.

Gilbert T. Ray @47

Rgtlred Partner,
OMelveny & Myers, LLP

Carlos A. Saladngas
Chalrman Premier American Bank

’

William L. Salter &*°
Renred Presidént of the
Specmlty Retail Division,
Sears Roebuck and Co.

,_,

F ancesca M. Spinelli
Senlor Vice President, People,
PetSmart, Inc.

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

*Denotes Committee Chair
1 — Audit Committee - |
2 — Compensation Committee

3 — Finance Committee

4 — Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

5 — Lead Director
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